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SECTION I: GENERAL
DEFINITIONSAND ABBREVIATIONS

DEFINITIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider
when reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Draft
Letter of Offer isintended for the convenience of the reader/prospective Applicant only and is not exhaustive.

This Draft Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which, unless the context
otherwise indicates or implies, or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as provided below.
References to any legidation, act, regulation, rules, guiddines, or policies shall be to such legidation, act,
regulation, rules, guidelines, or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that
provision.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, al references to
‘the/our Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or similar terms are to Ushanti Colour Chem Limited as the context
requires, and references to ‘you’ are to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and/ or prospective Investors in this
Right Issue of Equity Shares.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer, but not defined herein, shall have the same
meaning (to the extent applicable) ascribed to such terms under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Companies
Act, 2013, the SCRA, the Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, terms used in section titled “Industry Overview”, “Statement of Tax Benefits”, “Financial
Information”, “Outstanding Litigations, Defaults, and Material Developments” and “Terms of the Issue” on
pages 50, 47, 75, 76 and 94 respectively, shall have the meaning given to such termsin such sections.

COMPANY RELATED AND GENERAL TERMS

Term Description
Ushanti Colour | Ushanti Colour Chem Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the
Chem Limited / the | provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at 88/8 GIDC,
Company/ our | Phasel, Vatva, Ahmedabad- 382445, Gujarat, India.
Company
Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Ushanti Colour Chem

We/ ug/ our Limited:
Ao0A/ Articles of | The Articles of Association of Ushanti Colour Chem Limited, as amended from time to
Association time;
Associate The Company do not have any Associate Company.

. . The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s Audit
Audit Committee

Committee in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Auditory  Statutory
Auditors/ Peer
Review Auditor

The current Statutory Auditors of our company being M/s DINV & Co, Chartered
Accountants,

Board of Directors/
Board

Board of Directors of our Company;

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Shantiladl Bhailal Gandh and & Mr. Minku

Chal rman &. Shantilal Gandhi and Mr. Maunal Shantilal Gandhi are the Joint Managing Directors of
Managing Director

our Company
Chief Financial | The Chief Financial Officer of our Company being Mr. Pradip Bhadriklal Parikh;
Officer/ CFO
Company Secretary | The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company being Ms. Vishakha
and Compliance | Tanwar;
Officer
Equity Shares Equity shares of the Company having face value of 210.00 (Rupees Ten only);

Independent Director

Independent directors on the Board and eligible to be appointed as an Independent
Director under the provisions of Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. For




Term Description
details of the Independent Directors, please refer to section titled “Our Management”
beginning on page 72 of this Draft Letter of Offer;
ISIN International Securities Identification Number being INEOONI01015;
Key management personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the
Key  Management | SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. For details,
Personnel /KMP please refer to section titled “Our Management” beginning on page 72 of this Draft

Letter of Offer;

MoA/ Memorandum

The Memorandum of Association of Ushanti Colour Chem Limited, as amended from

of Association time to time;

Nomination and | The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company’s Nomination
Remuneration and Remuneration Committee in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
Committee 2013;

Non-Executive A Director, not being an Executive Director of our Company;

Director

Promoters Mr. Maunal Shantilal Gandhi and Mr. Minku Shantilal Gandhi;

Promoter Group

Persons and entities forming part of the promoter group of our Company as determined
in terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and as disclosed by
our Company in the filings made with the Stock Exchanges under the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations;

Registered Office

88/8 GIDC, Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad- 382445, Gujarat, India

Registrar of | Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat;

Companies/ RoC

Stakeholders The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s Stakeholders
Relationship Relationship Committee in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013;
Committee

Stock Exchange

Stock exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being National Stock
Exchange of India Limited;

Unaudited Financial
Results

The limited reviewed unaudited financial results for the six months period ended
September 30, 2023, including the notes thereto and the report thereon. For details, see
“Financial Statements” on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer;

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Term

Description

Abridged Letter of
Offer

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to
the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the
Companies Act;

Additional
Equity Shares

Rights

The Rights Equity Shares applied or alotted under this Issue in addition to the Rights
Entitlements;

Allot/Allotment/Allo
tted

Unless the context requires, the allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this |ssue;

Allotment Account

The account opened with the Banker to the Issue, into which the Application Money
lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts blocked in the ASBA Account,
with respect to successful Investors will be transferred on the Transfer Date in
accordance with Section 40 (3) of the Companies Act;

Allotment Date Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue;
Allottees Persons to whom Rights Equity Shares are issued pursuant to the I ssue;
Applicant(s)/ Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who make an application for the
Investor(s) Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue in terms of the Letter of Offer, being an
ASBA |nvestor,
Application made through submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application

through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA
process to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the Issue Price;

Application Form

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA
process) used by an Applicant to make an application for the Allotment of Rights
Equity Sharesin thisissue;




Term

Description

Application Money

Aggregate amount payable at the time of Application X [e] (Rupees Only) in respect of
the Rights Equity Shares applied for in this Issue at the Issue Price;

Application
Supported by
Blocked Amount or
ASBA

Application used by ASBA Investors to make an application authorizing a SCSB to
block the Application Money in the ASBA Account;

Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the Application Form or plain paper
application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the Application

ASBA Account Form or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders, as the case
may be;
ASBA Applicant As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020,

IASBA Investor

all investors (including Renouncees) shall make an application for an Issue only through
ASBA facility;

Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including al revisions and modifications thereto as

ASBA Bid permitted under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;
Collectively, the SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers
ASBA Circulars SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011

dated April 29, 2011, and SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020;

Bankers to the Issue/
Refund Bank

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Bank to the Issue, in this case
being [e];

Bankers to the Issue
Agreement

Agreement dated [e] entered into by and amongst our Company, the Registrar to the
Issue, and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application Money from
Investors making an application, transfer of funds to the Allotment Account from the
Escrow Account and SCSBs, release of funds from Allotment Account to our Company
and other persons and where applicable, refunds of the amounts collected from
Investors and providing such other facilities and services as specified in the agreement;

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants
in the Issue, and which is described in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” beginning
on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer;

Controlling Branches
/Controlling
Branches  of
SCSBs

the

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and the
Stock Exchange, a list of which is available on
https:.//www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intml d=
34, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

Demographic Details

Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, name of the Investor’s father/
husband, investor status, occupation and bank account details, where applicable;

Designated  SCSB
Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submitted by ASBA
Bidders, a list of which is avalable on the website of SEBI at
https.//www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intml d=
34, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time;

Designated Stock

Exchange

Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

Depository(ies)

NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended
from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996;

Draft Letter of Offer/
DLoF

This Draft Letter of Offer filed with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

Eligible Equity | Eligible holder(s) of the Equity Shares of Ushanti Colour Chem Limited as on the
Shareholder(s) Record Date;

One or more no-lien and non-interest-bearing accounts with the Escrow Collection
Escrow Account(s)

Bank(s) for the purposes of collecting the Application Money from resident investors;

Escrow  Collection
Bank

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue and
with whom Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being [e];

Issue/ Rights Issue

Issue of [@] equity shares with a face value of 10 each (“rights equity shares™) of our
company for cash at a price of X [e] each including a share premium of X [®] per rights
equity share (“issue price”) for an aggregate amount upto ¥ 300.00 Lacs* on a rights
basis to the existing equity shareholders of our company in the ratio of [e] Right equity
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Term

Description

shares for every [®] Fully paid-up equity shares held by the existing equity shareholders
on the record date, that is on [e] (the “issue”). The issue price for the rights equity
shares is [®] Times the face value of the equity shares.

* Assuming full subscription and receipt of all Call Monies with respect to Rights Equity
Shares.

Issue Closing Date

[e];

Issue Opening Date

[e];

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of

I ssue Period both days, during which Applicants Investors can submit their applications, in
accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;
. X [o] (Rupees [®] Only) per Rights Equity Share including a premium of X [e®] (Rupees
Issue Price . .
[e]) per Rights Equity Share);
I ssue Proceeds The proceeds of the Issue that are available to our Company;
Issue Size Amount aggregating upto 300.00 Lacs (Rupees Three Crores Only );
The final letter of offer to be filed with the BSE after incorporating the observations
Letter of Offer/ LoF

received from the NSE on the Draft Letter of Offer;

Material Subsidiaries

Following company have been identified by our Company based on the materiality
threshold adopted by our Board under SEBI Listing Regulations as Materia
Subsidiaries; Our Company does not have any Material Subsidiaries as of now;

MCA Circulars

General Circular No. 21/2020 dated May 11, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, read with the circular dated August 3, 2020;

Multiple Application
Forms

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/ Renouncee in
respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However
supplementary applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using
additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as multiple application;

Net Proceeds

Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, please refer to the
section titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 42 of this Draft Letter of Offer;

Offer Document

The Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer including any
notices, corrigendum thereto;

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them

Off Market | through off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the
Renunciation SEBI Rights Issue Circular and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to
time, and other applicable laws,
The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them
On Market | over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock
Renunciation broker in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular and the circulars issued by the
Stock Exchange, from time to time, and other applicable laws, on or before [e®];
QIBs or Quadified | Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI (ICDR)
Ingtitutional Buyers | Regulations,
Record Date Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to

apply for Rights Equity Shares, being [e];

Registrar to the Issue

Bigshare Services Private Limited.;

Registrar Agreement

Agreement dated January 31, 2024 entered into between our Company and the Registrar
in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining
to this Issue;

Renouncees

Any person(s) who, not being the original recipient has’have acquired the Rights
Entitlement, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights
Issue Circulars.

Renunciation Period

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights
Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date i.e. [®]. Such period
shall close on [®] in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are
requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a
manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee
on or prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. [®];

Retail Individual | Individual Investors who have applied for Equity Shares for an amount not more than
Investors Rlls ¥2,00,000.00/- (Rupees Two Lacs) (including HUFs applying through their Karta);

Rights  Entitlement | The right to apply for the Rights Equity Shares, being offered by way of this Issue, by
(9)/ Res an Investor, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights




Term

Description

Issue Circulars, in this case being [e] ([e]Rights Equity Shares for every [e] Equity
Shares held by an Eligible Equity Shareholder, on the Record Date, excluding any
fractional entitlements.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in respective
demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the | ssue Opening Date.

Rights Entitlement | Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders. The
L etter Rights Entitlements are also accessible on the website of our Company.
Rights Equity Shares tIfql_Jity Shares of qur Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue, on fully paid-up
asis on Allotment;

Banks which are registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
Self-Certified India (Bankersto an Issue) Regulations, 1994, and offer services of ASBA, and alist of
Syndicate Banks/ | which is available on
SCSB(s) https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& i

ntmld=3
SEBI Rights Issue | SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated
Circular January 22, 2020;

The date on which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the amount blocked in
Transfer Date the ASBA Account will be transferred to the Allotment Account, upon finalization of

the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange;

Wilful Defaulter or a

Fraudulent Borrower

A Company or person categorized as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower by any
bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on
wilful defaulters or a fraudulent borrowers issued by the RBI, including any Company
whose director or promoter is categorized as such;

Working Day(s)

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, working day means al
days on which commercia banks in Mumbai are open for business. Further, in respect
of Issue Period, working day means al days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore,
the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the
Stock Exchange, “Working Day” shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange,
excluding Sundays and bank holidays,

INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

Term Description

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

EAP East Asiaand Pacific

EMDEs Emerging Market and Developing Economies

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FY Financial Y ear

GCPMH Globa Chemicals and Petrochemicals Manufacturing Hubs
GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIDC Gujarat Infrastructure Development Corporation

ISCMA Indian Speciality Chemical Manufacturer’ Association
MMT Million Metric Tonnes

PCPIR Petroleum, Chemicals and Petrochemicals Investment Region
pPPP Purchasing Power Parity

TFP Total Factor Productivity

ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description

ADR American Depository Receipt;

AGM Annual General Meeting;

AIE Alternative Investment Fund as defingd and registered with SEBI ur_1der the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012;

AS Accounting Standards issued by the Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of Indig;

BSE BSE Limited;
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Term Description

CAF Common Application Form;

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited;

CFO Chief Financia Officer;

CIN Corporate |dentification Number;

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax;

CLRA Contract Labour (Regulation and Abalition) Act, 1970;

Companies Act, 2013

Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder;

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder (without reference to the provisions
thereof that have ceased to have effect upon the notification of the Notified Sections);

The consolidated FDI Policy, effective from October 15, 2020, issued by the

Consolidated  FDI | Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,

Policy Government of India, and any modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued
from timeto time

COVID-19 A pub_lic _health emergency of international concern as declared by the World Health
Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020

CSR Corporate Socia Responsibility;

Depository A depo_sito_ry registere_zd_with SEBI un(_:ier the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996;

DIN Director |dentification Number;

DP Depository Participant;

DP-1D Depository Participant’s Identification;

DR Depository Receipts;

EBITDA Profit/(_lo_ss) after tax f_or _the year adjusted for in_come tax expense, fin_ance costs,
depreciation, and amortisation expense, as presented in the statement of profit and |0ss;

EGM Extraordinary General Mesting;

EEA European Economic Areg;

EPS Earning per Equity Share;

FDI Foreign Direct Investment;

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations made
thereunder;

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019;

Fll(s) Foreign Ingtitutional Investors registered with SEBI under gpplicable laws,

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board;

FPIs Foreign Portfolio Investors,

Fugitive Economic | An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the

Offender Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018;

V/Cl Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Foreign Venture Capita Investors) Regulations, 2000) registered with SEBI;

FY Period of 12 months ending on March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated;

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles;

GDP Gross Domestic Product;

GDR Global Depository Receipt;

GNPA Gross Net Performing Assets;

Gol / Government The Government of India;

GST Goods and Services Tax;

HUF Hindu Undivided Family;

Ind AS Indian Accounting Standards;

ICAI The Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of India;

ICSl The Ingtitute of Company Secretaries of India;

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards,

g‘gf’ll GAAPL 1= | General ly Accepted Accounting Principles In India;

Income Tax Act/ IT
Act

The Income Tax Act, 1961 and amendments thereto;

Insider
Regulations

Trading

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;




Term

Description

Insolvency Code

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended;

INR /X / Rs. / Indian

Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of Indig;

Rupees

IT Information Technology;

MCA The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Gol;

Mn/mn Million;

Mutual Funds Mu'tual funds registered With_ the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Mutua Funds) Regulations, 1996;

N.A. or NA Not Applicable;

NAV Net Asset Valueg;

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer;

Notified Sections

The sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified by the MCA and are
currently in effect;

NR/ non-resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under the FEMA and includes an NRI, FPIs
registered with SEBI and FV Clsregistered with SEBI;

NRE Non-resident external account;

NRI Non-resident Indian;

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited,;

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

OCB Overseas Corporate Body;

p.a Per annum;

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio;

PAN Permanent account number;

PAT Profit after Tax;

RBI Reserve Bank of Indig;

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

RoNW Return on Net Worth;

SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System;

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of Indig;

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992,

SEBI AlF | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations,

Regulations 2012;

SEBI FPI | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,

Regulations 2019;

SEBI (LODR) | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Regulations Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time;

SEBI (ICDR) | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations Regulations, 2018 and amendments thereto;

SEBI (SAST) | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Regulations Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and amendments thereto;

Securities Act United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

STT Securities transaction tax;

Trade Mark Act Trade Marks Act, 1999 and the rules thereunder, including subsequent amendments
thereto;

USH USD/ US | United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America;

Dallar

USA/U.S/US United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States
of Americaand the District of Columbig;

U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin the United States of America;
Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and

VCF Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the SEBI AlIF

Regulations, as the case may be;
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged L etter of Offer, Application Form and
Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain
jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into
whose possession the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or CAFs may come are
required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a
rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will electronically dispatch through email and physical
dispatch through speed post the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have
provided an Indian address to our Company. Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided, through email and
speed pogt, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided
their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights
Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make arequest in this regard.
Investors can also access this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the
Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, SEBI and the Stock Exchange.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for
that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly
or indirectly, and this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering
materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any
jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft
Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions
in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter
of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not
be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed.
Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of
Offer or Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights
Entitlements, distribute or send this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any
person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If this Draft
Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by any personin
any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares
or the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer
or the Application Form.

Any person who makes an application to acquire Equity Shares offered in this Issue will be deemed to have
declared, represented, warranted and agreed that she/he is authorized to acquire the Rights Equity Shares in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in her/his jurisdiction. Our Company, the
Registrar to the Issue or any other person acting on behalf of us reserve the right to treat any CAF as invalid
where we believe that CAF is incomplete or acceptance of such CAF may infringe applicable legal or regulatory
requirements and we shall not be bound to alot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in
respect of any such CAF. Neither the delivery of Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs nor any
sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in our
Company’s affairs from the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time
subsequent to the date of the Letter of Offer.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form
and Rights Entitlement L etter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that
the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer,
Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the
date of such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER, LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE
SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCESASA
RESULT OF THE OFFER RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS.
ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS
ADVISOR AND TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS
CONCERNING THE OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY IS
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MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY
SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY
SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the
United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof (“United States”), except in a transaction not
subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities
laws. The offering to which this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances
is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States
or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. Thereis no
intention to register any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to
conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of
Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement L etters should not be
forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after
the commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the
United States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration
requirements of the SecuritiesAct.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application
Form and Rights Entitlement L etter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing
for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an
address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to
Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who
have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be
deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing
for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and (ii) it is
authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or
our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where aregistered Indian address
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be
bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “US SEC”), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US
regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering
of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of
Offer. Any representation to the contrary is acriminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any
amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure
that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or
regulations.
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THISDOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR
COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR
DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and al the Directors and al
Executive Officers are residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect
service of process upon the Company or these other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courtsin
India, judgments obtained in courts outside India. Indiais not a party to any international treaty in relation to the
automatic recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of
the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended (the “Civil Procedure Code”). Section 44A of the Civil
Procedure Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of
that section) in any country or territory outside India which the Government of India has by notification declared
to be areciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed in India as if
the decree has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is applicable
only to monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other
charges of a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code
does not apply to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others,
the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have been declared by the
Government of India to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure
Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the
purposes of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian
court shall, on production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of aforeign judgment, presume that
the judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears on the record; but
such presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India
only by a suit upon the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in
execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign
judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to any matter
directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any of them claim
litigating under the same title except where:

¢ The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction.

¢ The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case.

¢ The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international law
or arefusal to recognize the law of Indiain cases where such law is applicable.

e The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice.

o The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or

o The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in forcein India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment
in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India
would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is
unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it considered the amount of damages awarded
as excessive or inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or contrary to Indian law. A
party seeking to enforce aforeign judgment in Indiais required to obtain prior approval from the Reserve Bank
of Indiato repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign
currency would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment and any
such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict
whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in atimely manner or be subject to considerable
delays.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER INFORMATION

CERTAIN CONVENTIONS

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references to “India” contained in this Draft
Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and the “Government” or “Gol” or the “Central Government” or the
“State Government” are to the Government of India, Central or State, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, al references in this Draft Letter of Offer to the
“US” or “U.S.” or the “United States™ are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, all references in this Draft Letter of Offer are in Indian Standard Time. Unless
indicated otherwise, all referencesto ayear in this Draft Letter of Offer areto a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, al references to page numbers in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated or the context requires otherwise, our financia data included in this Draft Letter of Offer is
derived from the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of our Company as of and for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and Unaudited Financial Results for the six months period ended September 30, 2023.

We have prepared our Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of our Company as of and for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 and Unaudited Financial Results for the six months period ended September 30,
2023 in accordance with GAAP, Companies Act, and other applicable statutory and / or regulatory requirements.
Our Company publishesitsfinancial statementsin Indian Rupees.

For details of the Consolidated Audited Financia Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and
the Unaudited Financial Results for the half year ended September 30, 2023, please refer to the section titled
“Financial Statements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company’s Financial Year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on
March 31 of that particular calendar year. Accordingly, all references to a particular Financial Year or Fiscal,
unless stated otherwise, are to the 12 months period ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepanciesin any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed
are due to rounding off, and unless otherwise specified, al financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative
figures.

CURRENCY AND UNITS OF PRESENTATION

All references to “Rupees” or “3” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.
All references to “US$”, “U.S. Dollar”, “USD” or “U.S. Dollars” are to United States Dollars, the official
currency of the United States of America.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has presented certain numerical information. All figures have been
expressed in “lakhs”. The amounts derived from financial statements included herein are represented in “lakhs”,
as presented in the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements and the Unaudited Financial Results. One lakh
represents 1,00,000 and one crore represents 1,00,00,000.

Except as otherwise set out in this Draft Letter of Offer, certain monetary thresholds have been subject to
rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic
aggregation of the figures which precede them.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
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Unless stated otherwise, industry data used throughout this Draft Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived
from industry and government publications, publicly available information and sources. Industry publications
generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to
be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured.
Although our Company believes that industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer isreliable, it has not been
independently verified.

The industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer has not been independently verified by our Company or any
of their affiliates or advisors. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to
change based on various factors and cannot be verified with certainty due to limits on the availability and
reliability of the raw data and other limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey.

The extent to which market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the
reader’s familiarity with and understanding of methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard
data gathering methodologies in the industry in which our business is conducted, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and
numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in “Risk
Factors” on page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely
on such information.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not statements of historical fact constitute
“forward-looking statements”. Investors can generally identify forward-looking statements by terminology
including anticipate, believe, continue, can, could, estimate, expect, future, forecast, intend, may, objective, plan,
potential, project, pursue, shall, should, target, will, would or other words or phrases of similar import.
Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals are also forward- looking statements. However,
these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our
Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements may include planned projects, revenue and profitability
(including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts) and other matters discussed in
this Draft Letter of Offer that are not historical facts.

These forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any
third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors
that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or
other projections. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our
Company that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward -
looking statement. Important factors that could cause our actual results, performances and achievementsto differ
materialy from any of the forward-looking statements include, among others:

e Company’s ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological

changes;

Failure to comply with regulations prescribed by authorities of the jurisdictionsin which we operate;

Audience’s taste and behavior;

Uncertainty in relation to continuing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations;

Inability to successfully obtain registrationsin atimely manner or at al;

General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regiona and

national economies,

Our ability to effectively manage a variety of business, legal, regulatory, economic, socia and political risks

associated with our operations,

Our failure to keep pace with rapid changes in entertainment sector;

Changesin laws and regulations relating to the industries in which we operate;

Effect of lack of infrastructure facilities on our business;

Intensified competition in industries/sector in which we operate;

Our ability to attract, retain and manage qualified personnel;

Failure to adapt to the changing technology in our industry of operation may adversely affect our business

and financial condition;

e Changes in political and social conditions in India or in countries that we may enter, the monetary and
interest rate policies of India and other countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest
rates, equity prices or other rates or prices,

e  Qur ability to expand our geographical area of operation.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the
sections “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” on pages 20, 61 and 76, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures
are only estimates and could be materialy different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual
gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as at the date of this Draft Letter of Offer
and are not a guarantee or assurance of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s
beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the
assumptions upon 19 which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these
assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could
be incorrect. Accordingly, we cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking
statements will prove to be correct and given the uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of these risks and uncertainties materialize, or if any of our
Company’s underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, the actual results of operations or financial condition
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of our Company could differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed, estimated or
expected. All subseguent forward-looking statements attributable to our Company are expressly qualified in
their entirety by reference to these cautionary statements. None of our Company, our Directors nor any of their
respective affiliates has any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances
arising after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the
underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of

material developments from the date of this Draft Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and
trading permission.
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SUMMARY OF LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a genera summary of certain disclosures included in this Draft Letter of Offer and it is neither
exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Draft Letter of Offer or all
details relevant to prospective Investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by,
the more detailed information appearing in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the sections titled “Risk
Factors”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business” and ‘“Outstanding Litigations, Defaults and Material
Developments” beginning on pages 20, 42, 61 and 85 of this Draft L etter of Offer, respectively.

SUMMARY OF OUR BUSINESS

Company is in the business of manufacturing and trading of various colours of dyestuffs since 1993 till 2013.
After getting permission for manufacturing of CPC Blue Crude dyestuff and witnessing the growing demand of
our CPC Blue product our Company decided to focus into business of manufacturing on one specific product
type and specialise in it. Our Company manufactures reactive and direct dyestuffs also known as Synthetic
Organic Dyes with an integrated production process. The company also manufactures Copper Phthal ocyanine,
Blue Cued which are one of the major raw materials used for manufacturing of Dyestuffs. The pigment and
dyestuffs manufactured by us caters to the raw material requirement of textile, garment, cotton, leather, nylon,
paper, wool, ink, wood, plastic and paint industries. We concentrate in manufacturing “Turquoise Blue”
Dyestuffs and Pigments. The Company has 3 manufacturing facilities situated together at Vatva GIDC in
Gujarat. The facilities are spread over 2,739 sq. meters in total area. Our company aso has its own Ice
generation machinery, further it recovers Ammonium Carbonate from its effluent stream which are reused in the
plant as well as sold to the Soda Ash Industry reducing wastage giving us incremental revenue. The Company
currently has a production capacity of approx. 2,520 tons per annum. The manufacturing facilities are equipped
with requisite machineries to keep a constant check on quality. The company is an 1SO 9001:2015 certified
company certifying the quality of the product our company manufactures.

For further details, please refer to the section titled “Our Business” beginning on page 61 beginning of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

OBJECTSOF THE I SSUE

The intended use of the Net Proceeds of the Issue by our Company is set forth in the following table:

(Zin Lacs)
N Particulars Amount
No.
1. To augment the existing and incremental working capital requirement of our company Upto 300.00
2. General Corporate Purposes” [o]
Total Net Proceeds* [o]

#3Ubject to the finalization of the basis of Allotment and the allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. The amount
utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Issue Proceeds.
* Assuming full subscription and Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares.

For further details, please refer to the section titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 42 of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

SUBSCRIPTION TO THE ISSUE BY OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

The Promoters and Promoter Group of our Company through their letter dated January 01, 2024, have
confirmed that they intend to subscribe in full extent of its Rights Entitlement in this Issue and that they will not
renounce their Rights Entitlements.

Any such subscription for Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result
in an increase in their percentage shareholding in the Company. The allotment of Equity Shares of the Company
subscribed by the Promoters and other members of the Promoter Group in this Issue shall be eligible for
exemption from open offer requirements in terms of Regulation 10(4)(a) and 10(4)(b) of the SEBI (SAST)
Regulations. The Issue shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance
with the provisions of SEBI (SAST) Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements
under applicable law, pursuant to this Issue.
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SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Number Amount

of cases involved
Natur e of cases .
® in
Lacs)
Litigationsinvolving our Company
Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities Nil Nil
Litigation involving Tax Liabilities 01 0.94
Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of our Nil Nil

Company

Proceedingsinvolving Material Violations of Statutory Regulations by our Company Nil Nil

Matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against

Nil Nil
our Company
Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the
Materiality Threshold or are otherwise materia in terms of the Materiality Policy, and Nil Nil
other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and
adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company
Litigation involving our Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Group Companies Nil Nil

For further details, please refer to section titled “Outstanding Litigations, Defaults and Material Developments”
beginning on page 85 of this Draft L etter of Offer.

RISK FACTORS

For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in Equity
Shares, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other economic factors, please refer
to the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For details of the contingent liabilities, as reported in the Financial Statements, please refer to the section titled
“Financial Satements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, as reported in the Financial Statements, please refer to the section
titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE
YEAR

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash during the last 1 (One) year
immediately preceding the date of filing this Draft Letter of Offer.
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SECTION II: RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment
in our Equity Shares. To obtain a better understanding, you should read this section together with "Our
Business" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on
pages 61 and 78 respectively, as well as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Draft
Letter of Offer. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the only risks that we may face.
Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also have
an adver se effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually
occur, our cash flows, business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer, the price of our Equity
Shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. The financial and other related
implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below.
However, there are risks where the impact is not quantifiable and hence the same has not been disclosed in such
risk factors. Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not
invest any funds in this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are
advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. Before making an
investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issue and us.

This Draft Letter of Offer contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain
factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer. The financial
and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors
below. However, there are risk factors the potential effects of which are not quantifiable and therefore no
quantification has been provided with respect to such risk factors. In making an investment decision, prospective
investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and the terms of the Issue, including the merits
and the risks involved. You should not invest in this | ssue unless you are prepared to accept the risk of losing all
or part of your investment, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular
conseguences to you of an investment in our Equity Shares.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sums of the amount listed are
due to rounding off. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in "Risk Factors' on page 20 and "Management
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations' on page 76 respectively of this Draft
Letter of Offer unless otherwise indicated, has been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in the
"Financial Information of the Company" prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards.

Materiality

The Risk factors have been determined and disclosed on the basis of their materiality. The following factors
have been considered fydetermining the materiality:

1. Someevents may have material impact quantitatively;

2. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively;

3. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;

4. Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in future.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. Wegpecialisein only 1 product type, i.e., Blue colour Dyes.

Initially, Our Company was into manufacturing various colours of dyestuffs till year 2013. After getting
permission for manufacturing of CPC Blue Crude dyestuff and witnessing the growing demand of our CPC Blue
product, our Company decided to focus into business of manufacturing on one specific product type and
specidise in it, consequently we started manufacturing Turquoise Blue reactive dyes only with their sub-
variants. Although this has led to the growth of our business both in terms of operational and financial
performance in recent years, however, our business model is restricted to a particular product type and limits the
growth to an extent owing to our inability to meet the demand of customers having requirements of various
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colour dyes and pigments. Presence substantially in only 1 colour product makes our business comparatively
small and prone to competition risks. However, we market other colour products like Black, Orange and Red
also but those are based on specific orders received and we are not into full-time manufacturing of the same.
Customers may not prefer us as their business partner if they have requirements of multiple colours as we are
not in a position to supply them multi-colour options from under one roof. This may adversely affect our overall
business.

2. Our products use raw materials, prices of which have been very volatile in past.

Manufacturing of Dyes requires numerous dye intermediates, such as, Vinyl Sulhpor, Phosphorus Trichloride,
Soda Ash. These intermediates form substantial portion of our total production cost. Our cost of material
consumed was approx 58% of our Total Expense for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. Although our
Company produces one of the intermediates, but we procure mgjority of our raw materials requirements from
third party suppliers. These chemicals are produced only by few companies such as Kutch Chemicals, Aksar
Chem, Bodal Chemicals and Kiri Industries. We procure our major requirements from them and till now we
have been able to procure it at the normal prevailing rates in market. However, there have been situationsin past
where prices of these intermediates have increased by multiple times causing us to pay abnormal cost for such
intermediates adversely affecting our overal profitability thereby causing working capital crunch. As there are
only few producers for these intermediates, we face a risk of substantia increase in prices by these producers.
Occurrence of any such event in future may affect our business substantially both in terms of operations and
financials.

3. Presently our major focus of revenueis on the sale of Blue Dyestuffs and any decrease in the demand for
them will adversely affect our business.

Our Company has been focusing only on production of blue dyestuffs. Our percentage revenue in F.Y. 2022-23
for Blue Dyestuffs was around 95%. We being a specialised player in Blue Reactive Dyes, our focus has
remained intact in this segment. Any decrease in demand or our inability to supply our product on timely basis it
may adversely affect our operationa and financial performance.

4. Intense competition from China may affect our business adversely.

Dye manufacturing business is carried majorly in India and China across the globe. Our company faces tough
competition from players situated in China as they have a competitive advantage of manufacturing dyestuffs at
lower cost. Since only 2 countries manufacture dyes, there is an intense competition between both the countries
which are trying to increase their market share. There have been environmental restrictions on companies in
Chinawhich has led to shut down of many dye manufacturers favouring other manufacturers, however, there is
no assurance that such restrictions would kill the competition to our advantage and we will not face any threat
from companiesin China.

5. We are subject to various laws and regulations relating to the handling and disposal of hazardous
materials and wastes. If we fail to comply with such laws and regulations, we can be subjected to
prosecution, including imprisonment and fines or incur costs that could have a material adverse effect
on the success of our business.

The Environmental Protection Act, 1986, as amended, the Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981,
as amended, the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, as amended and other regulations
promulgated by the Ministry of Environment and Forest and various statutory and regulatory authorities and
agencies in India regulate our handling of hazardous substances and wastes. We are required to obtain
registrations from the relevant State Pollution Control Board to be able to handle and dispose hazardous and
wastes. We are also required to take a number of precautionary measures and follow prescribed practicesin this
regard. Our failure to comply with these laws could result in us being prosecuted, including our directors and
officers responsible for compliance being subjected to imprisonment and fines. We may aso be liable for
damage caused to the environment. Any such action could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

6. Our future growth is majorly dependent on the new manufacturing facility which we are setting up. Any
delay in commissioning the new facility may hamper the business operations of our company.

We have been into the business of dyestuffs since 1993, with the experience we possess our company has built a
large customer base. At present, our manufacturing facility is operating at more than 90% of its installed
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capacity providing us limited scope to grow within the facility. To capitalize on this fact, we are setting up a
new manufacturing facility spread over an area of 75,060 sq. meters with an annual production capacity of
approx. 16,140 tons including dye intermediates and dyestuffs while the permitted capacity is approx. 32,800
tons p.a. Hence, our Company is largely dependent on the upcoming facility for further growth of our business.
Our Company has received approval from Gujarat Pollution Control Board (GPCB) for their consent to establish
this facility with the list of intermediates we intend to manufacture. Our Company has also received the No
Objection Certificate from GPCB. However, any non-compliance with their rules and regulations, unavailability
of the required funds for machineries, or any other internal or external factors within or beyond our control may
adversely affect our expansion plan and may hinder the growth of our business. We may not be able to assure
about the timely commencement of the proposed facility which may also possess a blockage to the growth plans
of the company and cause stress on capital structure of the company.

7.  We have not placed orders for 100% of the Plant & Machineries which will be required to be installed in
the new manufacturing facility.

Our Company has planned to set-up a new manufacturing facility in which company intends to increase its
production capacity of manufacturing dyes. Further, the company aso plans to manufacture certain
intermediates which are required for manufacturing of dyestuffs. For this purpose, the Company has aready
acquired land at Saykha Industrial Estate — Dahel and our company has finalised the list of the machineries
which are to be purchased. However, the plant and machineries which are to be installed are yet to be ordered
and none of the machinery has been purchased. Further, we have not entered into any definitive agreement with
any of the suppliers for the purchase of the machineries.

8. Wearein business related to chemicals which faces excessive government regulations.

Dye chemica business involves use of numerous toxic acids and its related chemical components. Usage of
such intermediates is hazardous to the environment as a whole. This leads to excessive government focus and
regulations to be followed in such business model. With increased compliances and regulations, Company faces
challenges on many aspects such as control on use of materias, discharge of effluent treatment which may affect
the business directly. Any such noncompliance’s may lead to imposition of penalties, fines or imprisonment.
Further, operations of the Company may be suspended; manufacturing licenses may be suspended, withdrawn or
terminated.

9. Our Company generates major portion of its revenue from export operations. Any problems in such
geographies may affect our business adversely.

Our company manufactures dyestuffs and exports it to many countries like, Turkey, Egypt, Bangladesh,
Pakistan etc. Our company has generated around 30% and 26.68% of its total revenue from export operations
for the year ended F.Y. 2021-22 and for the year ended F.Y. 2022-23. The company’s performance is largely
dependent on the political and economic conditions in these regions. Any adverse situation in these regions may
affect our business substantially. We believe the customer base which we have created over the years is strong
enough to weather any such conditions, however, we may not guarantee that any problems in these regions will
not affect our business.

Consequently, any adverse changes in these economies such as slowdown in the economy, appreciation of the
Indian Rupee vis-&vis the currencies of these economies, acts of terrorism or hostility targeting these countries,
etc. would directly impact our revenues and results from operations. In the event of change in policies or lawsin
these regions with respect to our industry, quality standards, our financial condition and business operations may
be adversely affected. In case of any contingencies in future due to which we are unable to operate effectively in
these markets, our results from operations, revenues and profitability may be adversely affected.

10. Our Company intends to utilise part of the proceeds of this Issues towards repayment of secured
borrowings.

As mentioned in the “Objects of the Issue” beginning on Page 42 of this Draft Letter of Offer, we intend to
utilise part of the proceeds towards repayment of certain secured borrowings availed by the Company. The rate
of Interest charged on these borrowings are 8.75% and 8.75%. However, our Company has also certain
borrowings for which higher rate of interest is charged by our lenders and the same is yet to be repaid. Our
decision of repayment of lower rate borrowings prior to repaying borrowings with higher rate of interest may
impact our finance cost consequently leading to lower profitability.
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11. Our export operations are largely dependent on various treaties and government agreements between
India and foreign nations.

Our Company derives substantial portion of its revenue from exporting its products outside India. In this regard,
our business with such countries is largely dependent on the signed treaties and agreements signed between such
governments. Signed treaties and agreements controls the rules, regulations, prohibitions among other important
factors which decides the trade relations between the countries which have entered into treaties and agreements.
We have been able to trade with these countries owing to liberal and favourable treaties and business relations
among the nations.

However, with increasing competition and escalating trade wars situations, countries may impose certain
restrictions, prohibitions or imposition of unfavourable terms, which may lead to inferior operationa and
financial performance.

12. Our manufacturing unit and proposed manufacturing facility is situated on plots that are taken on long-
term lease from G.1.D.C., and we will have to comply with the terms and conditions/covenants laid down
in lease agreementswith G.I.D.C., noncompliance of the same may affect our business operations.

Our Company has its manufacturing unit situated at 88/6-8, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445,
Guijarat, India within G.I.D.C. limits. The said plot is taken on long-term lease from G.I.D.C. Further, the
proposed manufacturing facility at Saykha Industrial Estate of Dahej, Gujarat has also been taken on long term
lease from G.1.D.C. We have been complying with al on-going requirements of G.I.D.C. and as on date of this
Offer document there are no litigations or disputes on our occupancy of such land with G.1.D.C. However, any
defaults in complying with the said terms and conditions/covenants on our part may be subjected to pena
provisions and it may also lead to the cancellation of such lease, which will adversely affect our business,
financial conditions and results of operations.

13. Delay in schedule of the setting up of facility may subject our Company to risks related to time and cost
overrun which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our Company is currently proposing to set-up a new manufacturing facility at Saykha GIDC, Dahej. For further
details regarding to our proposed manufacturing facility, please refer the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue" on
page 42 of this Draft Letter of Letter. We may face risks relating to the delay in schedule of setting up of
facility, complete the project within our estimated budget, failure of our contractors and suppliers to adhere to
our specifications and timelines, and changes in the general economic and financial conditions in India. Further
as and when we complete our set-up work, our material requirements and costs as well as our staffing
requirements and employee expenses may increase and we may face other challenges in extending our financial
and other controls to our unit managing our consequent growth. In the event that the risks and uncertainties
discussed above or any other unanticipated risks, uncertainties, contingencies or other events or circumstances
limit or delay our efforts to use the Net Proceeds to achieve the planned growth in our business, the use of the
Net Proceeds for purposes identified by our management may not result in actual growth of our business,
increased profitability or an increase in the value of your investment in our Equity Shares.

14. We depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of our revenues. The loss of a
major customer or significant reduction in production and sales of, or demand for our products from,
our major customers may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

We derive our entire operational revenues from sale of dyestuffsin the domestic as well as overseas market. We
depend on alimited number of customers for a significant portion of our revenues. Revenue from our top 10 and
top 5 customers constituted 50.84% and 33.48% of our revenue for Financia Year 2022-23. We face
competition from both domestic and international manufacturers in the international market. However, we
believe that we have good and long-term relationship with our customers, any loss of customer base or reduction
in volume of orders, out of our existing customers, will impact our overall sales, resulting in a decline in our
revenues. While we are constantly striving to increase our customer base and reduce dependence on any one
particular customer, there is no assurance that we will be able to broaden our customer base in any future
periods or that our business or results of operations will not be adversely affected by a reduction in demand or
cessation of our relationship with any of our major customers.
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15. Our dependence on few suppliers puts us at risk of interruptions in the availability of raw materials,
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, we
have not entered into any long-term agreements with our suppliers for raw materials and accordingly
may face disruptionsin supply from our current suppliers.

We procure raw materials/ intermediates required for the manufacturing of dyestuffs from various companiesin
the domestic market. We chose to deal with suppliers on the basis of quality assurance, cost effectiveness and
relationships. Though we prefer to deal with a fixed set of suppliers with whom we have cordial relationships,
there are no fixed suppliers for our raw material purchases and we have not entered into any fixed supply
agreement or MoU or any other arrangement with any of our suppliers. Our top 10 and top 5 suppliers
contributed 62.11% and 38.26% of our Tota Purchases for the F.Y. 2022-23.

These suppliers have accorded their trust and service based on our long operating history in the industry, our
credit worthiness, and our goodwill. However, in the absence of written agreements, our suppliers are not bound
to supply goods to us and can withdraw their commitments from us at any time. There can be no assurance that
there will not be a significant disruption in the supply of raw materials from current sources, or, in the event of a
disruption, that we would be able to locate aternative suppliers of the raw materials of comparable quality on
terms acceptable to us, or at al. Identifying a suitable supplier involves a process that requires us to become
satisfied with their quality control, consistency, responsiveness and service, financial stability and other ethical
practices.

16. Our performance is majorly dependent on textile and garment Industry. Any slowdown in these sectors may
adversely impact our financial performance.

Our products, dyestuffs are used in textile industry for dying the cloths. Growth of dye industry is directly
related to the progress of the textile industry. With increased manufacturing activity in textile and garment
sector, there would be drive in demand for the dyestuffs. Any slowdown in the concerned sectors would hamper
the demand scenario which may lead to under-utilization of capacity owing to reduced sales. With lower
capacity utilization, there would be an increase in cost burden ultimately affecting the operational and financial
performance of the company adversely.

17. Our statutory auditor has included an audit qualification in its audit reports for the year ended March
31, 2012 to March 31, 2023.

Our Statutory Auditor in its Audit report for the year ended 31st March, 2012 to 31st March, 2023 has made a
qualification, which read as under:

“The company does not include excise duty payable on the unsold stock of finished goods in Vauation of
finished goods as required under Accounting Standard — 2 “Valuation of Inventories” in respect of valuation of
inventories, which constitutes departure from the Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

However, such non-inclusion of excise duty will not affect the profit of the year”. Other than as mentioned
above, our Company did not had any qualifications from the auditors, however, this may not guarantee that such
qualifications may not occur in future if thereisany violation of relevant accounting standards.

18. Our Company has changed an accounting policy in last 3 years.

Our Company during the applicability of Companies Act, 1956 was following an accounting policy for
depreciation on Plant & Machineries considering the useful life as 40 years. With the applicability of Companies
Act, 2013 and rules thereon, our Company changed the accounting policy for depreciation on Plant &
Machineries from 40 years to 15 years and therefore the rates of deprecation have been changed accordingly.
However, this change is in compliance with the relevant provisions and accounting standards as applicable, we
may not be able to assure of any further changes in accounting policy which may impact the profitability and
presentation of financia statements.

19. Wedo not have any offshore office or business place to look after our export operations.

We sell our products to both domestic as well as international markets. A major portion of our revenue from
operations is derived from international markets. However, we do not have any offshore office as a result of

24



which we may not be able to capitalize on opportunities offered by the evolving international tiles sector in a
timely manner. The business operations of our Company are mainly handled from our registered office located
at Gujarat. Apart from this, our Company does not have any place of business overseas either in the nature of
liaison office or corporate office. Owing to this, we may not be able to expand our business effectively in the
international market, thereby affecting the results of operations and profitability.

20. We are subject to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which could have a material and adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial conditions.

Our foreign exchange transactions are not hedged. Our Company has derived approx. 30% of revenue from
export operations in FY 2022-23. We export our products and receive sale proceeds in foreign currency
denominated in USD. Changes in value of currencies with respect to the Rupee may cause fluctuations in our
operating results expressed in Rupees. The exchange rate between the Rupee and other currencies is variable
and may continue to fluctuate in future. As our exposures are not hedged, we are exposed to foreign currency
fluctuation risk and may affect our Company’s results of operations. However, our Company has gained on
account of foreign exchange fluctuation to the extent of Rs. 11.81 Lakhsfor the year ended 31st March, 2018.

21. Theindustry segments in which we operate being fragmented, we face competition from other players,
which may affect our business operational and financial conditions.

The market for our products is competitive on account of both the organized and unorganized players. Playersin
this industry generally compete with each other on key attributes such as technical competence, quality of
products, customer base, pricing and timely delivery. Some of our competitors may have longer industry
experience and greater financial, technical and other resources, which may enable them to react faster in
changing market scenario and remain competitive. Moreover, the unorganized sector offers their products at
highly competitive prices which may not be matched by us and consequently affect our volume of sales and
growth prospects. Growing competition may result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins
which may adversely affect our business operations and our financial condition.

22. Our manufacturing facilities are located at Gujarat. Any delay in production at, or shutdownof, or any
for a significant period of time, in these facilities may in turn adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our Company has its manufacturing facilities are located at Vatva in Gujarat. Our success depends on our
ability to successfully manufacture and deliver our products to meet our customer demand. Our manufacturing
facility is susceptible to damage or interruption or operating risks, such as human error, power loss, breakdown
or failure of equipment, power supply or processes, performance below expected levels of output or efficiency,
obsolescence, loss of services of our external contractors, terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, earthquakes,
other natural disasters and industrial accidents and similar events. Further, our manufacturing facility is aso
subject to operating risk arising from compliance with the directives of relevant government authorities.
Operating risks may result in persona injury and property damage and in the imposition of civil and criminal
penaties. If our Company experiences delays in production or shutdowns due to any reason, including
disruptions caused by disputes with its workforce or any external factors, our Company’s operations will be
significantly affected, which in turn would have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and
results of operations.

23. We depend on certain brand names and our corporate name and logo that we may not be able to protect
and/or maintain. We have a logo which is used for our business purpose. Further the said logo is not
applied for registration with theregistrar of trademarks.

Our ability to market and sell our products depends upon the recognition of our brand names and associated
consumer goodwill. Currently, we do not have registered trademarks for our corporate name and logo under the
Trade Marks Act, 1999. Conseguently, we do not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to registered
trademarks in India for the corporate name and logo of our company. In the absence of such registrations,
competitors and other companies may challenge the validity or scope of our intellectual property right over
these brands or our corporate name or logo. As a result, we may be required to invest significant resources in
developing new brands or names, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.
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Our failure to comply with existing or increased regulations, or the introduction of changes to existing
regulations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The material approvals, licences or permits required for our business include trade licence, excise and approvals
related to tax laws and environment laws among others. See “Government and other Statutory Approvals” on
page 88 of this Draft letter of Offer for further details on the required material approvals for the operation of our
business.

24, QOur industry is labour intensive and our business operations may be materially adversely affected by
strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees or those of our suppliers.

We believe that the industry in which we operate face competitive pressures in recruiting and retaining skilled
and unskilled labour. Shortage of skilled/unskilled personnel or work stoppages caused by disagreements with
employees could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We have not experienced any
major disruptions to our business operations due to disputes or other problems with our work force in the past;
there can be no assurance that we will not experience such disruptions in the future. Such disruptions may
adversely affect our business and results of operations and may aso divert the management's attention and result
in increased costs. India has stringent labour legidlation that protects the interests of workers, including
legidlation that sets forth detailed procedures for the establishment of unions, dispute resolution and employee
removal and legislation that imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon retrenchment.

We are also subject to laws and regulations governing relationships with employees, in such areas as minimum
wage and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and terminating of employees and
work permits. Although our employees are not currently unionized, there can be no assurance that they will not
unionize in the future. If our employees unionize, it may become difficult for us to maintain flexible labour
policies, and we may face the threat of labour unrest, work stoppages and diversion of our management's
attention due to union intervention, which may have a material adverse impact on our business, results of
operations and financia condition.

25. We require a number of approvals, NOCs, licences, registrations and permits in the ordinary course of
our business. Some of the approvals are required to be transferred in the name of “USHANTI COLOUR
CHEM LIMITED” from “USHANTI COLOUR CHEM PRIVATE LIMITED” pursuant to name
change of our company and any failure or delay in obtaining the same in a timely manner may adversely
affect our operations.

We need to apply for renewal of approvals which expire, from time to time, as and when required in the
ordinary course of our business Approval like TAN allotment letter is currently not traceable and the Company
has not applied for Udyog Aadhaar Memorandum. Any failure to renew the approvals that have expired, or to
apply for and obtain the required approvals, licences, registrations or permits, or any suspension or revocation of
any of the approvals, licences, registrations and permits that have been or may be issued to us, could result in
delaying the operations of our business, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. We cannot assure you that the approvals, licences, registrations and permits issued to
us would not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or aleged non-compliance with any terms
or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action.

Additionally, our company isin the course of expansion of its business. It shall be establishing Unit |1 as a part
of expansion. There are a complete series of mandatory approval and other certifications to be applied by the
Company as mentioned in “Mandatory Approvals related to Proposed Unit II yet to be applied by the Company”
in the Government and Other Statutory Approvals Chapter. In case of any failure to obtain the same, it may
adversely affect our business operations. For more information, see chapter “Government and Other Statutory
Approvals” on page 88 of this Prospectus.

26. Our export operations are majorly done via Pipavav Port and Mundra Port in Gujarat. Thus, the growth
of our business is directly linked to facilities provided at these major ports and Infrastructural
development on these ports.

Our export operations outside India are primarily done from the Pipavav and Mundra ports in Gujarat. The
Mundra Port is one of the largest ports in India and any interruption in port or any sanctions by the Gol on the
facilities at these ports could adversely affect our business operations and financial position and thereby
affecting the overall profitability of the business.
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27. The shortage or non-availability of power and water facilities may adversely affect our manufacturing
processes and have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our manufacturing processes requires substantial amount of power and water facilities. The quantum and nature
of requirements of our industry and Company is such that it cannot be supplemented/ augmented by alternative/
independent sources of supply since it involves significant capital expenditure and per unit cost produced is very
high. We are mainly dependent on State Government for meeting our electricity and water requirements. Any
defaults or noncompliance of the conditions may render us liable for termination of the agreement or any future
changes in the terms of the agreement may lead to increased costs, thereby affecting the profitability. Further,
since we are mgjorly dependent on third party power supply; there may be factors beyond our control affecting
the supply of power.

28. We are dependent on third party transportation providers for transportation of raw materials and
finished goods. Accordingly, any increase in transportation costs or unavailability of transportation
services for our products may have an adverse effect on our business.

Our company is engaged in manufacturing of dyestuffs and have our manufacturing facility at Vatva, Gujarat.
We procure raw materials from manufacturers in Gujarat. Also, our finished goods are sold and delivered to
various locations across the country and exported to various other countries. Most of this raw materia and
finished products are transported to and from our manufacturing unit by third party transportation providers.
Transportation strikes could have an adverse effect on our receipt of goods, raw materials and our ability to
deliver our products to our customers. Non-availability of ships, barges and trucks could also adversely affect
our receipt of goods, raw materials and the delivery of our products.

Further, India’s physical infrastructure is less developed than that of many developed nations, and problems
with its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other public facility could
disrupt our normal business activity, including our supply of goods, raw materials and the delivery of our
products to customers by third-party transportation providers.

Any deterioration of India’s physical infrastructure would harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation
of goods and supplies, and add costs to doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our business
operations, which could have amaterial adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

29. Our Company’s failure to maintain the quality and concentration of the dyestuffs or keep pace with the
technological developments could adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our products depend on recent trends and developments as we manufacture and market the products as per the
market trends. Any failure to maintain the quality standards patterns may affect our business. Although we have
put in place strict quality control procedures, we cannot assure that our products will always be able to satisfy
our customers’ quality standards. Any negative publicity regarding our Company, or products, including those
arising from any deterioration in quality of our products from our vendors, or any other unforeseen events could
adversely affect our reputation, our operations and our results from operations. Also, rapid change in our
customers’ expectation on account of changes in technology or introduction of new products or for any other
reason and failure on our part to meet their expectation could adversely affect our business, result of operations
and financial condition. While, we believe that we have always introduced quality products based on consumers
need to cater to the growing demand of our customers and also endeavour to regularly update our existing
technology, our failure to anticipate or to respond adequately to changing technical, market demands and/or
client requirements could adversely affect our business and financial results.

30. We have not entered into any definitive agreements with our customers. If our customers choose not to
buy their products from us, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected and our business are on purchase order basiswith our customers.

We have not entered into any definitive agreements with our customers, and instead we majorly rely on
Purchase orders to govern the volume, pricing and other terms of sales of our products. However, such orders
may be amended or cancelled prior to finalisation, and should such an amendment or cancellation take place.
Consequently, there is no commitment on the part of the customer to continue to source their requirements from
us, and as a result, our sales from period to period may fluctuate significantly as a result of changes in our
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customers vendor preferences. Any failure to meet our customers’ expectations could result in cancellation of
orders. There are also a number of factors other than our performance that are beyond our control and that could
cause the loss of a customer. We do not have long-term contracts with our customers and there can be no
assurance that we will continue to receive repeat orders from any of them, including our longstanding
customers. Further, even if we were to continue receiving orders from our clients, there can be no assurance that
they will be on the same terms, and the new terms may be less favourable to us than those under the present
terms.

31. We have not entered into any definitive agreements with our customers. If our customers choose not to
buy their products from us, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected and our business are on purchase order basiswith our customers.

We have not entered into any definitive agreements with our customers, and instead we majorly rely on
Purchase orders to govern the volume, pricing and other terms of sales of our products. However, such orders
may be amended or cancelled prior to finalisation, and should such an amendment or cancellation take place.
Conseguently, there is no commitment on the part of the customer to continue to source their requirements from
us, and as a result, our sales from period to period may fluctuate significantly as a result of changes in our
customers vendor preferences. Any failure to meet our customers’ expectations could result in cancellation of
orders. There are also a number of factors other than our performance that are beyond our control and that could
cause the loss of a customer. We do not have long-term contracts with our customers and there can be no
assurance that we will continue to receive repeat orders from any of them, including our longstanding
customers. Further, even if we were to continue receiving orders from our clients, there can be no assurance that
they will be on the same terms, and the new terms may be less favourable to us than those under the present
terms.

32. We havein the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

Our Company has entered into various transactions with our Promoter, Directors and their Relatives. While we
believe that all such transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis, there can be no assurance that we could
not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions were not entered into with related parties.
Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related party transactions in future. There can be no assurance
that such transactions, individually or in aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operation.

33. We are subject to risks associated with expansion into new geographic regions.

Expansion into new geographic regions, including different states in India, subjects us to various challenges,
including those relating to our lack of familiarity with the culture, legal regulations and economic conditions of
these new regions, language barriers, difficultiesin staffing and managing such operations, and the lack of brand
recognition and reputation in such regions. For instance, we intend to set up new stores in certain parts of
northern India. The risksinvolved in entering new geographic markets and expanding operations, may be higher
than expected, and we may face significant competition in such markets. By expanding into new geographical
regions, we could be subject to additional risks associated with establishing and conducting operations,
including, laws and regulations, uncertainties and customer’s preferences, political and economic stability. By
expanding into new geographical regions, we may be exposed to significant liability and could lose some or all
of our investment in such regions, as aresult of which our business, financial condition and results of operations
could be adversely affected.

34. Under-utilization of manufacturing capacity at our unit may affect our business which in turn may
affect our results of operations.

Presently, our manufacturing facility operates at an efficiency level in excess of 90% of its installed capacity.
Further, we are in the process of establishing a new manufacturing facility at Dahej. In the event that we are
unable to fully utilize the increased capacity, our cost of production owing to fixed costs may increase
substantially which may adversely affect our result of operations.

36. Our Company has lapsed/delayed in making the required filings under Companies Act, 2013. Our

Company also has not complied with certain statutory provisions under Companies Act. Such non-
compliances/lapses may attract penalties.
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Our Company is required to make filings under various rules and regulations as applicable under the Companies
Act, 2013 and under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Some of which has not been done
within the stipulated time period at some instances. For instance, our Company has lapsed in filing of Form 20B
by mentioning wrong number of shares of Mr. Shantila Gandhi and Mr. Maunal Gandhi in the form for
financial year 2003-04, 2004-05 and 2005-06. Although, we have not received any show-cause notice in respect
of the above, such delay/noncompliance may in the future render us liable to statutory penalties and could have
serious conseguences on our operations. While this could be attributed to technical lapses and human errors, our
Company has now appointed a Company Secretary and is in the process of setting up a system to ensure that
requisite filings are done appropriately with the requisite timeline.

35. Our insurance coverage may hot be adequate.

Our Company has obtained insurance coverage in respect of certain risks. We have taken insurance policies
such as Marine, Standard Fire and Specia Perils Policy policy. While we believe that we maintain insurance
coverage in adequate amounts consistent with size of our business, our insurance policies do not cover all risks,
specifically risks like loss of profits, losses due to terrorism, etc. Further there can be no assurance that our
insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses in respect of which the insurance has been availed. If we
suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance claim in respect of the subject-matter of insurance is not
accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. For further details, please refer
chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 61 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

36. If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and accomplish
business opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage new employees,
expand our distribution network and to implement systems capable of effectively accommodating our growth.
However, we cannot assure you that any such employees will contribute to the success of our business or that
we will implement such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities effectively could have
amaterial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It also is possible that the
strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be given that
our analyses of market and other data or the strategies we use or plansin future to use will be successful

under various market conditions.

37. Our operations may be adversely affected in case of industrial accidents at any of our production
facilities.

Usage of heavy machinery, handling of materials by labour during production process or otherwise, lifting of
materials by humans, heating processes of the furnace etc. may result in accidents, which could cause injury to
our labour, employees, other persons on the site and could also damage our properties thereby affecting our
operations. Though our plants and machinery are covered under insurance, occurrence of accidents could
hamper our production and consequently affect our profitability.

38. Compliance with, and changes in, safety, health and environmental laws and regulations may adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Due to the nature of our business, we expect to be or continue to be subject to extensive and increasingly
stringent environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and various labour, workplace and related laws
and regulations. We are also subject to environmental laws and regulations, including but not limited to:

o Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

o Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

o Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

o Hazardous Waste Management & Handling Rules, 2008

e The Indian Boilers Act, 1923

o Other regulations promulgated by the Ministry of Environment and Forests and the Pollution Control Boards
of the state of Gujarat

which govern the discharge, emission, storage, handling and disposal of a variety of substances that may be used
in or result from the operations of our business. The scope and extent of new environmental regulations,
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including their effect on our operations, cannot be predicted and hence the costs and management time required
to comply with these requirements could be significant. Amendments to such statutes may impose additional
provisions to be followed by our Company and accordingly the Company needs to incur clean-up and
remediation costs, as well as damages, payment of fines or other penalties, closure of production facilities for
non - compliance, other liabilities and related litigation, could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

39. Our lenders have charge over our movable and immovable propertiesin respect of finance availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect of
loans / facilities availed by us from banks and financial institutions. The total amounts outstanding and payable
by us as secured loans were Rs. 155.06 Lakhs as on March 31, 2023. In the event we default in repayment of the
loans / facilities availed by us and any interest thereof, our properties may be forfeited by lenders, which in turn
could have significant adverse effect on business, financial condition or results of operations. For further
information on the “Financial Statement” please refer to page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

40. Our lenders have imposed certain restrictive conditions on us under our financing arrangements. Under
our financing arrangements, we are required to obtain the prior, written lender consent for, among other
matters, changesin our capital structure. Further, we are required to maintain certain financial ratios.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with these financial or other loan covenants or that we
will be able to obtain the consents necessary to take the actions we believe are necessary to operate and grow
our business. Our level of existing debt and any new debt that we incur in the future has important
consequences. Any failure to comply with these requirements or other conditions or covenants under our
financing agreements that is not waived by our lenders or is not otherwise cured by us, may require us to repay
the borrowing in whole or part and may include other related costs. Our Company may be forced to sell some or
al of its assets or limit our operations. This may adversely affect our ability to conduct our business and impair
our future growth plans. For further information, see the chapter titled “Financial Statement” on page 75 of the
Draft Letter of Offer.

Though these covenants are restrictive to some extent for us, however it ensures financia discipline, which
would help usin the long run to improve our financial performance.

41. We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects of
the issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the ‘Objects of the Issue’. Any
shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, operations and financial
performance.

As on date, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the objects of
the issue. We meet our capital requirements through our bank finance, owned funds and internal accruals. Any
shortfall in our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future would result in us
being unable to meet our capital requirements, which in turn will negatively affect our financial condition and
results of operations. Further, we have not identified any aternate source of funding and hence any failure or
delay on our part to raise money from this issue or any shortfal in the issue proceeds may delay the
implementation schedule and could adversely affect our growth plans. For further details please refer to the
chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 42 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

42. Our Company has unsecured loans which are repayable on demand. Any demand loan from lenders for
repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash flows.

Ason March 31, 2023, our Company has unsecured loans amounting to Rs. 238.42 lakhs from related and other
parties that are repayable on demand to the relevant lender. Further, some of these loans are not repayable in
accordance with any agreed repayment schedule and may be recalled by the relevant lender at any time. Any
such unexpected demand or accelerated repayment may have a material adverse effect on the business, cash
flows and financial condition of the borrower against which repayment is sought. Any demand from lenders for
repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash flows. For further details of unsecured loans
of our Company, please refer the chapter titled “Financial Statements”” beginning on page 75 of this Draft L etter
of Offer.
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43. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash
flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing
arrangements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a
result, we may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration
and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our
Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financial condition, cash
requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. Accordingly, realization of a gain on
shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There can
be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value.

44. Our future funds requirements, in the form of issue of capital or securities and/or loanstaken by us, may
be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are eventually
raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any issue of shares or
convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may be done
on terms and conditions, which may not be favourable to the then existing shareholders. If such funds are raised
in the form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and decrease our cash flows,
thus prejudicially affecting our profitability and ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

45. Our success depends largely upon the services of our Directors, Promoters and other Key Managerial
Personnel and our ability to attract and retain them. Demand for Key Managerial Personnel in the
industry is intense and our inability to attract and retain Key Managerial Personnel may affect the
operations of our Company.

Our success is substantially dependent on the expertise and services of our Directors, Promoters and our Key
Managerial Personnel (“KMP”). They provide expertise which enables us to make well informed decisions in
relation to our business and our future prospects. Our future performance will depend upon the continued
services of these persons. Demand for KMP in the industry isintense. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to retain any or al, or that our succession planning will help to replace, the key members of our management.
The loss of the services of such key members of our management team and the failure of any succession plansto
replace such key members could have an adverse effect on our business and the results of our operations.

46. In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, some of our Directors
and key managerial personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and
dividend entitlement in our Company.

Our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) are interested in our Company to the extent of
remuneration paid to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In addition,
some of our Directors and KMP may aso be interested to the extent of their shareholding and dividend
entitlement in our Company. For further information, see “Capital Structure” and “Our Management” on pages
40 and 72, respectively, of this Draft L etter of Offer.

47. Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control over
our Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters submitted to
shareholdersfor approval.

After completion of the Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively own 67.86% of the Equity
Shares. As aresult, our Promoter together with the members of the Promoter Group will be able to exercise a
significant degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal that can be
approved by a majority shareholder vote, including, the election of members to our Board, in accordance with
the Companies Act and our AoA. Such a concentration of ownership may aso have the effect of delaying,
preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company.

In addition, our Promoter will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or may
conflict with, our interests or the interests of some or al of our creditors or minority shareholders, and we
cannot assure you that such actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial performance or the
price of our Equity Shares.
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48. We have taken guarantees from Promoters and members of Promoter Group in relation to debt facilities
provided to us.

We have taken guarantees from Promoters and members of Promoter Group in relation to our secured debt
facilities availed from our Bankers. In an event any of these persons withdraw or terminate its/'their guarantees,
the lender for such facilities may ask for aternate guarantees, repayment of amounts outstanding under such
facilities, or even terminate such facilities. We may not be successful in procuring guarantees satisfactory to the
lender and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of
capital, which could adversely affect our financial condition.

49. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such
incidences could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and
cause serious harm to our reputation and goodwill of our Company. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity
may not be effective in al cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors that could subject us to
claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business,
financial condition, results of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

50. Certain agreements may be inadequately stamped or may not have been registered as a result of which
our operations may be adversely affected.

Few of our agreements may not be stamped adequately or registered. The effect of inadequate stamping is that
the document is not admissible as evidence in legal proceedings and parties to that agreement may not be able to
legally enforce the same, except after paying a penalty for inadequate stamping. The effect of non-registration,
in certain cases, is to make the document inadmissible in legal proceedings. Any potentia dispute due to non-
compliance of local laws relating to stamp duty and registration may adversely impact the operations of our
Company.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

51. The novel coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic outbreak and steps taken to control the same have
significantly impacted our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows and further
impact will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

The rapid and diffused spread of COVID-19 and global health concerns relating to this outbreak have had a
severe negative impact on all businesses, including the real estate industry in which our Company operates and
from where it derives substantial revenues and profits. The COVID-19 pandemic could continue to have an
impact that may worsen for an unknown period of time. In view of the onslaught of the second wave of the virus
and the likelihood of a third wave, this pandemic may continue to cause unprecedented economic disruption in
Indiaand in the rest of the world. The scope, duration and frequency of such measures and the adverse effects of
COVID-19 remain uncertain and could be severe.

Further if in case due to any third or consequent wave of Coronavirus or surge in new and deadly variants of the
Virus, if another lockdown isimposed in the country and further restrictions are imposed by the government, we
may face huge losses and our business operations could be severely impacted. Any such restrictions could cause
delays in the completion of our Projects and commitments made to clients, or cause damage to the goods in
transit. Any of these consequences may result in loss of business and/or claims for compensation from our
clients, which may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

52. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws,
may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such changes
may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to
suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy. For example, the
Government of India implemented a comprehensive national goods and services tax (“GST”) regime with effect
from July 1, 2017, that combined multiple taxes and levies by the Central and State Governments into a unified
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tax structure. Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by any unexpected or onerous
requirements or regulations resulting from the amendment of GST or any changes in laws or interpretation of
existing laws, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations relating to GST. The Government has
enacted the GAAR which have come into effect from April 1, 2017.

The Government of India has announced the union budget for Fiscal 2021 and the Ministry of Finance has
notified the Finance Act, 2021 (“Finance Act”) on March 28, 2021, pursuant to assent received from the
President, and the Finance Act will come into operation with effect from July 1, 2020 There is no certainty on
the impact that the Finance Act may have on our business and operations or on the industry in which we operate.
We cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to the Finance Act would have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Unfavorable changes in or interpretations of
existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty
laws governing our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws
and may require usto apply for additional approvals. For instance, the Supreme Court of India has, in adecision
clarified the components of basic wages, which need to be considered by companies while making provident
fund payments. Our Company has not made relevant provisions for the same, as on date. Any such decisionsin
future or any further changes in interpretation of laws may have an impact on our results of operations. Further,
a draft of the Personal Data Protection Bill, 2019 (“Bill”) has been introduced before the Lok Sabha on
December 11, 2019, which is currently being referred to a joint parliamentary committee by the Parliament. We
may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may
aso require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect
our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or
implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of
an absence, or alimited body, of administrative or judicia precedent may be time consuming as well as costly
for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our
businesses in the future.

53. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in forcein India, transfers of shares between non-residents and
residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and
reporting requirements specified by the RBI If the transfer of shares is not in compliance with such pricing
guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions, then the prior approval of the RBI will
be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India
into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection or a tax
clearance certificate from the income tax authority. We cannot assure you that any required approval from the
RBI or any other Government agency can be obtained on any particular termsor at all.

54. Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may adversely
affect our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at
which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our ability to fund our growth
on favourable terms or at al, and consequently adversely affect our business and financia performance and the
price of our Equity Shares.

55. The ability of Indian companiesto raise foreign capital may be constrained by I ndian law.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies,
including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources for our projects
under development and hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance
existing indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us
without onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth,
results of operations and financial condition.

56. Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously
harm business and economic conditionsin I ndia generally and our businessin particular.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of
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the economy. Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest
rates, changes in Government policy, taxation, socia and civil unrest and other political, economic or other
developments in or affecting India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and
policies affecting the information technology sector, foreign investment and other matters affecting investment
in our securities could change as well. Any significant change in such liberalization and deregulation policies
could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India, generaly, and our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations, in particular.

57. Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs
and negatively affect our stock price.

Globa economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect
performance of our business. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary
policies of governments, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability,
fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that
influence consumer confidence and spending. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause these factors
to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which may negatively affect our stock prices.

58. The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure could adversely affect our Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

India’s physical infrastructure is in developing phase compared to that of many developed nations. Any
congestion or disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other
public facility could disrupt our Company’s normal business activity. Any deterioration of India’s physical
infrastructure would harm the national economy; disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies, and costs of
doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our Company’s business operations, which could have
an adverse effect on itsresults of operations and financial condition.

59. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the I ndian economy and cause our businessto suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and
severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal
rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity
Shares.

60. Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity
Shares.

Any magjor hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are
beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents such as
the terrorist attacks, other incidents such as those in US, Indonesia, Madrid and London, and other acts of
violence may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will trade as well as the global
equity markets generally. Such acts could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between
countries, which could adversely affect our Company’s business and profitability. Additionally, such events
could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the Equity
Shares



SECTION [11: INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized by aresolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on Friday, December 22,
2023, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and
conditions of the Issue including the Rights Entitlement and Issue Price, have been approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on [e]. Further the Rights | ssue Committee of the Directorsin their meeting held
on [e] and [e] have approved the Record Date and the Issue Schedule. The following is a summary of the Issue.
This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, more detailed information

in “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 94.

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the
Issue

1,07,01,700 Equity Shares

Rights Equity Shares offered in the | ssue

[e] Rights Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue
(assuming full subscription for and
allotment of the Rights Entitlement)

[e] Equity Shares

Rights Entitlement

[e] Equity Shares for every [e] Equity Shares held on the
Record Date

Record Date

[e]

Face Value per Equity Share

%10.00/- (Rupees Ten Only) each

Issue Price per Equity Share

% [e]/- (Rupees [e] Only) including a premium of X [e]/-
(Rupees[®] Only) per Rights Equity Share

I ssue Size

Upto 3,00,00,000

Termsof the | ssue

Please refer to the section titled “Terms of the Issue” beginning
on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Use of |ssue Proceeds

Please refer to the section titled “Objects of the Issue”
beginning on page 42 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Security Code/ Scrip Details”

ISIN: INEOONI01015
NSE Scrip Code: UCL
ISIN for Rights Entitlements: [e]

#0ur Company would obtain a separate ISN for the Rights Equity Shares for each Call, as may be required

under applicable law.

For details in relation fractional entitlements, see “Terms of the Issue - Fractional Entitlements” on page 94.

Terms of payment

The full amount of the Issue Price being Z[e] (including the Premium of [e]) will be payable on application.

Due Date

Amount payable per Rights Equity Share
(including premium)

On the Issue application (i.e. dong with the
Application Form)

Z [o]/-
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 as ‘Ushanti Colour Chem Private Limited’ in
Guijarat vide Certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra and Nagar Haveli, on May 12,
1993. Consequently, it was converted into a public limited company pursuant to special resolution passed at Extra-ordinary
General Meeting of our Company held on February 19, 2018 and the name of our Company was changed to ‘Ushanti Colour
Chem Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon Conversion of Private Limited to Public Limited
dated March 07, 2018 was issued by Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The Corporate Identification Number of our
Company is U24231GJ1993PL C019444.

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED
88/8 GIDC, Phase |, Vatva,

Ahmedabad- 382445, Gujarat, India

Tel: 079-25833315

Email: admin@ushanti.com

Website: www.ushanti.com

CIN: L24231GJ1993PL C019444
Registration Number: 019444

Details of Changesin the Registered Office:
Our company did not change its registered office from listing.
ADDRESS OF THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES, GUJARAT
ROC Bhavan, Opp. Rupal Park Society,
Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura,
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat, India.

Tel: 079-27437597

Fax: 079-27438371

Email: roc.ahmedabad@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Vishakha Tanwar

88/8 GIDC, Phase |, Vatva,
Ahmedabad- 382445, Gujarat, India
Tel: 079-25833315

Email: csucl@ushanti.com
Website: www.ushanti.com

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF OUR COMPANY

M/s.DINV & Co

Chartered Accountants

Address: 2nd Floor, H. N. House, Opp. Muktajivan Colour Lab, Stadium
Circle, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India

Email I1D: info@djnv.in

Tel No: 079-48934455, 079-40070603

Contact Person: CA Shruti C Shah

Member ship No.: 112249

Firm Registration No.: 115145W

Peer Review No.: 015224

REGISTRAR TO THE I SSUE
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BIGSHARE SERVICESPRIVATE LIMITED
Address; Office No. S6-2, VI Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093
Telephone: +91-022-62638200 | Fax: +91-022-62638299
Email: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com

Investor Grievance: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

Contact person: Mr. Surgj Gupta

SEBI Registration No: INR0O00001385

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-lIssue or
post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of
ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), E-mail address of
the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for,
amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs
where the Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors
along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement dlip (in case of ASBA process) ). For details on the ASBA
process, see section titled “Terms of the | ssue” beginning on page 94 of this Draft L etter of Offer.

BANKERSTO THE ISSUE / REFUND BANK
[e]
BANKERSTO THE COMPANY

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Address: - 7th Floor, A-Wing, Venus Amadeus,
Jodhpur Cross Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat 380015, India

Tel: 1860 266 2666

Fax: NA

Email: pranay.dangi @kotak.com

Website: www.kotak.com

Contact Person: Mr. Pranay Dangi

CIN: L65110MH1985PL C038137

INTER-SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIESBETWEEN MERCHANT BANKERS

The Company has not appointed any Merchant Banker as the Issue size is less than 5,000 Lakh and hence there
is no inter-se alocation of responsibilities.

EXPERT

Except for the reports of the Auditor of our Company on the audited Financial Statements and Statement of Tax
Benefits, included in this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions.

SELF-CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the ASBA process is provided on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=34. Details relating to
Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the ASBA application forms are available at the above-mentioned
link.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of
banking hours on the dates mentioned bel ow:

| Last Datefor credit of Rights Entitlements | [o]
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I ssue Opening Date [e]
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights [e]
Entitlements#

I ssue Closing Date* [e]
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of credit (on or about) [e]
Date of listing (on or about) [e]

Note:

#Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on
or prior to the Issue Closing Date;

*Qur Board will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not
exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no
withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares who have not provided the details
of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar to the Issue, they are required to provide
their demat account detailsto our Company or the Registrar to the Offer not later than 2 (Two) Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [®] to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of
transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least 1 (One) day
before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [®].

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date.
Our Company or the Registrar to the I ssue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of
Applications on or before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, please
refer to the section titled “Terms of the I ssue” beginning on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed
by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at
www.bigshareonlinecom after keying in their respective details along with other security control
measures implemented there at. For further details, please refer to the paragraph titled see “Credit of
Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders” under the section titled “Terms of
the Issue” beginning on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on
or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the
Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such
Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire
the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an
application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares
offered under this|ssue.

CREDIT RATING

Asthis proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of a credit rating agency is not required.
DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Asthis proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required.
MONITORING AGENCY

Since the Issue size does not exceed X 100 crore, there is no requirement to appoint a monitoring agency in
relation to the Issue under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

APPRAISING ENTITY

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been financially appraised by
any banks or financia ingtitution or any other independent agency.
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UNDERWRITING
This Issueis not underwritten, and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.
FILING

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold of filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights
issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to
Rupeesfifty crores.

As per requirements of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the issue size of this rights issue is below 5,000 Lakh,
therefore this Letter of Offer has been filed with the NSE. On receipt of the in-principle approval from NSE, the
final Letter of Offer will be filed with Stock Exchange and will be submitted to SEBI for information and
dissemination purpose as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION

Out of our Promoter and Promoter Group, their letters dated 1% January, 2024, have given their confirmation
regarding their intention to subscribe to this Rights Issue jointly and / or severaly. However, the other
promoters and members of the promoter group have not given their assent/dissent regarding their intention to
subscribe in thisissue. The extent of renouncement, if any, shall be finalized before the filing of Letter of Offer
with Stock Exchange. In the event the Promoter decides to renounce its Right Entitlement in the favour of third
party, minimum subscription criteria provided under regulation 86(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations shall

apply.

In accordance with Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum
subscription of at least 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate
basis, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue
Closing Date. If there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our
Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws. The above is subject
to the terms mentioned under “Terms of the Issue” on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of our Company and related information as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, prior to

and after the proposed Issue, is set forth below:

(In X lakhs, except share data)

Particulars

Agoregate
Nominal Value

Aggregate Value
at Issue Price

Authorized Equity Share capital

1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lacs Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10
each.

1,500.00

I ssued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital beforethis|ssue

1,07,01,700 (One Crore Seven Lacs One Thousand Only) Equity
Shares of Rs.10 each.

1070.17

Present Issuein terms of this Draft Letter of Offer @@ G

[®] ([®] Thousand) Issue of Equity Shares, each at a premium of
[®]/- (Rupees [e] Only) per Equity Share, at an Issue Price of X [e]/-
(Rupees[e]) per Equity Share

[e]

[e]

I ssued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital after the | ssue

[¢] ([®]) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

[e]

Subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital

[e] ([e]) fully paid-up Equity Shares

[e]

Securities premium account

Before the Issue (as on September 30, 2023)

2385.77

After the I ssuel©

[e]

Notes:. -

1. This Issue has been authorized by a resolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on December 22,
2023 pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The terms and conditions of the Issue including the Rights Entitlement and Issue Price, have been

approved by the Board of Directorsin their meeting held on [e].

3. The Directorsin their meeting held on [e] and [e] have approved the Record Date and the I ssue Schedule,

respectively.

4. Assuming full subscription for and Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares.

5. Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment, Allotment and deduction of | ssue expenses.

NOTESTO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

1. Detailsof outstanding warrants, outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which

are convertible at alater dateinto Equity Shares

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company does not have any outstanding warrants,
outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which are convertible at a later date into

Equity Shares.

2. Details of Equity Shares held by the promoter and promoter group including the details of lock-in,

pledge of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group, including
details of Equity Shares which are locked-in, pledged or encumbered can be accessed on the website of NSE
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at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding
pattern?symbol=UCL & tabl ndex=sme

. Details of Equity Shares acquired by the promoters and promoter group in the last one year prior to
thefiling of this Draft Letter of Offer

Our promoters and promoter group does not acquire Equity Shares in the last one year prior to the filing of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

. Intention and participation by the promoter and promoter group

Out of our Promater and Promoter Group, their letter dated 01% January, 2024, have given their confirmation
regarding their intention to subscribe to this Rights Issue jointly and / or severally. However, the other
promoters and members of the promoter group have not given their assent/dissent regarding their intention to
subscribe in this issue. In the event the Promoter decides to renounce its Right Entitlement in the favour of
third party, minimum subscription criteria provided under regulation 86(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

shall apply.

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the
minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an
aggregate basis, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from
the Issue Closing Date in accordance with the SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DILL/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021. If there is a delay in making refunds beyond
such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates
as prescribed under the applicable laws.

No person connected with this Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner,
whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise to any Investor for making an application in this Issue,
except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the I ssue.

. The ex-rights price of the Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of SEBI SAST Regulations is X [®]/-.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares outstanding as on the date

of this Letter of Offer. The Rights Equity Shares, when issued, shall be fully paid-up. For details on the
terms of this Issue, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 94.

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares.
. Shareholding Pattern of our company
The details of the shareholding pattern of our Company as on October 05, 2023 can be accessed on the

website  of NSE a  https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-sharehol ding-
pattern?symbol=UCL & tabl ndex=sme.

The details of shareholders of our Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up capital as on October 05,
2023 can be accessed on the website of NSE at https.//www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-
filings-sharehol ding-pattern?symbol=U CL & tabl ndex=sme.
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OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

Our Company proposes to utilize the Net Proceeds to:

1. Toaugment the existing and incremental working capital requirement of our company; and

2. General Corporate Purposes

The main object clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the existing
activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised through the Issue. Further, we confirm that the
activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the object clause of our Memorandum
of Association.

ISSUE PROCEEDS

The details of |ssue Proceeds are set forth in the following table:

(< in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds from the | ssug? Upto 300.00
Less. Estimated Issue related Expenses [o]
Net Proceeds from the | ssue* [o]

# Assuming full subscription and Allotment;

*The Issue size will not exceed ¥ 300.00 Lakh. If there is any reduction in the amount on account of or at the
time of finalization of Issue Price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against General
Corporate Purpose.

REQUIREMENT OF FUNDSAND UTILISATION OF NET PROCEEDS

The intended use of the Net Proceeds of the Issue by our Company is set forth in the following table:

(< in Lakhs)
N Particulars Amount
No.
1. To augment the existing and incremental working capital requirement of our company [e]
2. Generd Corporate Purposes’ [o]
Total Net Proceeds* [e]

#The amount to be utilized for General corporate purposes will not exceed 25.00% of the Gross Proceeds;
*To be determined on finalization of the Issue Price and updated in the Letter of Offer at the time of filing with
the BSE.

UTILIZATION OF NET PROCEEDSAND SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the aforesaid objects in accordance with the estimated schedule
of implementation and deployment of funds is set forth in the table below:

(% in Lakhs)
Estimated Estimated
Amount
to be deployment of | deployment of
S deploved Net Proceeds | Net Proceeds
: Particulars eploy for the | for the
No. from . . : .
Financial Year | Financial Year
Net ; ;
Proceeds ending March | ending March
31, 2024 31, 2025
1 To augment the existing and incremental working | [e] [e] [e]
' capital requirement of our company
2. | General Corporate Purposes’ [o] [o] [e]
Total Net Proceeds* [o] [o] [o]

#The amount to be utilized for General corporate purposes will not exceed 25.00% of the Gross Proceeds;
* Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted
per the Rights Entitlement ratio.
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The above fund requirements are based on our current business plan, management estimates and have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. Our Company’s funding requirements and deployment schedule
are subject to revision in the future at the discretion of our Board and will not be subject to monitoring by any
independent agency. In view of the competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, we may have
to revise our business plan from time to time and consequently, our funding requirements may also change. Our
historical funding requirements may not be reflective of our future funding plans. We may have to revise our
funding requirements, and deployment from time to time on account of various factors such as economic and
business conditions, increased competition and other external factors which may not be within our control. This
may entail rescheduling the proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds and changing the allocation of funds from
its planned allocation at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable law. Further, in
case the Net Proceeds are not completely utilized in a scheduled Fiscal Year due to any reason, the same would
be utilised (in part or full) in the next Fiscal Year/ subsequent period as may be determined by our Company, in
accordance with applicable law. For further details, please see the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on
page 20 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

In case of any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for any of the Objects of the Issue or a
shortfall in raising requisite capital from the Net Proceeds, such additional funds for a particular activity will be
met through means available to us, including by way of incremental debt and/or internal accruals. If the actual
utilisation towards any of the Objects is lower than the proposed deployment, such balance will be used for
future growth opportunities including funding other existing Objects, if required and will be used towards
general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilized towards general corporate purpose
will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue in accordance with applicable law.

MEANS OF FINANCE

The funding requirements mentioned above are based on our Company’s internal management estimates and
have not been appraised by any bank, financial institution, or any other external agency. They are based on
current circumstances of our business and our Company may have to revise these estimates from time to time on
account of numerous factors beyond our control, such as market conditions, competitive environment, costs of
commodities or interest rate fluctuations. We intend to finance the abovementioned objects from the Net
Proceeds. Accordingly, our Company is not required to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable
means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Issue
or through existing identifiable internal accruas in terms of the provisions of Regulation 62(1)(c) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

DETAILSOF THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The detailsin relation to objects of the I ssue are set forth herein below:

1. Toaugment the existing and incremental working capital requirement of our company

We fund the majority of our working capital requirements in the ordinary course of our business from our
internal accruals. We operate in a highly competitive and dynamic market conditions and may have to revise our
estimates from time to time on account of external circumstances, business or strategy, foreseeable opportunity.

Consequently, our fund requirements may aso change.

The details of estimation of Working Capital Requirement (on a standalone basis), is as under:

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, September March 31, March 31,
2023 30, 2023 2024 2025

(Audited) (Unaudited) | (Projected) | (Projected)
Current Assets
Inventories 649.28 618.05 645.00 695.00
Trade Receivables 904.98 948.69 962.30 995.30
Cash and Cash Equivaents 22.19 8.53 5.50 10.50
Short-term loans and advances 646.15 552.20 325.00 410.00
Other Current Assets 0 95.60 105.00 125.00
Total Current Assets (1) 2222.60 2223.07 2042.80 2235.80
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 393.48 700.56 550.00 610.00
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Particulars March 31, September March 31, March 31,
2023 30, 2023 2024 2025

(Audited) (Unaudited) | (Projected) | (Projected)

Trade Payables 543.95 661.10 572.00 605.00

Other Current Liabilities 216.46 35.70 47.50 62.25

Short Term Provision 3157 31.92 50.45 60.10

Total Current Liabilities (2) 1185.46 1429.28 1219.95 1337.35

Working Capital (1-2) 1037.14 793.79 822.85 898.45

Sour ce of Working Capital

Internal Accruals 1037.14 793.79 [e] [o]

| ssue Proceeds - - [o] [o]

Details of Basis of Estimation for holding period levels are as following:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 Mar ch 31, 2025
No. of Days for Trade 0-30 DAYS 0-30 DAYS 0-30 DAYS
Payables
No. of Days for Trade 90-120DAYS 90-120-150 90-120-150

Receivables

The working capital projections made by our Company are based on certain key assumptions, as set out below:

Current Assets

Inventories

In Fiscal Year 2023, the inventory holding period was 45 days. The holding period
has increased from one year to the next, which suggests that the company is
planning to maintain higher stock levels upto 695.00 lakhs in order to fulfil demand
obligations towards its customers.

Trade receivables

In Fiscal 2023 & September 2023 Efficient collections and robust credit policies
maintained a favourable holding of up to 30 days. In September 23 as per the past
experiences, the management is planning to maintain its refined collections
procedures, adjusted credit checks, aligned with industry trends These measures
respond to market dynamics, aiming for a balanced approach between ensuring
healthy cash flows and maintaining positive customer relations

Cash and Bank Balance

The management is expecting a healthy cash flow due to increase in volume of
transactions. The company has already achieved the turnover of Rs.10.50 lakhs
which is almost equivalent to first half. i.e. September 2023.

Short Term Loans and
advances

In order to meet timely supply raw material and maintain favourable relations with
the suppliers, the management is expecting a dight increase in vendor advances.

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables

In Fiscal Year 2023, the trade payable ratio was 90 day which hasincreased in first
half to 120 days i.e. September 2023. The projected trade payable ratio for Fiscal
Year 24 is days, indicating that the company is expecting a good credit term from
its suppliers on bulk purchases of raw material. An effort to optimize payable
cycles while maintaining strong supplier relationships and effective cash
management. The steps taken likely involved a combination of negotiating
extended payment terms with suppliers, refining interna inventory management
practices, and strategically.

Other Current Liabilities
& Short-Term Provision

The management is expecting a healthy cash flow due to increase in volume of
transactions on the contrary, there might be a increase in employee cost,
operational expenses which may show increasing trend in future.

The Issuer Company proposes to utilize Rs. [e] Lakhs of the Net Proceeds in March 31, 2024, respectively
towards its working capital requirements for meeting their future business requirements.

2. General Corporate Purpose




The remaining Net Proceeds, if any, shall be utilized towards general corporate purposes and the amount to be
utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25.00% (Twenty-Five Percent) of the Gross Proceeds.
Such utilization towards general corporate purposes shall be to drive our business growth, including, amongst
other things including but not limited to funding our growth opportunities, strengthening marketing capabilities
and brand building exercises, and strategic initiatives and any other purpose as permitted by applicable laws;
subject to meeting regulatory requirements and obtaining necessary approvals/ consents, as applicable.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the above purposes will be determined based on the amount
actually available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time to time. Our Board
will have flexibility in utilizing surplus amounts, if any.

EXPENSES FOR THE ISSUE

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Legal Advisor to the issue, processing fee to the
SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental
and miscellaneous expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. Our Company will need
approximately X [®]/- towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:

(< in Lakhs)
. % of Estimated |% of
Activity Esnmated Issue Size |Estimated
Xpense :
Expenses Issue Size
Fee to professional service providers and statutory fee | [e] [e] [o]
and Registrar to the Issue
Fees payable to regulators, including depositories, Stock | [e] [e] [o]
Exchanges and SEBI
Statutory ~ Advertising, Marketing, Printing and | [e] [e] [o]
Distribution
Other expenses (including miscellaneous expenses and | [e] [e] [o]
stamp duty)
Total estimated | ssue expenses* [o] [o] [e]

* Qubject to finalization of Basis of Allotment and actual Allotment. In case of any difference between the
estimated Issue related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the
amount allocated towards general corporate purposes.

APPRAISAL OF THE OBJECTS

None of the Objects of the Issue for which the Net Proceeds will be utilized have been appraised by any bank or
financial ingtitution.

STRATEGIC AND/ OR FINANCIAL PARTNERS
There are no strategic and financial partners to the objects of the issue.
BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES

Our Company have not raised or availed any bridge financing facilities for meeting the expenses as stated under
the Objects of the Issue.

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility
to deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our
Company intends to deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second
schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investment as may be alowed by SEBI from
timeto time.

KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONSFOR THE OBJECTS OF THE I SSUE
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No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the Company
for the proposed Objects of the Issue.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

Except as disclosed above, there are no material existing or anticipated transactions in relation to the utilization
of the Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors or Key Management Personnel of our Company and no part
of the Net Proceeds will be paid as consideration to any of them. Except disclosed above, none of our
Promoters, members of Promoter Group or Directors are interested in the Objects of the Issue. No part of the
proceeds from the Issue will be paid by the Company as consideration our directors, or Key Managerial
Personnel.

Our Company does not require any material government and regulatory approvals in relation to the Objects of
the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS
To
The Board of Directors
Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Reg. Off: 88/8 GIDC Phase| Vatva,
Ahmedabad - 382445,
Guijarat, India

Dear Sir(s),

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits available to Ushanti Colour Chem Limited (“the
Company”) and its Shareholder s under Direct and I ndirect tax laws.

We refer to the proposed issue of Equity Shares of Ushanti Colour Chem Limited (“the Company™). We
enclose herewith the annexure showing the current position of special tax benefits available to the Company and
to its shareholders as per the provisions of the direct and indirect tax laws, including the Income-tax Act, 1961,
The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, The Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, The State
Goods and Services Tax Act as passed by respective State Governments from where the Company operates and
applicable to the Company, Customs Act, 1962 and ForeignTrade Policy 2020-2026, as amended by the Finance
Act, 2023, i.e., applicable for the Financial Year 2023-24 relevant to the assessment year 2024-25, presently in
force in India for inclusion in the Draft Letter Of Offer (“DLOQ”) for the proposed Right Issue of Equity Shares
(Partly paid up), as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (“ICDR Regulations”).

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed
under the relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act 1961. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders
to derive these direct tax benefits isdependent upon their fulfilling such conditions.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are neither exhaustive nor conclusive. The contents stated in
the Annexure are based on the information and explanations obtained from the Company. This statement is only
intended to provide general information to guide the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a
substitute for professional tax advice. In view of theindividua nature of the tax consequences and the changing
tax laws, each investor is advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications
arising out of their participation in the Right Issue. We are neither suggesting nor are we advising the investor to
invest money or not to invest money based on this statement.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance whether:

e The Company or its Shareholders will continueto obtain these benefitsin future.
e The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met.
e Therevenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

We hereby give our consent to include enclosed statement regarding the tax benefits available to the Company
and to its shareholders in the DP for the proposed Right Issue of equity shares which the Company intends to
submit to the Securities and Exchange Board of India and National Stock Exchange of India Limited provided
that the bel ow statement of limitation isincluded in the offer document.

LIMITATIONS

Our views expressed in the statement enclosed are based on the facts and assumptions indicated above. No
assurance is given thatthe revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views is
based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on the basis of our
under standing of the business activities and operations of the Company and the interpretation of the existing tax
laws in force in India and its interpretation, which are subject to changefrom time to time. We do not assume
responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. Reliance on the statement is on the express
understanding that we do not assume responsibility towards the investors who may or may not invest in the
proposedissue relying on the statement.
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This statement has been prepared solely in connection with the offering of Equity shares by the Company under

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended (thelssue).

Your sincerely,

FOR M/s. DINV & Co

[Firm Registration No. 115145W]
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

CANIRAV R CHOKSI
Partner

Mem. No. 112249
UDIN: 24112249BK CZHE1733

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25/01/2024
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITSAVAILABLE TO THE
COMPANY AND ITSSHAREHOLDERS

Direct Taxation

Outlined below are the specia tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the Income-tax
Act, 1961 (‘the Act’), as amended by Finance Act, 2023 i.e., applicable for Financial Year 2023-24 relevant to the
Assessment Year 2024-25, presently in forcein India

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITSTO THE COMPANY

Section 115BAA, asinserted vide The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, provides that domestic company
can opt for arate of tax of 22% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) for the financial year 2019-20
onwards, provided the total income of the company is computed without claiming certain specified
incentives/deductions or set-off of losses, depreciation etc. and claiming depreciation determined in the prescribed
manner. In case a company opts for section 115BAA, provisions of Minimum Alternate Tax would not be
applicable and earlier year MAT credit will not be available for set-off. The option needs to be exercised on or
before the due date of filing the tax return. Option once exercised, cannot be subsequently withdrawn for the same
or any other tax year.

The Company has represented to us that it has opted for section 115BAA for the earlier assessment years and
will continue opting for section 115BAA for the assessment year 2024-25 as well.

B. SPECIAL TAXBENEFITSTO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act.

I ndirect Taxation

Outlined below are the special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the Central Goods
and Services Tax Act, 2017/ Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 read with Rules, Circulars, and
Notifications (“GST law”), the Customs Act, 1962, Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (“Customs law”) and Foreign Trade
Policy 2015-2020(“FTP”) (collectively referred as “Indirect Tax”).

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITSTO THE COMPANY

There are no special tax benefits available to the Company under GST law.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Indirect Tax.

FOR M/s. DINV & Co
[Firm Registration No. 115145W]
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

CA NIRAV R CHOK S
Partner

Mem. No. 112249

UDIN: 24112249BK CZHE1733

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25/01/2024
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SECTION IV: ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available
documents from various industry sources. The data may have been re-classified by usfor the purpose of
presentation. Neither we nor any other person connected with the I ssue has independently verified the
information provided in this section. Industry sources and publications, referred to in this section,
generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed
to be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and
their reliability cannot be assured, and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such
information, our company does not take report form any agency about industry overview hence no such
report are availablein material Documents.

GLOBAL OUTLOOK

The global economy remains in a precarious state amid the protracted effects of the overlapping negative
shocks of the pandemic, the Russian Federation’s invasion of Ukraine, and the sharp tightening of monetary
policy to contain high inflation. Global growth is projected to slow significantly in the second half of this year,
with weakness continuing in 2024. Inflation pressures persist, and tight monetary policy is expected to weigh
substantially on activity. Recent banking sector stress in advanced economies will aso likely dampen activity
through more restrictive credit conditions. The possibility of more widespread bank turmoil and tighter
monetary policy could result in even weaker globa growth. Rising borrowing costs in advanced economies
could lead to financia dislocations in the more vulnerable emerging market and developing economies
(EMDEs). In low-income countries, in particular, fiscal positions are increasingly precarious. Comprehensive
policy action is needed at the global and national levels to foster macroeconomic and financial stability. Among
many EMDEs, and especialy in low-income countries, bolstering fiscal sustainability will require generating
higher revenues, making spending more efficient, and improving debt management practices. Continued
international cooperation is also necessary to tackle climate change, support populations affected by crises and
hunger, and provide debt relief where needed. In the longer term, reversing a projected decline in EMDE
potential growth will require reformsto bolster physical and human capital and labor-supply growth.

After growing 3.1 percent last year, the global economy is set to slow substantialy in 2023, to 2.1 percent,
amid continued monetary policy tightening to rein in high inflation, before a tepid recovery in 2024, to 2.4
percent. Tight globa financia conditions and subdued external demand are expected to weigh on growth
across emerging market and developing economies (EMDES). Projections for many countries have been
revised down over the forecast horizon, with upgrades primarily due to stronger-than-expected data at the
beginning of 2023 more than offset by downgrades thereafter. Inflation has been persistent but is projected to
decline gradually as demand weakens and commodity prices moderate, provided longer-term inflation
expectations remain anchored.

Global growth could be weaker than anticipated in the event of more widespread banking sector stress, or if
more persistent inflation pressures prompt tighter-than-expected monetary policy. Weak growth prospects and
heightened risks in the near term compound a long-term slowdown in potential growth, which has been
exacerbated by the overlapping shocks of the pandemic, the Russian Federation’s invasion of Ukraine, and the
sharp tightening of globa financial conditions. This difficult context highlights a multitude of policy
challenges. Recent bank failures call for a renewed focus on globa financial regulatory reform. Global
cooperation is also necessary to accelerate the clean energy transition, mitigate climate change, and provide
debt relief for the rising number of countries experiencing debt distress. At the national level, it isimperative to
implement credible policies to contain inflation and ensure macroeconomic and financial stability, as well as
undertake reforms to set the foundations for arobust, sustainable, and inclusive development path.

Global financial conditions have tightened as a result of policy rate hikes and, to alesser extent, recent bouts of
financial instability. Many banks experienced substantia unrealized losses due to the sharp rise in policy
interest rates. Concerns about the viability of balance sheets of some banksled to depositor flight and market
volatility in the United States and Europe earlier in the year, which were stemmed by a swift and extensive
policy response. Financial markets remain highly sensitive to evolving expectations about the future path of
interest rates of major central banks. Spillovers from banking turmoil in advanced economies to EMDES have
so far been limited. However, countries with more pronounced macroeconomic policy vulnerabilities, as
reflected by lower credit ratings, have experienced slower growth and greater financial stress, including large
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currency depreciations and a sharp widening of sovereign spreads. Projections for 2023 growth in these
economies have fallen by more than half over the past year
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Source; World Bank.

Note: e = estimate (actual data for commaodity prices); f = forecast. WBG = World Bank Group. World Bank
forecasts are frequently updated based on new information. Conseguently,projections presented here may differ
from those contained in other World Bank documents, even if basic assessments of countries’ prospects do not
differ at any given date. For thedefinition of EMDES, developing countries, commodity exporters, and
commodity importers, please refer to table 1.2. EM7 includes Brazil, China, India, Indonesia, Mexico, the
Russian Federation, and Turkiye. The World Bank is currently not publishing economic output, income, or
growth data for Turkmenistan and Replblica Bolivariana de Venezuela owing to lack of reliable data of
adequate quality. Turkmenistan and Republica Bolivariana de Venezuela are excluded from cross-country
Macroeconomic aggregates.

1.

2.

Headline aggregate growth rates are calculated using GDP weights at average 2010-19 prices and market
exchange rates.

GDP growth rates are on a fiscal year basis. Aggregates that include these countries are calculated using
data compiled on a calendar year basis. For India and the Islamic Republic of Iran, the column labeled 2022
refers to FY 2022/23. For Bangladesh, the Arab Republic of Egypt, and Pakistan, the column labeled 2022
refersto FY 2021/22. Pakistan's growth rates are based on GDP at factor cost.

World growth rates are calculated using average 2010-19 purchasing power parity (PPP) weights, which
attribute a greater share of global GDP to emerging market and developing economies (EMDES) than
market exchange rates.

World trade volume of goods and nonfactor services.

Indexes are expressed in nominal U.S. dollars (2010 = 100). Oil refers to the Brent crude oil benchmark.
For weights and composition of indexes, see https://worldbank.org/commodities.

(Source: Global Economic Prospects, June 2023)
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Emerging market and developing economies

EMDE growth is expected to pick up in 2023 almost entirely due to China’s economic reopening. Excluding
China, growth in EMDESs is set to slow markedly. A protracted period of tight domestic m onetary policy, fiscal
consolidation, and weak external demand will curb growth in many EMDESs. Although advanced-economy
banking stress has so far not trandated to EMDE financia sectors, the effects of more restrictive global
financial conditions will remain a headwind to growth, particularly for EMDES with weaker credit ratings. In
LICs, domestic vulnerahilities, increased fragility, and persistently high poverty rates, will continue to weigh
0N economic recoveries.

Recent developmentsin emerging market and developing economies

Indicators of domestic demand in emerging market and developing economies (EMDES), such as consumer
confidence, have started to recover but remain weak. Tighter financial conditions have weighed on activity in
sectors more sensitive to interest rates, such as construction and industrial production, both of which have been
subdued. Tourism has recovered substantially since 2022.
Sources. Bloomberg; Goldman Sachs; Haver
i ek et i e T Analytics; World Bank.

r - e Note: EAP = East Asiaand Pacific; EMDEs =
e emerging market and developing economies.

BEREFERNE ] SERERERE A. Figure shows the simple average of
consumer confidence indices standardized

T ——— R A against their historical values for 12 EMDEs
e (Albania, Argentina, Brazil, China, Colombia,

TAET L PR

Il I - I.a"“’ Hungary, India, Indonesia, Mexico, Pakistan,
B l. —m AR B Thailand, and Tiirkiye). Standard deviations for

I VA rd constituent scores are based on the period from

T e et 2 2015 to the last observation, which is March

2023.

B. Increases in the financial conditions index imply more restrictive conditions. Increases in the EMDE
construction activity proxy indicate greater confidence and increasing year-on-year activity in EMDE
construction sectors. The construction activity proxy is a simple average of z-scores, multiplied by 100, for
variables capturing confidence and activity in construction sectors for 9 EMDEs (Argentina, Brazil, Mexico,
Chile, China, Hungary, Romania, South Africa, and Thailand). EMDE financia conditions is a GDP-weighted
average of the Goldman Sachs financial conditionsindices for 12 EMDESs, lagged by 3 months (that is, the July
2022 value signifies conditionsin April 2022).

C. Figure shows the quarterly growth of industrial production in 31 EMDEs.

D. Figure shows total arrivals for country groups, expressed as a percentage of the same month in 2019.
Sampleincludes 26 EMDEs, of which 5 are EAP.

INDIAN ECONOMY

India, which became the world’s most populous most populous nation in 2023, is defying the overall global
economic slowdown. While growth is expected to moderate somewhat over the next decade, India is expected
to remain akey driver of global growth.

The Indian economy is holding up relatively well amid a challenging global economic backdrop, with GDP
growth of around 6 percent expected for the calendar year 2023 and about 5 percent for 2024, well above other
large economies. Growth is expected to moderate somewhat over the next decade to about 4.5 percent annually,
reflecting primarily a slower rate of capital accumulation and productivity growth. However, Indiais expected
to remain a key driver of global growth, and the expanding market that results should offer global businesses
plenty of growth opportunities.

Short-Term Outlook
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The Indian economy is enjoying robust momentum in 2023. Real gross domestic product (GDP), a broad
measure of expenditures on goods and services, expanded by 6.1 percent in the first quarter compared to the
same quarter a year ago, picking up the pace from last quarter’s 4.5 percent (Chart 1). Growth in the first
quarter was buoyed by investment (green bar in the chart) and net exports (yellow bar), while the contributions
from private and government consumption (light blue and black bars) were relatively muted.

Near-term growth dynamics look broadly favorable. Growth is expected to pick up further in the second
quarter of 2023, though largely related to the low base of the previous year, after which it may sow somewhat
to about 5 percent year over year. Recent readings of economic activity indicators, including purchasing
manager indices and The Conference Board Leading Economic Indicator for India suggest continued growth
ahead. Investment continues to be supported by government capital expenditures. Private consumption is
supported by ongoing labor market improvements, as indicated by rising employment rates, particularly for
women, and falling inflationary pressures. Further support comes from favorable developments in the
agricultural sector, which employes over 40 percent of the Indian workforce.1 Forecasts are pointing to an
expected record harvest, especially of wheat, and a normal monsoon season, though the arrival of an El Nino
weather pattern represents arisk. Net trade, strongly positive in Q1, could moderate somewhat over the course
of 2023 as parts of the global economy are slowing, though India’s services exports continue to boom. On the
other hand, India is a net commodity importer, and so lower commodity prices in 2023 (compared to 2022)
would support growth as they lower costs and improve the trade balance. One example of a lower cost on the
horizon: we forecast Brent oil pricesto average 84 dollarsin 2023 (versus 99 dollarsin 2022)

Chart 1
GDF growth picked up in the first quarter of 2023 on the back of
Investment and exports
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L ong-Term Outlook

Projections for growth over the next decade point to moderate sowing compared to pre-pandemic rates.
Economic growth in India averaged about 7 percent annually in the first two decades of the 2000s. The
pandemic recession and recovery period (2020-2023) saw a substantial downshift in annual average growth to
about 4 percent. Over the next decade, our projections point to annual growth of about 4.5 percent (Chart 2).
These GDP forecasts are informed by projections of the so-called supply-side drivers of growth, namely labor,
capital and total factor productivity (TFP).

Increases in participation rates should lead to a bigger contribution to growth from labor. Over the coming
decade we expect the recent trend of increased participation rates to continue and lead to a larger contribution
of labor input to GDP growth relative to the 2011-2019 period. For example, the employment rate of females
aged 15 and above in urban areas has been on an upward trend, from 16.4 percent in the second quarter of 2018
(first datapoint available of these series) to 20.6 in the first quarter of 2023. The same is true for femae
participation trends in rural areas, though there is less timely data available to confidently make the claim of a
sustained turnaround.

Over the next decade we expect capital to remain the dominant driver of growth, though at a ower rate than
before. This will lead to slower overall GDP growth. Private investment may remain relatively subdued as
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uncertainty and unpredictability in terms of economic policy persists and is constrained by continued low
saving rates. Also, improvements in the supply of labor may also require fewer investments in capital than
would have been the case otherwise. A much faster growth path would (among other things) require a sustained
industrialization drive, which we deem unlikely. Still, despite a dower rate of capital input growth compared to
its own history, the overall rate of growth remains impressive by international comparison and reflects India’s
continued development and catching up potential vis-avisricher economies.

Chanl 2
Projections point to slower GDP growth ahead
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Capital has been the dominant driver growth (red barsin Chart 2). Capital accumulation has been the dominant
driver of growth in India over the last two decades, explaining almost two-thirds of real GDP growth.
However, growth in capital inputs and underlying investment rates have been on a sowing trend across
virtualy al industries since around 2012. This slowdown has been attributed to, among other things, falling
long-term saving rates, balance sheet crises on the part of banks and construction companies, and a weakening
global trade and investment environment in the aftermath of the Global Financia Crisis of 2008/09.4 While
public investment has held up, it was mostly private investment that suffered from these adverse trends. This
culminated in a contribution of capital of about 3 percentage points to average annual GDP growth in the
pandemic period of 2020-2023 (Chart 2), versus about 4.5 percentage pointsin the previous decades.

Despite challenges, India should remain among the fastest growing economies globally in the next
decade. Despite being a lower-middle income economy, a relatively young and large population, and a
growing middle class should represent plenty of growth opportunities for business worldwide. Furthermore,
wide use of English and a relatively skilled workforce underpin the role of India as the world’s back office
(e.g., IT services, administrative support, consultancy services). India is also benefiting from relocation of
production activities, mainly out of China. But overall, we think the scope of industridization in India is
relatively limited. Despite decades of policy objectives, India’s industrial base remains relatively
underdeveloped. Finaly, geopolitical developments are also relatively benign for India, as Western political
leadersincreasingly see India as a strategic partner in the region to counter the influence of China.

GLOBALE CHEMICAL INDUSTRY

Chemicals Global Market Report 2023 — By Type (General Chemical Product, Printing Inks, Toiletries, Soap
And Cleaning Compounds, Adhesives, Paints And Coatings, Pesticide And Other Agricultural Chemicals,
Chemical Fertilizers, Synthetic Rubber And Fibers, Plastic Material And Resins, Ethyl Alcohol And Other Basic
Organic Chemical, Other Basic Inorganic Chemical, Synthetic Dye And Pigment, Industrial Gas,
Petrochemicals), By Type Of Intermediate Chemicals (Methanol, Ethylene Oxide, Propylene Oxide), By End
User (Pharmaceuticals,
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Agrochemicals, Water Treatment, Construction, Paints and Dyes, Oil and Gas, Rubber Chemicals, Surfactants,
Personal Care, Other End-Users) — Market Size, Trends, And Global Forecast 2023-2032.

The global chemicals market size will grow from $4700.13 hillion in 2022 to $5079.29 hillion in 2023 at a
compound annua growth rate (CAGR) of 8.1%. The Russia-Ukraine war disrupted the chances of global
economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, at least in the short term. The war between these two
countries has led to economic sanctions on multiple countries, a surge in commaodity prices, and supply chain
disruptions, causing inflation across goods and services and affecting many markets across the globe. The
market size of chemicalsis expected to grow to $6851.59 hillion in 2027 at a CAGR of 7.8%.

The countries covered in the chemicals market report are Argentina, Australia, Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium,
Brazil, Canada, Chile, China, Colombia, Czech Republic, Denmark, Egypt, Finland, France, Germany, Hong
Kong, India, Indonesia, Ireland, Isragl, Italy, Iran, Japan, Maaysia, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zealand, Nigeria,
Norway, Peru, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Russia, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, South Africa, South
Korea, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Thailand, Turkey, UAE, UK, Ukraine, USA, and Vietnam.

(Source: https: www.thebusi nessresearchcompany.com)

The chemical industry category offers data on the various chemical segments, including inorganic and organic
chemistry, petrochemicals, agricultural chemicals, paint and coatings, materials science and composites, and
others. Statista’'s chemical industry analysis includes production, consumption, and trade figures for a wide
variety of chemical products, in addition to the key financial indicators and data about the leading companiesin
thisindustry.

Chemical products make up one of the world's largest industries, partly because of the ubiquity of chemicalsin

2023 ranking of the global leading chemical companies based on
revenue (in billion U.S. dollars)
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the products used in everyday life, in addition to the breadth of chemical products that exist. Although the
chemicals industry has developed alongside the industrial development of the world, this established industry is
undergoing a period of change.

With Asia already standing as the industry’s largest revenue-generating region, it is fitting that China will
become the center of the world’s chemical industry in the coming years. Chemical sales growth will likely be
challenged by new environmental regulations. Emergent digital technologies may pave the way for increased
productivity and shift the existing chemical business paradigms.

BASF, amultinational chemical company headquartered in Ludwigshafen, Germany, has retained its position as
the world's largest chemical company by annual revenue for several consecutive years. The company's diverse
portfolio has led to impressive financial results, with a revenue surpassing 94.83 billion U.S. dollars in 2023.
Dow Chemical and LyondellBasell, both headquartered in the United States, have aso emerged as leading
global chemical companies, consistently ranking among the top five.
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Sour ce: www.stati sta.com

The global dyes and pigments market size was valued at USD 38.2 hillion in 2022 and is expected to expand at
a compound annua growth rate (CAGR) of 5.3% from 2023 to 2030. Increasing demand from various
application industries such as textiles, paints & coatings, construction, and plastics is expected to drive the
market growth. Major producers are actively venturing into enhancing their products by utilizing advanced
technologies for the efficient removal of hazardous pollutants during the manufacturing process. Manufacturers
are likely to experience varied production costs due to volatility in the prices of raw materials, such as benzene.
A wide distribution network in the market is achieved through both brick & mortar stores and online retailing.

U.S. Dyes & Pigments Market BevE
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Product Insights

The reactive dyes segment dominated the market with a revenue share of more than 57% in 2022. These
products are composed of highly colored organic substances and have primary applications in tinting textiles.
They have a high resistance to fading and are available in a range of bright shades, which makes them suitable
for coloring cotton and rayon. Moreover, they can form a covaent bond with fibres during the process of
dyeing. It also includes a parent dye, a linking group, and an active group. These advantages enable them to
inhibit characteristics, which are superior and preferable over other dyes used in cellulose fibres. The segment is
estimated to expand further at the fastest CAGR from 2023 to 2030.

Inorganic pigments earned a higher share in the market as compared to organic pigments due to properties, such
as good wetting, darker color, and leanness. However, the organic pigments segment is anticipated to register the
fastest CAGR of 5.7%, in terms of revenue, from 2023 to 2030. Stringent regulations affecting the inorganic
pigments demand are also likely to provide positive scope for organic pigments through internal substitution of
the product.

the concrete admixtures market is estimated to grow from USD 18.6 billion in 2023 to USD 25.9 hillion by
2028, at a CAGR of 6.9%. One of the major reasons for making a positive outlook for the concrete admixtures
market is the mounting urbanization in various countries worldwide, the emerging construction industry in
several countries such as China and India, and the enriched quality of construction. Also, technological
advancements in the construction industry are pushing the market. Due to these reasons, the consumption of
concrete admixtures has grown significantly.
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CONCRETE ADMIXTURES MARKET

GLOBAL FORECAST TO 2028 (USD BN)
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INDIAN CHEMICAL INDUSTRY
Introduction

Covering more than 80,000 commercial products, India’s chemical industry is extremely diversified and can be
broadly classified into bulk chemicals, speciaty chemicals, agrochemicals, petrochemicals, polymers, and
fertilisers. India is the 6th largest producer of chemicals in the world and 3rd in Asia, contributing 7% to India’s
GDP. Indias chemica sector, which is currently estimated to be worth US$ 220 billion in 2022 and is
anticipated to grow to US$ 300 hillion by 2025 and US$ 1 trillion by 2040.

Globally, India is the fourth-largest producer of agrochemicals after the United States, Japan and China. India
accounts for 16-18% of the
world production of dyestuffs
and dye intermediates. As per
Chemexcil (Chemicals Export
Promotion  Council), India’s
agrochemicals  export  was
estimated to be a US$ 1.04
billion from April 2023-June
2023  (Provisional). Indian
colorants industry has emerged
as a key player with a global
market share of ~15%. The
country’s chemicals industry is
delicensed, except for few
hazardous chemicals. India has
traditionally been a world leader
in generics and biosimilars and a
major Indian vaccine
manufacturer, contributing more
than 50% of the global vaccine
supply. India holds a strong
position in exports and imports
of chemicals at a global level and ranks 14th in exports and 8th in imports a globa level (excluding
pharmaceuticals). From April 2023 to June 2023 (provisiona), Indias dye exports (Dyes and Dye | ntermediates)
totalled US$ 561.56 million.
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The domestic chemicals sector's small and medium enterprises are expected to showcase 18-23% revenue
growth in FY22, owing to an improvement in domestic demand and higher realisation due to high prices of
chemicals. Domestic demand is expected to rise from US$ 170 billion-US$ 180 hillion in 2021 to US$ 850
billion-US$ 1,000 billion by 2040.

India’s proximity to the Middle East, the world’s source of petrochemicals feedstock, enables it to benefit
Markets Size

The Indian chemicals industry stood at US$ 178 billion in 2019 and is expected to reach US$ 304 billion by
2025 registering a CAGR of 9.3%. The demand for chemicals is expected to expand by 9% per annum by 2025.
The chemical industry is expected to contribute US$ 383 billion to India’s GDP by 2030.

India has traditionally been aworld leader in generics and biosimilars and major Indian vaccine manufacturers,
contributing more than 50% of the global vaccine supply. Chemicals and petrochemicals demand in India is
expected to nearly triple and reach US$ 1 trillion by 2040.

An investment of Rs. 8 lakh crore (US$ 107.38 hillion) is estimated in the Indian chemicals and petrochemicals

sector by 2025. The speciaty chemicals constitute 22% of the total chemicals and petrochemicals market in
India. The demand for speciaty chemicalsis expected to rise at a 12% CAGR in 2019-22.

Chemical industry market size (USS$ billion)

CAGR 9.3%

FY19 | FY20 Fy21 FY22 | FY23 FY24 FY25

The Department of Chemicals & Petrochemicals intend to bring PLI in chemical & petrochemical sector and
will redraft the Petroleum, Chemicals and Petrochemicals Investment Region (PCPIR) guidelines.

Indian manufacturers have recorded a CAGR of 11% in revenue between FY15 and FY21, increasing India’s
share in the global specialty chemicals market to 4% from 3%, according to the Crisil report. A reviva in
domestic demand and robust exports will spur a 50% YoY increase in the CAPEX of specialty chemicals
manufacturersin FY 22 to Rs. 6,000-6,200 crore (US$ 815-842 million). Revenue growth is likely to be 19-20%
YoY in FY 22, up from 9-10% in FY 21, driven by recovery in domestic demand and higher realisations owing to
rising crude oil prices and better exports.

Moreover, according to the CRISIL report, the specialty chemicals market in India would grow faster than
China, increasing its market share to 6% by 2026 from 3-4% in fiscal 2021. A shift in the global supply chain
brought on by the China+1 strategy and a resurgence in domestic end-user demand will fuel significant revenue
growth of 18-20% in 2022 and 14-15% in 2023.
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Moreover, according to the CRISIL report, the specialty chemicals market in India would grow faster than
China, increasing its market share to 6% by 2026 from 3-4% in fiscal 2021. A shift in the global supply chain
brought on by the China+1 strategy and a resurgence in domestic end-user demand will fuel significant revenue
growth of 18-20% in 2022 and 14-15% in 2023.

Investments and Recent Developments
A few recent devel opments/investmentsin the Indian chemical sector are asfollows:

»  From April 2023 to June 2023 (Provisional), exports of organic (US$ 1.88 billion) & inorganic (US$
483.16 million) chemicals were estimated at US$ 2.37 billion.

»  Imports of organic (US$ 3.83 hillion) and inorganic (US$ 1.84 billion) chemicals totalled US$ 5.63 billion
from April 2023 to June 2023 (Provisional).

»  From April 2023 to June 2023 (Provisional), exports of castor oil, essential oil and Cosmetics and others
stood at US$ 1.01 billion.

»  Chemica production reached 926.99 million metric tonnes (MMT) in May 2023, while petrochemical
production reached 1,786.39 MMT. In May 2023, production levels of various chemicals were as follows:
Soda Ash: 259.52 MMT, Caustic Soda: 287.49 MMT, Liquid Chlorine: 207.18 MMT, Formaldehyde:
28.74 MT and Pesticides and Insecticides: 22.27 MMT.

» In August 2023, the Prime Minister announced a subsidy of US$ 120.93 hillion (Rs. 10 lakh crore) for
providing cheaper Ureato farmers.

» In July 2023, Globa Chemicals and Petrochemicals Manufacturing Hubs in India (GCPMH 2023) was
organized in Delhi, India

» In June 2023, Himadri Speciality Chemical invested US$ 7.01 million (Rs. 58 crore) in Sicona Battery
Technologies Pty Ltd, (Sydney) for a 12.79% stake.

> InJune 2023, Mumbai-based UPL Ltd, will hive off its specialty chemicals business on a ump sae basis
to wholly-owned arm UPL Speciality Chemicals Ltd for US$ 431.96 million (Rs. 3,572 crore).

»  InJune 2023, Reliance plansto invest US$ 9.06 hillion (Rs. 75,000 crore) over 5 years to expand its oil to
chemical business.

»  Tata Chemicals intend to invest about US$ 967.45 million (Rs. 8,000 crore) over the next 2-3 years as
capex on an expansion spree that includes scaling businesses sustainably.

» InMay 2023, Reliance Industries plans to set up 10 GW solar project in Andhra Pradesh.

» InMarch 2023, Chennai awaits more bio-CNG plants to enable switch to clean energy.

»  On February 15th, 2023, Indian Speciality Chemical Manufacturer’ Association (ISCMA) signed an MoU
with USIIC to promote trade in speciality chemicals.

» In February 2023, the company is setting up a new formaldehyde plant with 300 TPD capacity at the
existing manufacturing facility at GIDC, Ankleshwar in Gujarat.

» In January 2023, Tata Chemicals Europe signs pact with Essar-backed Vertex for sale of low-carbon
hydrogen.

»  In December 20222, GMM Pfaudler Ltd has entered into an agreement on December 8, 2022 to acquire

Mixel France SAS and its wholly owned subsidiary Mixel Agitator Co. Ltd. for US$ 7.63 million.
Government Initiatives

The government has started various initiatives such as mandating BIS-like certification for imported chemicals
to prevent dumping of cheap and substandard chemicals into the country.

The Indian government recognises chemical industry as a key growth element and forecast to increase share of
the chemical sector to ~25% of the GDPin the manufacturing sector by 2025.

e Government to open 25,000 Jan Aushadhi Kendras to make medicines available at affordable prices.

e InApril 2023, Cabinet approves the National Medical Devices Policy, 2023.

e The Department of Chemicals & Petrochemicalsintend to bring PLI in chemical & petrochemica sector and
will redraft the Petroleum, Chemicals and Petrochemicals Investment Region (PCPIR) guidelines.

e Under the Union Budget 2023-24, the government alocated Rs. 173.45 crore (US$ 20.93 million) to the
Department of Chemicals and Petrochemicals.

e PLI schemes have been introduced to promote Bulk Drug Parks, with a budget of Rs. 1,629 crore (US$
213.81 million).

e The Government of India is considering launching a production linked incentive (PLI) scheme in the
chemical sector to boost domestic manufacturing and exports.
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e A 2034 vision for the chemicals and petrochemicals sector has been set up by the government to explore
opportunities to improve domestic production, reduce imports and attract investments in the sector. The
government plans to implement a production-link incentive system with 10-20% output incentives for the
agrochemical sector; to create an end-to-end manufacturing ecosystem through the growth of clusters.

e |n October 2020, the government urged players in the agrochemicals industry to come out with new
molecules of global standards for the farmers' benefit, while CropLife India, the industry body, pitched for
stable policies and regulatory regimes to boost growth in the sector.

e 100% FDI is alowed under the automatic route in the chemicals sector with few exceptions that include
hazardous chemicals. FDI inflows in the chemicals sector (other than fertilisers) reached US$ 21.48 hillion
between April 2000-June 2023.

e The government has proposed several incentives for setting up a sourcing or manufacturing platform within
an Indian SEZ:

» Effective April 1, 2020, 100% Income Tax exemption on export income for SEZ units for the first five
years, 50% for the next five years thereafter and 50% of the ploughed back export profit for next five
years.

» Single window clearance for central and state-level approvals.

» Duty free import/domestic procurement of goods for development, operation and maintenance of SEZ
units.

o |n December 2020, the PCPIR policy is being completely redesigned. Under the new PCPIR Policy 2020-35,
a combined investment of Rs. 10 lakh crore (US$ 142 billion) is targeted by 2025, Rs. 15 lakh crore (US$
213 billion) by 2030 and Rs. 20 lakh crore (US$ 284 billion) by 2035 in all PCPIRs across the country. The
four PCPIRs are expected to generate employment for ~33.83 lakh people. ~3.50 lakh persons have been
employed in direct and indirect activities related to PCPIRs by the end of 2020. The Gujarat Infrastructure
Development Corporation (GIDC) has made an investment of around US$ 2.09 billion (Rs. 17,317 crore) for
infrastructure development in the PCPIR.

Road Ahead

Despite the current pandemic situation, the Indian chemical industry has numerous opportunities considering the
supply chain disruption in China and trade conflict among the US, Europe and China. Anti-pollution measures
in Chinawill also create opportunities for the Indian chemical industry in specific segments.

Additional support, in terms of fiscal incentives, such as tax breaks and specia incentives through PCPIRS or
SEZs to encourage downstream units will enhance production and development of the industry. The dedicated
integrated manufacturing hubs under Petroleum, Chemicals and Petrochemicals Investment Regions (PCPIR)
policy to attract an investment of Rs. 20 lakh crore (US$ 276.46 billion) by 2035.

To bring about structural changes in the working of domestic chemical industry, future investments should not
only focus on transportation of fuels such as petrol and diesel, but also on crude-to-chemicals complexes or
refineries set up to cater to the production of chemicals.

(Source: www.ibef.org)
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our
business plans and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You
should read the chapter titled “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 16 of this Draft Letter of
Offer, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements and also the section “Risk
Factors” for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-
looking statements. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all referencesto a particular fiscal are to
the twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year.

The financial information used in this section, unless otherwise stated, is derived from our Financial
Information, as restated prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, Companies Act and SEBI Regulations. The
following information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with, the more detailed
financial and other information included in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the information contained in the
sectionstitled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Information” beginning on pages 20 and 75, respectively.

OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS:

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Ushanti Colour Chem Private Limited’ under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 at Gujarat vide Certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat on
May 12, 1993. Consequently, it was converted into a public limited company pursuant to shareholders
resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on February 19, 2018 and the name
of our Company was changed to ‘Ushanti Colour Chem Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent upon Conversion of Private Company to Public Limited dated March 07, 2018 was issued by
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Ahmedabad. The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is
U24231GJ1993PL C019444.

Our Company is in the business of manufacturing and trading of various colours of dyestuffs since 1993 till
2013. After getting permission for manufacturing of CPC Blue Crude dyestuff and witnessing the growing
demand of our CPC Blue product our Company decided to focus into business of manufacturing on one specific
product type and specialise in it. Our Company manufactures reactive and direct dyestuffs also known as
Synthetic Organic Dyes with an integrated production process. The company aso manufactures Copper
Phthal ocyanine, Blue Cued which are one of the major raw materials used for manufacturing of Dyestuffs. The
pigment and dyestuffs manufactured by us caters to the raw material requirement of textile, garment, cotton,
leather, nylon, paper, wool, ink, wood, plastic and paint industries. We concentrate in manufacturing “Turquoise
Blue” Dyestuffs and Pigments. The Company has 3 manufacturing facilities situated together at Vatva GIDC in
Gujarat. The facilities are spread over 2,739 sg. meters in total area. Our company aso has its own Ice
generation machinery, further it recovers Ammonium Carbonate from its effluent stream which are reused in the
plant as well as sold to the Soda Ash Industry reducing wastage giving us incrementa revenue. The Company
currently has a production capacity of approx. 2,520 tons per annum. The manufacturing facilities are equipped
with requisite machineries to keep a constant check on quality. The company is an 1SO 9001:2015 certified
company certifying the quality of the product our company manufactures.

Our Company manufactures dyes of various concentrations which influences the pricing of the product. We
procure quality raw materials from Chemical industries present in Domestic markets who manufactures
intermediates of dyestuffs. Our focus on “Turquoise Blue” Dyestuffs has assisted us to be become a niche player
in the segment. Our company generates most of its revenue from export operations and has received from
Certificate of Recognition as Export House, products of the company are exported to countries like, Turkey,
Egypt, Bangladesh, Pakistan, Indonesia, China etc. We have a dedicated Research & Development and Quality
Control Team, which looks after the quality of the product we manufacture. Our customers are mostly traders
who sell directly to textile manufacturers as well as other industries. Our relationship with our traders and
esteemed customer base is key factors of our successin the industry.

The trading activity of our Company is dependent upon the orders received from its customers. In case of a
bigger order which Company is not being able to fulfil out of its existing manufactured products and in order to
meet such demand, the Company gets the differential quantity from the market. In alternate scenario, in case of
a bundled order where the Company does not manufacture certain products from the total order received,
Company fulfils the demand by getting such products from the market. To sum up, the trading business of our
Company is completely order driven.
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Our Company is promoted and managed by Mr. Mauna Gandhi and Mr. Minku Gandhi. With decades of experience in this
industry, our promoters along with the team of management are actively involved in the dayto- day affairs of our company’s
operations adding valuable knowledge and experience required for sustainable growth.

Our presence in the business for more than 2 decades have aided us to create a brand image coupled with the industry
experience we possess; our brand is well received by the market and we aim to continue to further strengthen our brand by
supplying qualitative products at competitive prices across the globe.

Our Company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities are as below:

Registered Office:88/8, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445, Gujarat, India

Manufacturing facility:

Unit 1 - 88/6, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445, Gujarat, India
Unit 2 - 88/7, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445, Gujarat, India
Unit 3 - 88/8, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445, Gujarat, India

OUR PRODUCTS:

Product Name

Product

Description

Turquoise Blue
Dyes

Direct/ Reactive Turquoise Blue
dyes are aclass of highly coloured
organic substances, primarily used
for textiles, paper and ink. The
Reactive Dyestuffs attach
themselves to their substrates by a
chemical reaction that forms a
covalent bond between the
molecule of dye and fibre. The
Direct Dyestuffs have multiple
applications in Textiles, Inks,
Paper but do not react with the
substrates.

Alpha Blue

Thisis a product manufactured by
pigmentation of CPC Blue Crude
and has very good applications in
Textile, Plastic, Paper, Ink, Paint
and many other industries.

Copper
Phthalocyanine
Blue

A bright, crystaline, synthetic
blue pigment from the group of
Phthalocyanine dyes. It is highly
valued for its superior properties
such as light fastness, tinting
strength, covering power and
resistance to the effects of alkalis
and acids. It is a Raw Material for
production of Turquoise Blue
Dyestuffs, Pigment Green,
Pigment Alpha Blue & Pigment
Beta Blue.

The Product wise revenue of our Company for the year period March 31, 2023 and for the six months

period ended September 30, 2023, are asfollows: -

Particulars March 31, In September In
2023(inX | Percentage | 30,2023 | Percentage
lacs) (%) (inXlacs) (%)
Turquoise Blue Dyes 2815.95 66.5 1563.35 75.88
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AlphaBlue 964.36 22.8 37175 18.04

Copper Phthalocyanine Blue 402.83 09.5 4.72 0.22

Total 47.08 01.2 120.53 5.84

The State wise revenue of our Company for the year period March 31, 2023 and for the six months period
ended September 30, 2023, are asfollows: -

Particulars March In September In
31, 2023 | Percentage | 30, 2023 | Percentage
(in R (%) (inXlacs) (%)
lacs)
Gujarat 2300.91 54.40 1172.16 56.89
Madhya Pradesh - - 1.03 0.05
Maharashtra 328.43 07.76 137.80 6.69
Haryana 1.23 0.03 - -
Punjab 11.62 0.27 12.86 0.62
Rajasthan 447.52 10.58 91.67 4.45
West Bengal 11.50 0.27 - -
Export 1128.79 26.69 644.83 31.30
Total 4230.00 100.00 2060.35 100

Top Ten suppliers

Particulars (in  lacs) FY 2023 September, 2023
Top 10 total purchase value 1913.92 708.65
Top 10 total purchasesin percentage 62.11% 50.16%

Top Ten customers

Particulars (in X lacs) FY 2023 September, 2023
Top 10 total salesvaue 221212 1049.90

Top 10 total salesin percentage 50.84% 50.97%
END USERS:

We cater to International and Domestic customers. Currently we offer our products through traders. We
manufacture dyes that are used for dying cloths in textile and garment industry and are sold as per the orders
received by parties either directly from manufacturers or traders.

RAW MATERIALS:
Our company procures more than 10 raw materials of different types and nature. Mgjor raw materials of the
company are Vinyle Sulhpone, Thionyl Chloride, Soda Ash, Ammonium Molybdate, etc. We meet our raw

materials requirements by procuring such materials from domestic market.

OUR MANUFACTURING PROCESS:
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Material Material . -
— . . —> In-putting —> Synthesizing
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1. Material procurement:

We intend to maintain low-cum-sufficient level of inventory. To achieve this, we plan and forecast our
productions and accordingly the order for raw material is placed. Our production team and sales team are in
constant touch which helps us to order optimal level of raw material. Further, our technical team ensures that the
raw materials we procure are meeting the quality standards. Once the raw materials are procured from nearby
suppliers, it is stored in our manufacturing facility having adequate storage capacity.

2. Material Inspection:

All materials procured or manufactured at our plants are properly tested for its purity and only after the approval
of the purity, the same are used for further process.

3. In-putting:

Once tested, the raw materials are used and charged at required pressure and temperature as per the product
designsto ensure best yields.

4. Synthesizing:

To maintain the optimum reaction conditions at every reaction stage, the chemical team controls the whole
synthesizing/reaction process according to the procedure manual for each product. Synthesis/Reaction is the
processin which al the elements of the dye are mixed together with required technical and chemical criteria

5. Process|nspection:

To maintain the primary product after synthesizing in best quality, the in-house inspection team with requisite
technical expertise in the quality-management department makes strict inspections of important items and
assesses them to determine whether they are good enough for further processing.

6. Drying:

In the spray drying process, moisture from the dye is evaporated through heating while the powder form of dye
is collected in bags. Spray-drying machines are usualy large in size where heating and the entire process of
drying the dyestuff is continuously followed.

7. Blending:

The skilled technicians of production team as well as quality control team blend the material of different batches
to make a good and homogeneous lot as per the quality requirements of the customers.
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8. Final Inspection:

The inspection team of the quality management department collects samples from all manufactured items by lot
to compare with the standard samples through the spectrophotometer and dyeing test, and thereby in case their
colouring, penetration, fastness, etc. fall within the minimum allowable limits of error, the manufactured items
shall be allowed to be packed as final products.

9. Packaging:
Once the product meets all the required quality criteria, they are packed into baggage like bags, Jumbo bags,
boxes, MS drums etc. as per the requirement of the customer. Packaging is done keeping in mind the safety of

the products and at the same time ensures low |eakages into open environment.

10. Storage & Delivery:

After proper packaging as per the customer’s order, they are either directly loaded into trucks for shipment or
they are stored in the warehouse inside the premises itself. Necessary care is taken to avoid any contamination
of the product. Exports orders are made through Mundra Port, Pipavav Port, Mumbai JNPT, Amritsar rail as per
the final location of the customer.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS:

Locational
Advantage

Focus on e Established
gudlty fand Strengths re!atlor?shlp
innovation with clients

1. Focus on quality and innovation

We believe our strength and success factor has been our constant focus on quality and innovation. To keep
sailing on it, we stress on and constantly strive to improve the quality of our products. We have a dedicated
R&D team which constantly works for waste effluent management, improving the quality, alternative cost
saving methods and the likes. Our Company is an SO 9001:2015 certified and our technically qualified team
ensures that we procure raw materials which meet the qudity standards. To ensure quality products, we test
samples from every lot of raw material in our laboratory and only once they meet the quality criteria, it is further
used for production. Further, finished products are also checked with respect to quality, and only after meeting
the quality standards, products are considered for packing. We have produced a wide range of colours and their
combinations meeting wide range of customers’ demands.

2. Experienced Promotersand M anagement

We have an experienced management team including our promoters who have an experience of more than 2
decades in dyestuff industry. Our Company is led by our promoters, Mr. Maunal Gandhi and Mr. Minku Gandhi
who has rich experience and knowledge of the industry. Their vision and values have been the foundation of our
growth story. The business which was started just as a trading company has now become an export-oriented
manufacturing company with further expansions plans in place. We understand quality forms an important
aspect in dyestuff industry and hence we have established a qualified technical team to ensure quality output. It
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is through the constant vision and experience of our management team including the promoters, we have been
able to build a sustainable business model and created a wide market reach. We strongly believe that the success
of our organization liesin the efforts of our human resources.

3. Intermediates Production

Dyestuffs manufacturing involves use of many raw materials and intermediates in the whole process, prices of
which are highly volatile and forms a significant part of total manufacturing costs. Further, dependency on third
party suppliers affects the overall costs. Hence, our company has been into manufacturing of one of the
intermediates, CPC Blue, which helps us to reduce our dependency on third parties, saving us substantial
amount.

4. Locational Advantage leading to reduction of cost

Reducing cost of production is an inherent activity which our company has been focussing on since its
inception. Procuring raw material at a competitive price effect our financial position substantially. We procure
almost all of our raw materials mostly from domestic players having their facility/warehouses in close proximity
to our manufacturing facility hence reducing the cost of transportation without compromising on the quality of
the raw material procured. It also ensures us a continuous supply of raw materias. Further, our upcoming
facility is strategically located at Bharuch, Gujarat which is approx. 15 kms from the nearby port which will
further help us reduce our overall cost.

5. Established relationship with clients

Our company generates most of its revenue from export operations, it has trusted buyers in foreign countries
from which we receive repeated orders in frequent intervals. The repetition of ordersis basically owing to the
quality of the products we provide and a so the healthy relationships we maintain. Our promoter visits regularly
to our foreign traders to understand their needs, concerns and address them personally. We understand the dye
industry is highly competitive and maintaining healthy relationships will help us to beat the competition.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY:

Business
expansion

=

Capacity

Expansion '
Business

Strategy

®

Expanding
customer
base

1. Business expansion

We started our business in 1993 and steadily increased the capacity to around 2,520 tons per annum. With the
customer base we already have, rich experience we possess and the growth we foresee due to structural shift of
demand to India, we expanding our business by setting up a new facility with a manufacturing capacity of
around 16,140 tons per annum in various phases in Saykha Industrial Estate - Bharuch, Gujarat. The
machineries required for this while the permitted capacity is around 32,800 tons p.a. To implement this, we have
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already purchased a land measuring 75,060 sq. meters. We have successfully commissioned our plant for
manufacturing Dyestuff Intermediates in September 2023 under our subsidiary UC Colours and Intermediates
Private Limited. Once this plant is properly functional over a period of 6-8 months, we shall work on
commissioning a new plant for manufacturing dyestuffs, dyestuffs for inks and inks at UCL GIDC property in

Saykha.

2. Reduction of costs

With capacity built up from Intermediates to Dyestuffs to Dyestuffs for Inks to Inks, we shall have a huge cost
advantage over our competitors.

3. Vertical integration of production process

The company intends to increase the research and development efforts to develop manufacturing process for a
wider range of dyes products, by vertically integrating the production processes. This will serve as an effective
cost cutting as well as expansion measure. This can be done through continual improvement in technology, cut
manufacturing costs through process improvement, develop new product lines which are environmentally
responsible. One vertical expansion that we have planned is new plant of Dyestuffs which will be converted to
Dyestuffs for Inks and further processed to Inks. This plant will use material of our subsidiary UC Colours and
Intermediates Private Limited as intermediates for synthesis.

4. Expanding customer base

Dye manufacturing is done only in India, China and Indonesia. However, India and China meets the substantial
portion of global demand and hence the market for manufacturers in India is huge. The company’s product is
currently marketed majorly in Asia and Middle East. The strategy going forward is to cater the market of other
international locations, viz., UK, USA, Canada, etc. The demand for dye is ever increasing including in India
where catering to newer customer will be comparatively an easier task.

5. Capacity expansion

Our company is currently operating at around 90% of its capacity. With the strong relationship we possess with
our customers, marketing our product can be done without much effort. Since, the market with the buyer is
readily available, we intend to ramp up our production to boost the revenue. we would be increasing our overall
production capacity which will enable us to enter into new phase of growth.

SWOT ANALYSIS:

Strengths:

1. Locational Advantage—

The manufacturing facility of our company is located at Vatva GIDC, Gujarat and the new proposed plant is
located in Saykha Industrial Estate in Dahej, Gujarat which is 15 kms form Dahej Port allowing easy export to
major markets. Raw material procurement are mostly done from players within Gujarat which are in near
proximity to the manufacturing facility. This reduces our costs significantly.

2. Strong customer base —

We supply our products to traders in foreign countries. These customers bring repetitive orders and ensures
continuous business to our company. This industry being a highly competitive industry requires strong customer
base to grow and stay ahead.

3. Experienced management —

Our promoters are in the dye industry for more than 2 decades. Our technical team is led by qualified people
who has the relevant technical knowledge. Their knowledge and experience gives our company a major benefit
in devising and implementing the perfect strategy to stand above the competition.

Weakness:
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1. Presencein onetype of colour —

Although the company is producing variety of color shades in Reactive Blue dyes, we are majorly present only
in 1 color, i.e.,, Blue. This restricts us to cater wider category of customers. However, going forward, our
company intends to expand its portfolio to multi-colors with dyestuff/intermediates integrated plants of Blacks
and other colors. However, expansion to Intermediates plant and further proposed expansion will increase our
basket of colours.

2. Dependent on third party suppliers—

Our company procures most of the Dye intermediates from third party producers. It does not have its own
manufacturing facility for producing al the required intermediates and hence is dependent on third parties to
some extent. In the past, company has faced profitability issues owing to sudden increase in prices of
intermediates, we are prone to such threats by our suppliers. However, the relationship and the volume of
business we generate for them mitigates this weakness of us. Further al new plants proposed to be
commissioned are with backward integration of raw materials intermediates al so.

3. Failuretoimplement plans—

We believe successful implementation of strategy is more important than devising the strategy. If the plan as
envisaged is not implemented properly, it may affect the business. However, with the decades of experience our
management possess and the past trend of our business, we believe we would implement our strategies at the
right direction without any difficulties.

Opportunities:
1. Decreasing competition from China—

Dye industry has only 2 major players across the globe, India and China apart from Indonesia. With increasing
environmental norms and strict governmental regulations w.r.t operating a chemical industry, the competition
which was being faced due to Chinais slowly eroding. There have been shutdowns of many facilities in China
positively impacting the dye industry in India consequently growth in Dye prices. With decrease in total supply,
dye manufacturers have huge opportunity both in terms of volume and value.

Threats:
1. Increasing competition —

Dye industry is highly competitive which faces competition from both organised and unorganised player. Our
company faces tough competition from them in terms of pricing and customer base. Further, there is
contingency on the longevity of benefit accruing due to restrictions in China. There may be turnaround in
China’s dye industry which possess huge threat to Indian market. However, our company has been successful
enough to compete with them with increasing market share.

2. Regulatory risks—

Our company deals in hazardous chemicals. Hyaluronic acid, one of the products that is used in dye
manufacturing is the most polluting industrial effluent. It is toxic and non-biodegradable. Hence here there is
huge amount of compliance risk wherein it is obvious to state that if the Company fails to comply with
Environmental Laws and Regulations, the results of operations will be adversely affected.

UTILITIES& INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES:

Infrastructure Facilities
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Our registered office and manufacturing units are well equipped with computer systems, internet connectivity,
other communications equipment, security and other facilities, which are reguired for our business operations to
function smoothly. It is equipped with requisite utilities and facilities including the following:

Power

Our Company mests its power requirements by purchasing electricity from Gujarat State Electricity Board.
Water

Our Company procures water from GIDC bore well situated in nearby vicinity.

Fuel

We procure Gas from Adani for all its operations and coal from various sources.

Fire Hydrant

Our Company has installed fire safety equipment to manage any fire accident at its facility.

COLLABORATIONS/ TIE UPSOR JOINT VENTURE:

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has not entered into any technical or other
collaboration or Tie ups or Joint VVenture.

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATION:

As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company does not have any Export Obligation under Export
Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme or any other scheme of Government of India.

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILIZATION:
Our manufacturing unit is engaged in manufacturing and sale of reactive dyes. The production and utilized

capacities of our Company for these products for the past three years and aso the projected capacities and
utilizations for the subsequent three years are set forth in the following table:

Existing
Product 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Installed | Utilized | Installed | Utilized | Installed | Utilized

Turquoise Blue Dyestuff 135 86 135 70 145 95
Copper Phthalocyanine 50 28 50 27 50 25
VS Plant NA NA NA NA NA NA
AlphaBlue 20 13 25 21 25 18
Green7 NA NA NA NA NA NA
Per centage 100% 62% 100% 56% 100% 63%

PLANT AND MACHINERY:

Currently, the major plant and machinery installed in our manufacturing facility is given below. Further, none of
the existing machinery are second hand.

Name of Major Machinery Quantity

Steamn Boiler 2

Thermic Fluid Heater

Hot Air Generator

Spray Dryer

Close Reaction Vessel

Filter Press

ANlW|R PR

Glassline Vesse
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Name of Major Machinery Quantity

Oil heater 1

Hoiest

RVD

Ice Plant

Pollution control plant

RO plant

Condensnor

Spectro photo meter

Multi stage water pump

Dryer

PR OININININRFPFP|W

Bag closer machine

HUMAN RESOURCES:

We believe that our employees are key contributors to our business success. We focus on attracting and
retaining the best possible talent. Our Company looks for specific skill-sets, interests and background that would
be an asset for our business.

As on December 31, 2023 we have 52 employees at our manufacturing facility and registered office, who look
after our business operations, factory management, administrative, secretarial, legal, marketing and accounting
functions in accordance with their respective designated goals. Bifurcation of the employee as per their roleis as
under:

Designation Employees
Manager 3
Chemist 6
Admin Staff 17
Operators 18
Fitter 2
Electrician 1
Workers 2
Others 3
Total 52

COMPETITION:

Dye Chemical Products industry being a large and concentrated industry, we face competition from various
domestic players and international players specifically from China. The industry which we cater to is
competitive, unorganized and fragmented with many small and medium-sized companies and entities and we
compete with organized as well as unorganized sector on the basis of pricing of product, product quality and
product range. Most of our competitors in the regional level are from the unorganized sector. Among listed
peers, we face competition from:

1 Colourtex.
2 Yash Chemex.

Although, competition for “Turquoise Blue” dyestuffs and pigments are lower than other dyestuffs due to
specialised presence of competitors in respective segments, our Company intend to continue compete vigorously
to capture more market share and manage our growth in an optimal way.

INSURANCE:

Our Company has insurance coverage which we consider reasonably sufficient to cover all normal
risks

associated with our operations and which we believeis in accordance with the industry standards.

We have taken Marine Cargo, Standard Fire & Specia Perils Policy for a substantial mgjority of our
assets at our office and factory. These policies also insure us against the risk of earthquakes with

70




plinth and foundation. Our policies are subject to customary exclusions and customary deductibles.
We will continue to review our policiesto ensure adequate insurance coverage is maintained.

We have following insurance Policies:

- Risk Sum Assur_ed Name of the Policy Period
Felig7Ne Covered el Insurer From To
Rs. Lakhs)
Building
Including
Plinth & BAJAJ
Foundation, ALLIANZ
0G-24-2202- Contents, GENERAL
4057-00000224 | Stocks, 2850.00 INSURANCE 08/06/2023 07/6/2024
Furniture, COMPANY
Fitting and LIMITED
Fixtures, Plant
and Machinery
LAND AND PROPERTY: :
We have our properties located at following:
L easehold Properties:
Purchase
Sr. HRETEES ATEE e Consideration Year / Current
the the . L essor
No Propert Propert Paid Lease Usage
y y Period
GIDC,88/6
PHASE L | 909 LEASE FOR g'lf‘NUFéfgSU R Ng
01 VATVA MTRS SQ | Rs, 1.81LACS 99 YEARS | GIDC INTERMEDIATES
AHMEDABAD- FROM 1975 & PIGMENTS
382445 :
GIDC DAHEJ
80-81-82-83, RS.6.52 PURCHASE
02 SAYKHA, MTRS CRORES. 01.01.2018 GIDC NO
BHARUCH.
SL'DACSE 88/ ?’ MANUFACTURING
03 GIDC. VATVA | 994Q RS.2.50 LEASE FOR | 5o OF DYES,
AHMEDABAD | MTRS LACS(APPROX.) | 99 YEARS INTERMEDIATES
982445, AND PIGMENTS

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS:

Company has confirmed that no applications have been made by the Company nor has it registered any type of
intellectual property including trademarks/copyrights/patents etc.

71




OUR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Articles of Association provide that our Board shall consist of minimum 3 (Three) Directors and not more
than 15 (Fifteen) Directors, unless otherwise determined by our Company in a general mesting.

As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, Our Company has six (6) Directors consisting of Two (2) Managing
Director, one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Non-Executive Independent Directors. The present
composition of our Board of Directors and its committees are in accordance with the corporate governance
requirements provided under the Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, to the extent applicable.

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors as on the date of this Draft Letter of

Offer:
, . . No. of Equity
s | Name Father’s, Age, Desgnation, | o . ol g 96 of Other Directorships/
No ABlCES  [BRREEnes  OREIREHET, Share holding Designated Partner
" | Qualifications, Nationality & DIN (Pre-Issue)

1. Mr. Maunal Shantilal Gandhi 13,69,460 Equity » UC Colours and
Age: 53 Years Shares; 12.80% of Intermediates Private
Designation: Joint Managing Director Pre-lssue Paid up Limited
Address: Someshwar 11, Bunglow capital
No. 17, Nr. Bidiwala Park, Satellite
Road, Ahmedabad 380015
Term: Upto February 14, 2028
Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
DIN: 00118559

2. Mr. Minku Shantilal Gandhi 13,73,460 Equity » UC Colours and
Age: 53 Years Shares; 12.83% of Intermediates Private
Designation: Joint Managing Director Pre-lssue Paid up Limited
Address: 4, Vanshree Villa, Opp. capital
Vrg Villa, B/h. NovaVillage,

Mahakali Mandir Road, Bodakdev
380015, Gujarat, India.

Term: upto February 14, 2028
Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian

DIN: 00118617

3. Mr.  Shantilal Bhailalbhai Gandhi 17,12,247 Equity NIL
Age: 94 Years Shares; 16.00% of
Designation: Chairman and Non- Pre-1ssue Paid up
Executive Director capital

Address: Someshwar |1, Bunglow
No. 17, Nr. Bidiwala Park, Satellite

Road, Ahmedabad 380015

Term: Not Applicable.

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

DIN: 00118509
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Age: 32Years

DIN: 07190911

Designation: Independent Director
Address: 2, Laxmi Nagar Society,
Opp. DK Patel Hall, Naranpura,
Ahmedabad 380013, Gujarat, India
Term: upto January 30, 2028
Occupation: Service

Nationality: Indian

4, Mrs. Hanisha Jinish Patel NIL

» Hygeia Ortho Privatg
Limited

Age: 54 Years

DIN: 08064080

Designation: Independent Director
Address. 51, Lavaniya Society, Near
Jivrgj Mehta Hospital, Dr. CV Raman
Marg, Ahmedabad-380007, Gujarat
Term: upto January 30, 2028
Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

5. Mrs. Purvi Tapan Trivedi NIL

NIL

Age: 49Years

DIN: 00118509

Designation: Independent Director
Address. C/11, Samkeet-2, Chandan
Party Plot, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015
Term: Upto August 28, 2027.
Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

6. Mr. Tejas Pravinkumar Shah NIL

NIL

Past Directorshipsin suspended companies

None of our Directors are, or were a director of any listed company, whose shares have been, or none of our
directors were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges during the term of their directorships
in such companies during the last 5 (Five) years preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Past Directorshipsin delisted companies

None of our Directors are or were a director of any listed company, which has been, or none of our directors
were delisted from any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company during the last 10
(Ten) years preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Set forth below are the details of our senior management and key managerial personnel:

Name

Designation

Associated with Company
since

Mr. Maunal Shantila Gandhi

Joint Managing Director

Since Incorporation

Mr. Minku Shantilal Gandhi

Joint Managing Director

Since Incorporation

Mr. Pradip Bhadriklal Gandhi

Chief Financial Officer

13" March 2018

Ms. Vishakha Tanwar

Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer

25 January, 2024
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Y
Mr. Maunal Mr. Minku
Shantilal Gandhi Shantilal Gandhi
Joint Managing Joint Managing
Director Director
1 1 1 1
AY AY AY AY
Mrs. Hanisha Jinish Mrs. Purvi Tapan Mr.  Shantilal Mr.Tejas

Patel
Independent Director

Independent Director

Bhailalbhai Gandhi

Chairman and Non
Executive Director

Pravinkumar Shah
Independent Director

A

Mr. Pradip
Bhadriklal Gandhi

Chief Financial
Officer

2\

Ms. Vishakha

Tanwar

Company Secretary
and Compliance

Officer
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SECTION V: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sr No. | Particulars Page No
1. Unaudited Financial Resultsfor the half year ended September 30, 2023 F-1to F-16
2. Audited Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 F-17 to F-88
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MAMNUFACTURERS AND EXPORTERS OF
n DIRECT / REACTIVE / ACID DYESTUFFS
m SOVEMNT f IMEJET DYESTUFFS

m PIGMENTS & ADDITIVES Colowr Chem Limited
srliag Pl wrale] swonr udoan fud
Date: Novembar 22, 2023
Ta,

The Manager-Listing Department,
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited,
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E)

humbai = 400 051,

Maharashtra, India,

HLL mal M ber

With reference to the above-mentioned emall and NSE droular no, NSE/CML/2018/02 dated January 16, 2018, we
wish to Inform the exchange that the financial results of Ushant! Calour Chem Limited {“the Company™) for the half
vear ended on September 30, 2023 submitted with the stock exchanges within the stipulated time on Movember 11,
2023 and the same was duly taken on record by the exchanges. However, Submission was not In @ Machine
readable/ searchable format. Therefore, we are submitting herewith the legible copy of the financial results of the
Compary for the half year ended on September 30, 2023,

Kindly take the same on your record.

For, Ushant] Colour Chem Limited AT DUA |
MAUNAL Digitally signed by MAUNAL { o -2 "-',. '_.- 1
SHANTILAL 555651732 175048 S SRRRO, [ |
GANDHI #0530 [Li= | pinammh ):rf
Maunal Shantilal Gandhi \?:jf'_"’}:"‘g
Joint Managing Director P
DiN: D0118559

Pl Mo, BB/&S7 /8, GIDC, Phase 1, Vatva, Ahmadobad - 382 445, (INCHA)

Ph.: @] - 79 - 95R333 15, 2RE04005 M.: +9]1 - 087074842
E.: mounal@ushanil.com W, www.uzhonil.com

CiIN No. L24231GJ1993PLCO19444
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

liﬂmﬂﬂl'lhr. 88/8, GIDC Pha
Ernail 1d: maunal @ushantl.com, minku@ushanth.com

CIN: L34231G11993PLC019444

se |, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445, Gujarat, Indis -
Website: www uihanti.com

! Unaudited Standalone Statement of Financial Results for the half year en dednnm.ﬁpmmhlr,mu |

/8 No. [Particulars E_ ing Six t-.mdiusu Previousyear |
gnded on  [months ended on  |anded on
u 2022 1.03.2023 31.03.2023
Unaud (Audited) {(Audited)
:.m to hmm 01.10.2022 to 01.04.2022 to
31.03.2023 31.03.2023
i iRevenue from Operation 207602 2573.18 1694 65 476783
2 |Other Income 114.90 59.12 325.46 384,
3 [Total Revenue (1+2) 2190.92| 2632.29| 2020.11 465241
4 Eupenues il
&} Cost of Materials Consumd 1182 49 1560.09 1040.27 2600.36/
i) Purchase of Stock-in-trade 109,84 96,05 A0.40 176,45
() Change In inventories of finished gaods, |28.22) 7138
in progress and stock-in-trade {4.59) 49. 1
id} Employee benefits expenses 172.62 175.87 182.24 358,11
) Finance Costs 24.35 31.60 24.07 56,67
lif} Depreciation and amortization expense 76.82| B4.81 8233 167.14
lig) Other expenses 528.35| 60918 490,01/ 1095.19
Total Expenses 208991 2608.21 1871.10, 4479.3
5 |Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 143,02 173.11!
items and tax (3-4) 10100 24,09
b |Enceptional Hems 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00
T | Profit before extracrdinary items and tax (5- 101.00/ 148,02 17311
[Eh .
% [Bxwraordinary ftems 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ln  |Profit before tax (7-8) 191.00 2 148.07 173.11
10 [Tax expense:
aj Current tax {1652} 0 0.0 0.00
iﬂ Deferred tax [0.91] 4,62 (1.97) (6.55|
d
lic] Other tax exp/Adj for earlier year 0.00] 0 0.00) u.u;;l
1 rofit (Loss) for the pered from continuing £5.39 mmn 150.99 173,
o (9-10) |
12 Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing operations 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00)
13 [Tax expanse of discontinuing operations 0.008 0.004 0.00 0.0
14 'Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing operations (.00 0.0 0,00 .00
jafter tax) (12-13) |
15 |Net Profit {Loss) for the period (11+14) 85.39 B.71 150.95| 179.70,
16 [Eamings Per equity Share I| o
la) Basic 0.83] 0. 3.4 2 iﬂ
b) Diluted 0.83| 0.39) 3.29) 218
17 d-up equity share capitol (Face Value of the umn1 730.17) mau.w1 1030.17
Share shall be Rs. 10/- each] =
18 |Reserve excluding Revaluation Resarves as l 378491
| per balance gheet of previous accounting year
For, Ushanti Col m Limitod
I gunal Shantilaf Gandhi
Managing Director Date: 11/11/2023
(DIN: DOL11B559) Place: Ahmedabad |




Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
CIN: L24231G11953PL 0018444

Registared Offica: B8/8, G | D C Phasa |, Vatva, Ahmedabad. 382445, Gujarat, Indla

Emall Id; maunali@ushanti.com, minku@ushanti.com

Unaudited Standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 30th Saptember, 2023

Website: wiww ushant.com

5 No. [Particulars alf Year anded  |Year Ended
Sop 2023 319 March 2023
Amount in lacs]  |{Amount in lacs]
Unaudited) {Audited)
A [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -
1 Ishareholders’ funds
da)  Share capital 1030.17 1030.17
b} [Reservas and surplus 3830.30 3744.92
el IMoney recelved against share warrants .00 - . 0.00
Sub-total - Shareholder's funds 4960.47 4775.09
2 [Share application money pending allotmant 0.00 0.00
3 |[Non-current liabifities ,

[a] _|Long-term borowings 0.00 oo
(b |Deferred tax liabilities (net) 0.00 0.00
ic)  |Other long-term Rabilities 015 0,15
(d] g-term provisions (.00 0.0
| Sub-total - Non-current lishilities| 0.15 _ 0.15
4 iCurrent liabilities ="
Ha)  IShort-term borrowings 700,56 39348
B} [Trade payabies |

(A} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 557.11 a03.93|
(B total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 103.99 140.02
[e] |Other current llabilities a5.70 116,46
[d] [|Short-t=rm provisions 31.62 31.57
Sub-total - Current liabilities| 1426.28 " y,a%
Total - Equity and Lisbilltes| 8285-90 5960,
1 |Non-current assets
ka)  |Property, Plant & Equipment | |
[i) Tangible Assets 1322.90 138311
(i} Intangible Assets 51,35 56£.35
(1li} Capital work-in-progress 13.02 11.21
(v} Intangibla assats under development ag7 4.497
!

b]  IMon-current investments ?H:i.i'fi 430
&:] ‘Defarrad tax assets {net) 8.69 778
{d]  Leng-term loans and sdvances 1709.87 2096, 76
{e]  |Dther non-current assets 172.27 173.42

Sub-total - Non-current assets| 4066.83 3738.10

2 fcurrent assets !
fla]  [Current investrnents 0.00 (.00
{b)  |Imwentories 616.05 649,28
()  [Trade recelvables Q4R 63 90498
[d)  |Cashand cash equivalents 8.53 22.19
[e)  [Short-term loans and advances 552.20, 546,15
() Other current assets EE.EI.‘.I__ 0.004
- Sub-total - Current assets| 2223.07 222260

Total -Assets| £289.90 5960,

For,

=
Ushantl ited
E:::..._;.f'éﬂ

DIN;: DD118559)

Date: 11,/11,/2023
Place: Ahmedabad




Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
CIN: L24231GI1953PL O] 9444
Registered Office: BE/E, G | D C Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445, Gujarat, Indla
Email ld: maunaliifushanti.com, minku@ushanti com Webisite: www . ushanth.com
Unaudited Standalone Cash Flow Statemant for the half year ended on 30th September, 2023
Mo. Particulars ol Year Ended | Half Year Ended
30th September, 30th Septemieer,
2022
[Amount In l2cs) maunt in lacs)
l[Unaudited) _|[Unaudited)
A |cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met profit before taxation: 101,00 24 0o
Adjustment for | _
Depreciation and amortization 76.82| B4.81)
Amartization of leasehold land 0.00 0.0¢)
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0,004 0.0k
Sundry balances written offinet) 0.00 .00
\{Net Gain) / Loss on Foreign Currency Translation (643} |18.05)
{Bank charges and commission 0.00 31,60
\Wasta disposal reversal income 0.00 0. 000
Sundry batances written back{net] .00} 0.00
Profit on sale of iInvestment 107, 00 oo
{Diwvidend Incoma 0.0 {2.01)
[interest income (10843} [38.42)
Interast exXpensas 24.35( 0.0
Operating profit before working capital changes 87.28 B3.01
[Adjustment for :
Trade recaivables |37.22) {301.62)
«term and short-term kaans & advances 0.0 {245 64)
Other non-current and curtent assets, other bank balances {4.28)) (15.52]
Trade payables, short-term & long-term prowisions, Other current & non-current liabilities (64.07) [S0.71)
llincrease} / decrease in inventaries 31.22 23261
Cash Generated from operations 12.94| (380.87)
Direct taxes (paid)/refund(net| (2.82} 0.00
et cash from operating activities (A) 10.12 {297.86)
B [Eash flow from Investing activities -
Precesds from Loans and Advances 484 A2 0.0
[Sale / Purchase of Investments {791.80)| 13.38
Dividend income 0.00 201
Interest income 13.11 38.42|
Imvestment in Subsidiary 0,008 .00
Purchase of flxed assets (13.42) {33.78]
Proceads from sale of fixed assets o0 0.34
|Met cash used In Investing activities (B) i!ﬂ-‘l.!‘.lll_ {39.63)
€ |Cash flow from financing activities
Bank charges and commissian 0.00 32,50
Frterest Pald [23.55) .00
[issure of Equity Shares 0.00 0.00
lssue of Security Premium 0.00
interim Dividend Paid m 0,00
[Proceeds,/{Repayment) of Shori-term borrowings{Net) 307. 367.01
[Proceeds/|Repayment) of Long-term borrowlngs(Net) 0.00 0.00
[Net cash frem financing activitles (C) 183.53 mﬂ




Net Increasa/{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+8+C) [13.68) rsm;)]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1218 6.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8.53) 3.59
Mobes :
Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash low statement comprises:
Cash on hand 657 2.37
Bank balance with schaduled bank 1.96 1.2
a8.53 .50
For, Ush rChem Umited
. ”’j}f"v
aunakshantilal Gandhi
nt Managing Director
(DIN: 00118559)
Date: 11/11/2023
lﬂml:.ﬁhmldihﬂ




1. These results have baen In accordance with the AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with relevant rules issued thereunder {as amended). These results have been reviewed by the Audst
Committes snd approved by the Baard of Directors at its meeting held on Saturday, Movember 11, 2023,

2. hs required under Regulation 32 of SERI (LODRA) Regulations, 2015, the Statutory Auditar of the Company has
issued Limited Review Report on the aforesaid Standzalone Unaudited Einancial Results for the helf year ended
30th September, 2023, which was taken on record by the Audit Committee and Board at their meeting held on
Saturday, November 11, 2023,

3. standalene Statement of Assets and Liabilitios and Statement of Cash flows as on ith Septembier, 2023 are
artached.

4, Company has one subsidiary Company named UC Calours and Intermadiates Private Limited.
5. IND AS Is currently not applicable to the Company.
€. The figures have been regrouped/rearranged whenever necessary.

7. The requirement of AS-17 “Segment Reporting” is not applicable to the Company a3 it is engaged in single
rusiness segment.

. The results for the half year ended September 30, 2023 are available on the National Stock Exchange of Indla
Limited website (URL: hitps:/ fwwwl.nsgindia.com/emerge/corporates/content/sme_fin_results.htm) and on
the Company's website [LIRL: hﬂpt:ﬁm.ushantl.:uerlnnuakEpm.Mml'L

Joint Managing Director
|DiM; DO11B559)

Date: 11/11/2023
Place: Ahmedabad



.%l Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Limited Review ort on Unaudited Standalone
Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the lation 33 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended) for the half ¥ d th ember 202

Review Report to

The Board of Directors
Ushanti Colour Chem Ltd
GIDC Phase 1,

Vatva, Ahmedabad — 382445

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone
financial results of USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED (“the
Company") for the period ended on September 30, 2023 (“the statement"),
being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, as amended. (“the Listing Regulations™).

2. This statement is the responsibility of the Company's Management and has
been approved by the Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the
Accounting Standard 25 "Interim Financial Reporting” ("AS 25") prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with relevant rules
issucd there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial
statements based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the statements in accordance with the Standard
on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial
Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the entity” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that
we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is
limited primarily to inguiries of company personnel and an analytical
procedure applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly we do not express an

audit opinion.

anel. Floor, H N, House, Opp. Muktajivan Colour Lab, Stadium Gircle, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad- 180009
Phone : 4883 4455 = E-mall : info@djrvin » Websie : djmain
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4, Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited
standalone financial results prepared in accordance with applicable
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act.
2013 read with rules issued there under and other recognized accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended), including
relevant circulars issued by the SEBI from time to time including the manner
in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For, DINV & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
ICAI FRN: 115145W

%

3 ;_' 4 l
‘E—/ I'll

dﬁ-}h«wi- :. ; .I-.ll:: I' E::r_..l:...-l
CA Shruti C Shah N . Place: Ahmedabad
(Partner) Date: 11/11/2023
Membership No 175839

UDIN: 23775€29BGXUWE1130
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited |
CIN: L24231GI1993PLO0T9444
Registered Dffice: B5/E, G| D ¢ Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445, Gujarat, India
Emnail Id: maunal@ushantloom, minku@ushanti.com Wabsite: www ushanti.com
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Financial Results for the half year ended on 30th September, 2023
1S Mo, [Partkulars maonths ended on Slx months ended Preceding Six  [Previous year ended
2023 30.05, 20332 months ended  |on 31.03.2023
Unaudited Unaudited) 31.03.2023 |[Audited)
dited) )
E;mmn o 01.04.2022 to 10.2022ta  01.04.2022 to
09.2023 30.09.2022 03.2023  (31.02.2023
1 |Revenue from Operation 207334 2700.18 1699, 19|J 4399.35
2 |other Income 53,50 32 58 285.34| 321 07
3 [Total Revenue (14+2) 2126.94| 273274 1988.53 472127
4 Expenses .
| |ta) Cost of Materials Consumed 127321 1689.19 911.17] 2500.36|
' ib) Purchase of Stock-in-trade 110.91 96.05 225,30 32135
(c} Change in inventories of finished goods, (28.22) 21.38
work It prograss and stock-in-trade (126,60 49,60
{4} Employee benefits expensas 183,28 176,08  185.06 362.04]
{e] Finance Costs 83.83 32.76) 23.91 56.67)
{f) Depreciation and amortization expense 116.18 B5.34 82,37 16775
(£} Other gxpenses 5E0.7E 609,92 489.96 109938
| [Total Expenses 220159 2730.87| 1889, 629,43
5 L:mﬂt before exceptional and extraordinary [¥4.65)f (7.23) 889 %184
erns and tax (3-4}
6 Exceptional itams 0.00) 0.00| 0.00) 0.00
7 | Profit before extraordinary items and tax (5- (74.65) (7.13) 98.97 a1.484)
5) .
#  |Extracrdinary ftems 0 0.00 0.00 0.00
g Profit before tax | 7-8) [74.65) {raay 98,97 5’?3'
0 [Tax expense: I =
{a) Current tax 16,52 0,00 0.00 0.00
] Deferred tax 64.26 (4.51) |1.66) (617}
(€] Other tax exp/Ad) for earlier year 0,00 .00 0.03/ 0.0
11 |Praofit {Less) for the period from continuing {155.43) (2.562) 100,60 97.98|
joperation [9-10)
13 [Profit/ (Loss] from discontinuing operatians 0,00 000 0,00 Q.00
13 [Tax éxpense of discontinuing operations 0.00) 0.00) 0.00 0.00/
14 Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing sperations 0.00 (2.62) 100,60 97 o8/
after tax) [12-13) i
15 s5: Share In Profit/{Loss) of Minority {33.51) 0.04 {0.19} {0.15)
Interest I i Ml
16 [Net Profit [Loss) for the period (11+14) {121 |:.5_|_)1 100.79 98,13
17 |[Earnings Per equity Share =
la) Basic (1.48) (0.04) 2.20 1.19
| |b) Diuted [1.48) (0.04) .20 1.1%
1B id-up equity share capital (Face Value of 1030.17| 730.17| 1030.17 1020.17|
Share shall be fis. 10/- each)
13 excluding Revaluation Resarves as 363091
per balance sheet of previows accounting
year
For, Ushanti
aunal shasllal Gandhi
E:m Managing Director o= Date: 11/11/2023
1 M DDL1ES59) Place: shmedabad
I




Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
CIN: L24231G11993PLC01944

mﬂmﬂnﬁﬁu B:B.."s.. G 1D C Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedabad-383445, Gujarat, India
l Website: www ushanticom |
Unluﬁﬂl I‘-'mﬂnﬂhhll ihhmm-ﬂflm and Liabilities as at 30th Slptmhu',
Mo. Particulars E:;
amumhn 1 Mech 203
{Amount Im lacs) {Amount in lacs]
[Unaudited) [ Asitad)
£ [ECQLITY AND LIABILITIES
1 [shareholders’ funds
{a) [Share capital 1030.17 1030.17
ib]  |[Reserves and surplus 351024 3630, 51
il [Money received against share warrants 0.00 0.00
Sub-total - Shareholder's funds 454041 466108
2 Share application money pending aliotment i
5 Minority Interest 16172 1065
4 Non-current Habilities — =11
[a]  JLong-term bormowings 2657.83 2885.76
(b)  |Deferred tax liabilities [net) 56.85 0.00
IE:-!_ Cther long-term lkabdlities 0,15 .15
id) [Long-term provisions 0,00 2.00
Sub-total - Non-current Habilities| 2714.83) 2885.91
’ w‘“‘“‘ e —_ =
a) [Short-term borrowings 1908,47| 116233
bl [Trade payahblas ]
[{&) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises B34.82 53041
(&) toted outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small [
enterprises 123.38! 140.03
e ) |Other current Habllities 503.80 60157
dd: S hort-term provisions 35.27 3157
Sub-total - Current liabilities| 3405.74 2475.31
Total - Equity and Liabilities| 10822.70| 10021.65
B ASSETS
1 Men-current assets
iz) |Property; Plant & Equipment
() Tangible Assets Bl O, 45 2176.30)
1] Inta'l!ihl! Assots 52.11 5720
(i) Capital wiork-in-progress 13.02 3-3]5.1%
{iv} Intangible assets under development 4,97 4.97
(b} |Non-current Investments 000 0.00
(] |Deferred tax assets [net) 0.0 7.41
{d] [Long-term loans and advances 204,95 313,96
()  |Other non-current assuts _;'al‘.li? _ _-____'i_":j;._ﬁé
Sub-botal - Non-current assets| T8, 27 bh15.69|
{2 Current assats
fa) |Current investments 0.00 0.00)
(b} |inventaries 926,60 649,28
{c}  [Trade receivables B54,.51 1058,17
{d) jcash and cash equivalents ' 3162] 96.77
1e]  Bhort-term loans and advances 171060 160001
{f}  [Other current assets 100.08 0.7
Sub-total - Current assets| 3723.43 3404,9
Total -Assets| 10822.70] 10021.65|
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For, Ushanti Colour

Limited ,
/_/l.' " o H.:‘"".

Maurnal Shantl ndl'.n.l
Uolnt Managing Director
(DiN: : 001 18559]

Date:11/11/2023
Place; Ahmedabad
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
CIN: L74231611993PL00E44
I’u‘ﬂ’tﬂiﬂ Office: 88/8, GIDC Phase |, Vatva, Ahmedsbad-3182445 Gujarat, india

Mﬂlmmmm Website: www.u 5hanli.|:‘|:_a-{11_l
Unaudited Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the half year ended on 307 September, 2023 '
5 Mo, [Particulans Half year  EndediHalf Year Ended
0t September, 2023 (30" Septamber,
in tacs) 2022
Unaudited] ﬁMl n kaes)
Unzadited)
A [Cash Flow from Oparating Activities
‘et profit before taxation: 74,55 713
iadjustment for : |
Depreciation and amortization 116,18 H5.3K
Amortization of leasehold land 0,00 0,00
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.00 0,00
sundry balances written offinet) 0.00 0.00
| Bank charges and commission 0,00 32.76/
Sundry balances written backinet) 0.00% 0,00
Dividend Income 0.00] {2.01)
Profit/Loss on sale of investment oLoo Q.00
\Waste disposal reversal Income 0.00 0.00)
nterest income [47.11) (11.89)
[interest expenses 43.83| 0.00
Net Gain| / Loss on Foreign Currency Translation [6.49) [18.05]
Dther MAT/Tax Adjustment ' j
Operating profit before working capital changes TL77 79.06
Adjustment for ; 1]
Trade receivables 110.13 [4E1.50)
Long-term and short-term loans & advances 0,00 [148.22)
Other non-current and current assets, other bank balances {813.68) {142,93)
rade payables, short-term & long-term provisbons, Other current B nan-current
liabilities 177.21 118.37
l:h:reaul [ decrease in inventoras {277.33) 23477
Cash Generated from operations {r31.91) {409.52)
|Direct taxes (pakd)/refundinat) (1.91) .00
INet cash from operating activities (A} (730,00 aau.ql
5 [cash flow from investing activities
sale of investments in mutual fund .00 Q.00
Dividend income 0.00 2.01
iinterest income 47.11 L1.EY
Purchase of fixed assets (49707 [1435,35)
|sale / Purchase of Investments __B80.57 1338
Loan and Advances given {206, 34) .
Investrent in Floed Deposits 0,00 0,
Proceeds from sale of flued assets .00 i
et cash used in investing acthvities (B) 24.27 {1407.74)
C  (cash flow from financing activities .
‘Bank charges and commission 0.0 {32.76)
Interest Paid (76.74) 0.00)
Money recelved against share warrants .00 0,00
ftssue of Equity Shares 0.0 0.00
llssue of Security Premium 0.00] 0008
[Minarity Interest Mevemeant 157.13 0.00
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Anterim Dividend paid 0.00) 0,00
Proceeds/{Repayment) of Short-term borrowings(Net} 746.14| 176584
Proceeds/|Repayment) of Long-term borrowings{Net) (227 .54) 0.00
Net cash fram financing activities (C) 638.59) 1733.08)
|

Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash and cash oquivalents (A+B+C] (67.15) -5.13
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year E_'ﬁ-'-"'-" 23,44
(Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 29.62 18.32
MNotes 1

rash and cash egulvalents included in the Cash flow statement comprises:

Cash on hand 7.55 1.71
Bank balance with scheduled bank 2107 16.6L

For, Ushanti Colour Chem umit!d. =

Q.//}' :I“'a

al Shantilal Gandhi
Managing Director
[DIN: 00118559)

Date: 111172033
: Ahmedabad
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1. These result has been prepared In accordance with the AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounting) Rubes, 2014 [as amended]. This result has heen
reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on Saturday,
Mowember 11, 2023.

3. As required under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR] Regulations, 2015, the Statutory Auditor of the Company has
{ssupd Limited Review Report on the aforesaid unaudited Consolidated Financlal Result for the half year ended
Septernber 30, 2023, which was taken on record by the Audit Committee and Board at their meeting held an
saturday, Movember 11, 2023.

3. Consolidated Statement of Assets and Lisbifithes and Statement of Cash flows as on September 30, 2023 are
attached.

4. Company has one subsidiary Company named UC Colours and Intermediates Private Limited
& |MD AS mot currenthy applicable to the Company.
&. The figures have bean regroupad (rearranged whenever necessary.

7. The requirement of AS-17 “Segment Reporting” ks not applicable to the Company as it is engaged in single
business segment.

8. The result for the half year ended September 30, 2023 are available on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited website {URL: hnps:..f.nfv.mwl.nu{n-:llammhmrm’:manﬂmnmthﬂm*ﬂn_mum-hwl and on
the Company's website (URL: hirtps:/ fwww.ushanti.com/annualreport. htmi).

For, Usha Chem Limited
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Limited Review Report on Review of Consolidated Unawvdived
inancial Results [ [i1] nf th il 3 of th 1 i

..... pments) Regulations, 20 15 amended) for the half vear

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

|. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of Consolidated Unaudited Financial
Results of USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED (“the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and s subsidiaries together refermed w0 as “the
Group™) for the period ended on September 30, 2023 (“the statement”), being submitted
by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirément of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended (the
“Listing Regulations™).

2. This staterment is the responsibility of the Holding Company's Management and approved
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Accounting Standard 25 "Interim
Financial Reporting” ("AS 25") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with relevant rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally
accepled in India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial
statements based on our review.

1, We conducted our review of the statements in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagement (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information performed by the
Independent Auditor of the entity” issued by the Institwte of Chartered Accountants of
India. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and an analytical
procedure applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We
have not performed an audit and accordingly we do not express an audit opinion.

We also performed procedures in  accordance with the Circular No.
CIR/CFDYCMD1/44/2019 dated 29 March, 2019 issued by SEBI under Regulation (33) B
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2013, as
amended, to the extent applicable.

4. The Statement includes the results of the following subsidiary:

s  UC Colours and Intermediates Prvate Limited

2nd. Floor, H.M. House, Dpp, Muktajivan Coloyr Lab, Stadum Circle, Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009
Phona - 4893 4455 « E-mail | info@dimein « Wahsits | djmiin
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5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above,
nothing has come w our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
statement, prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down
in aforesaid Indian Accounting Siandards and other accounting principles generally

in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of
Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains
any material misstatement.

6. The consolidated unaudited financial results include the interim financial statements
/financial information / financial results of one subsidiary which have been reviewed by
us, whose interim financial statements / financial information /financial results reflect 1otal
assets of Rs.7007.32 Lakhs as at September 30, 2023 and total revenue of Rs. 9.48 Lakhs,
total net profit{loss) after tax of Rs. (197.56) Lakhs for the period ended September 30,
2023, and cash flows (net) of Rs. (51.49) Lakhs for the period from 01 April 2023 10 30
September 2023,as considered in the consolidated unaudited financial results, which have
been reviewed by us and the same has been provided to us by the managemen! and our
conclusion on the statement, in so far as it relaies 1o the affairs these subsidiaries, is based
solely on such unaudited interim financial statements’ financial information/ fnancial
results.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For, NV & Co,
Chartered Accountants, .
ICAI FRN: 115145W ,.ar:_”__ VPN

Ao

CA Shruti C Shah
(Partner)
Membership No 175839
UDIN: 97 473 5339 B6rX U WP 9372

Place: Almedabad
Date: 11/11/72023

F-16



@ | f&% =gy Ty A

Colour Chem Limited

ANNEXURE-A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

(i) In respect of property, plant & equipment (PPE);
a)
A The company has maintained reasonable records showing full particulars, quantitative details and situation of
Property. Plant and Equipment.
B. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of PPE in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant to the program, certain PPE
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination
of the conveyance deeds/ registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
property, plant and equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

d) Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

e) According to information and explanations given to us and result of our audit procedures, in our opinion, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of Inventories:-

a) In respect of its inventories: The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our
opinion the frequency of verification, coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been
confirmed by them as at 31 March 2023 and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the
basis of securities of current assets. The discrepancies in quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with the
books of accounts are mentioned in note no. 36 of the standalone financial Statements.

(iii)
a) During the year the company has not made investments. But the company has provided loans or advances in the nature
of loans or guarantee to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and other parties details are as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Guarantees Security Loans Advances in nature of
loans

Aggregate Amount during the year |Rs. 4250 (From | - Rs. 1307.94 -
28/02/2022)

67 Annual Report-2022-23
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Colour Chem Limited

Subsidiary (UC Colours and Rs. 4250 (From | - Rs. 362.94 -
Intermediaries Private Limited) 28/02/2022)
Others (Directors — Maunal Gandhi - - Rs. 945 -

and Minku Gandhi, Others — Kabra
Jewels Private Limited, Krishna
Orgochem, Shivam Blackrock, Shree
Vadechi Infrasoft Pvt Ltd)

Guarantees Security Loans )Advances in nature of
loans
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet | Rs. 4250 - Rs. 1727.65 -
date
Subsidiary (UC Colours and Rs. 4250 - Rs. 863.28 -
Intermediaries Private Limited)
Others (Directors — Maunal Gandhi and - - Rs. 864.37 -
Minku Gandhi, Others — Kabra Jewels
Private Limited, Krishna Orgochem,
Shivam Blackrock, Shree Vadechi
Infrasoft Pvt Ltd)
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, we are

of the opinion that the terms and conditions on which loans have been granted and guarantees provided by the
company during the year as per the above point are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans, payment of interest has been stipulated
and receipts are regular.

d) According to the information and explanations and based on our audit procedures, there is no overdue amount remains
outstanding for more than 90 days as at the year-end.

e) None of the loan, granted and has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) Company has granted loans repayable on demand to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, and providing guarantees.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedure, the company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(vi)  The provisions of section 148 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 with regard to maintenance of cost records are not applicable
to the Company.

(vii) Inrespect of statutory dues:

68 Annual Report-2022-23
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Colour Chem Limited

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, except for income tax no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, sales tax, wealth tax, goods and service
tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2023 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. In respect of Income Tax, the sum of Rs. 88726.45/- in respect of
A.Y.2019-20 is not paid till date.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax or goods and service
tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no transaction found unrecorded in the books of
accounts of the company which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)

a) According to the information and explanations and as verified from books of accounts, the company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any fresh
loans so this clause is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of
the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiary.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures applied by us, we report that the company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

(x)

a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized funds raised by
way of preferential allotment of convertible equity warrants for the purposes for which they were raised.

(xi)

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been
informed of such case by the management.

b) To the best of our knowledge and information with us there is no instance of fraud reportable under sub-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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c) As per information and explanation given by management and/or audit committee there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the year.

(xii) In case of Nidhi Company:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

b) Since the company is not Nidhi Company, this clause is also not applicable.
c) Since the company is not Nidhi Company, this clause is also not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 whereever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv)

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the year under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with the directors during the year.

(xvi)

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
b) Company is not a NBFC hence the reporting in this clause is not required.

c) Company is Non NBFC. Hence the reporting in this clause is not required.

d) This clause is not applicable to the company as it is not CIC

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and proceeding financial year.

(xviii) There being no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, this clause is not applicable.

(xix) "According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when

they fall due."
(xx)
a) This Clause is not applicable to the company as the provisions of section 135 for CSR are not applicable.
b) This Clause is not applicable to the company as the provisions of section 135 for CSR are not applicable.
70 Annual Report-2022-23
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Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29/05/2023

%-;Mﬁisﬂ

Colour Chem Limited

For DJNV & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA Shruti C Shah

(Partner)

Membership No. 175839
UDIN: 23175839BGXUUM4043
Firm Reg. No.0115145W
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Colour Chem Limited

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED as of 31 March
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For, DJNV & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA Shruti C Shah

(Partner)
Place : Ahmedabad Membership No. 175839
Date : 29/05/2023 UDIN: 23175839BGXUUMA4043

Firm Reg. N0.0115145W
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(" in lacs)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note No. As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
1) Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 3 1,030.17 730.17
b) Reserves and Surplus 4 3,744.92 2,147.73
c) Money received against share warrants 5 - 429.38
2) Share application money pending allotment
3) Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-term Borrowings - -
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - -
c) Other Long-term Liabilities 6 0.15 0.15
4) Current Liabilities
‘a) Short-term Borrowings 7 393.48 665.21
b) Trade Payables 8
Due to MSME 403.93 422.18
Other than MSME 140.02 339.85
c) Other Current Liabilities 9 216.46 186.90
d) Short-term Provisions 10 31.57 32.28
Total 5960.70 4953.85
Il. ASSETS
1) Non-current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipments 11 1383.11 1909.31
(i) Intangible Assets 11 56.35 64.49
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 11 11.21 36.01
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 11 497 10.97
b) Non-current Investments 12 4.50 17.88
c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 13 7.78 1.19
d) Long-term Loans and Advances 14 2096.76 737.64
e) Other Non-current Assets 15 173.42 223.89
2) Current Assets
a) Current Investments - -
b) Inventories 16 649.28 799.34
c) Trade Receivables 17 904.98 1056.64
d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 22.19 6.67
e) Short-term Loans and Advances 19 646.15 82.18
f) Other Current Assets 20 0 7.64
Total 5960.70 4953.85
Significant Accounting Policies 18&2
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For, DJNV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W
(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi)  (Arjun Gandhi)  (Pradip Parikh)  (Anjali Samani)
Partner Joint MD Director CFO CS
Membership No. 175839 00118559 09254434 AlZPP5478) A65647
UDIN: 23175839BGXUUM4043
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29-05-2023 Date : 29-05-2023
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi)
Partner Joint MD
Membership No. 175839 00118559

UDIN: 23175839BGXUUMA4043

(Arjun Gandhi)
Director
09254434

(“in lacs)

Note No. As at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 21 4267.83 4775.25
Other Income 22 384.58 57.02
TOTAL REVENUE 4652.41 4832.27
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 23 2600.36 2663.87
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 24 176.45 195.07
Changes in Inventories 25 21.38 -11.35
Employees Benefits Expenses 26 358.11 348.36
Finance Cost 27 56.67 70.92
Depreciation and Amortization 167.14 162.44
Other Expenses 28 1099.19 1203.48
TOTAL EXPENSES 4479.3 4632.79
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 173.11 199.47
Exceptional Items - -
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 173.11 199.47
Extraordinary items -
Profit before Tax 173.11 199.47
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 0.00 52.15
Deferred Tax (6.59) -0.97
Other Tax Exp / Adj. for Earlier year 0.00 0.74
Profit / (loss) for the Period 179.70 147.55
Earnings Per Equity Share
Basic 29 2.18 2.02
Diluted 29 2.18 2.02
Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For, DJNV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

(Pradip Parikh) (Anjali Samani)

CFO
AIZPP5478)

cS
A65647

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29-05-2023 Date : 29-05-2023
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(“in lacs)
Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax 173.09 199.47
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 167.14 162.44
Provision for tax - -
Effect of Exchange Rate Change (23.60) -
Loss/(Gain) on Sale / Discard of Assets (Net) (251.01) 0.01
Bad debt, provision for doudtfull debts - -
Net Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Investments - (0.74)
Non Cash Expenses - -
Dividend Income (2.01) (2.01)
Interest Income (107.40) (33.53)
Finance Costs 56.67 70.93
Operating Profit before working capital changes 12.90 396.57
Adustment for:
Inventories 150.06 (207.76)
Trade Receivables 175.26 (758.38)
Other Current Assets 7.64 340.93
Trade Payables (218.07) 450.29
Other Current Liabilities 43.85 -
Short-term Provisions (0.41) -
Cash generated from Operations 171.23 221.64
Tax paid(Net) 0.30 52.15
Net Cash from Operating Activities 170.93 169.49
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (130.26) (180.79)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 779.26 0.02
Purchase of Investments Property - -
Sale of Investment Property - -
Purchase of Equity Instruments - -
Proceeds from Sale ofEquity Instruments 13.38 -
Purchase of Mutual Funds - -
Proceeds from Sale / Redmption of Mutual Funds -
Purchase of Preference Shares - -
Proceeds from Sale/Redemption ofPreference Shares -
Purchase of Government or trust securities - -
Proceeds from Sale/Redemption of Government or trust securities - -
Purchase of debentures or bonds - -
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Proceeds from Sale/Redemption ofdebentures or bonds -

Purchase of Other Investments - -

Sale / Redemption of Other Investments - -

Loans and Advances given (1,923.09) -

Proceeds from Loans and Advances - -

Investment in Term Deposits 50.46 -

Maturity of Term Deposits - -

Interest received 107.40 33.53
Dividend received 2.01 2.01
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (1,100.85) (145.23)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital 1,288.13 429.38
Buyback of Shares - -
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - -
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - (76.21)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (0.00) -
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings (271.73) (304.71)

Minority Interest Movement

Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) -

Interest Paid (70.96) (70.93)
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities 945.43 (22.47)
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.52 1.79
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.67 4.88

Exchange difference of Foreign Currency Cash and Cash equivalents - -

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 22.19 6.67

Note:

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 (AS-
3), “Cash Flow Statements”.

2 Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the statement of cashflow:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Balance with banks

In current Accounts 0.18 3.65
In CC with debit balance 16.83 0.00
Cash on hand 5.18 3.02
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the 22.19 6.67
year
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3 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For, DINV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi)  (Arjun Gandhi) (Pradip Parikh) (Anjali Samani)
Partner Joint MD Director CFO (&)
Membership No. 175839 00118559 09254434 AIZPP5478) A65647

UDIN: 23175839BGXUUMA4043

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29-05-2023 Date : 29-05-2023
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2023

1. Corporate Information
Ushanti Colour Chem Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of Manufacturing of Dyestuffs, Pigments and
Intermediates. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE). The registered office of the
company is located at 88/6/7/8 Phase | GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445. The Company caters to both domestic and
international markets.
2. Significant Accounting Policies:
2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
2.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions which affect the reporting amount of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialized.
2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Measurement
(i) Land
Land is initially recognized at cost.
(ii) Factory Building and other property, plant and equipment
Factory building and all other items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
(iii) Components of costs
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognized includes its purchase price and any
cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
(b) Depreciation and Amortization
(i) Leasehold Land
Premium paid on leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.
(ii) Other Tangible Assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the written down method to allocate their
depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013.
The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognized
in profit or loss when the changes arise.
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(iii) Intangible Assets

Computer Software is amortized over the period of 5 years as estimated by the Company.
Waste Disposal Rights are amortized over the useful life of 10 years as estimated by the Company.

(c) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognized is added
to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance expenses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when incurred.

(d) Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

24 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFO basis. (Batch wise)

25 Revenue Recognition
(i) Revenue from sales is recognized at the point of dispatch to the customers when risk and reward stand transfer
to the customers. Sales are booked net of sales return and exclusive of GST.
(i) Export incentives and interest income are accounted for on accrual basis.
(iii) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

2.6 Purchase and Expenses
(i)  Purchases are shown exclusive of taxes /duties wherever input tax credit is taken and net of Trade Discounts
availed from suppliers and purchase return.

(ii) Major items of the expenses are accounted on time / pro-rata basis and necessary provisions for the same are
made.

2.7 Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/year in
which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount as and when it accrues.

Long term employee benefits and post employment benefits both funded and non funded are recognized as expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/year in which the related service is rendered based on actuarial
valuation done by LIC.

2.8 Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the
tax rates and lows that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is
recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realized in
future.

2.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow
of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Disclosure for Contingent Liabilities
is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, requires an outflow
of resources. No provision is recognized or disclosure for Contingent Liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent
Asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

2.10 Impairment of Assets
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An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period/year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount.

211 Foreign Currency Transactions

(i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

(i)  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the period/year-end are restated at period/year-end
rates.

(iii) Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Premium or discount on forward contracts for hedging foreign currency transactions are amortized and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the contract.

2.12 Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current
investments. All other investments are classified as long- term investments. Current Investments are carried at lower
of cost and quoted/fair value determined on category/item wise. Long Term Investments are stated at cost. However,
Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary.

213 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.14 Government Grants

Grants and subsidy from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense
item, it is netted off from the respective expenses necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs, which
it is intended to compensate. Where the grants or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted in arriving at the
carrying amount of the related asset.

2.15 Leases

The company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for factory. The leasing
arrangements are usually renewable by mutual consent at agreed terms. The aggregate lease rent payable is charged
as rent in Statement of Profit & Loss.
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 3 : Share Capital (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value, 15000000 (Previous Year -15000000) Equity Shares 1500.00 1500.00
Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value 10301700 (Previous Year -7301700) Equity Shares paid
up 1030.17 730.17
Total 1,030.17 730.17
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% % Held to
share in the company No. of shares as at | No. of sharesasat | % Held to total
315 March, 2023 315 March, 2022 total Shares Shares
Mr. Shantilal B. Gandhi 17,12,247 16.62% 17,12,247 23.45%
Mr. Minku S. Gandhi 13,73,427 13.33% 13,73,427 18.81%
Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi 13,69,416 13.29% 13,69,416 18.75%
Mrs. Monaben M. Gandhi - 0.00% 4,83,250 6.62%
Mrs. Shefaliben M. Gandhi - 0.00% 4,83,250 6.62%
No. of shares as at | No. of shares as at As at 31-03- As at 31-
The Reconciliation of the number of shares 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 2023 03-2022
Opening Balance 73,01,700 730.17 73,01,700 730.17
Issued during the year 30,00,000 300.00 - -
Deletion during the year - - - -
Closing balance 1,03,01,700 1,030.17 73,01,700 730.17

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the

Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2023

Name of Promoter Class of Shares

No. of Shares

% of total shares

% Change during the year

Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi Equity 13,69,416 13.29% 0.00%
Mr. Minkubhai S. Gandhi Equity 13,73,427 13.33% 0.00%
Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2022
% Change during
Name of Promoter Class of Shares No. of Shares % of total shares the year
Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi Equity 13,69,416 18.75% 0.73%
Mr. Minkubhai S. Gandhi Equity 13,73,427 18.81% 0.73%
Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus (inlacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 1.00 1.00
Closing Balance 1.00 1.00
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 968.27 968.27
Add/(Less): Adjustment 1,417.50 -
Closing Balance 2,385.77 968.27
Statement of Profit and loss
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Balance at the beginning of the year 1,178.46 1,030.91
Add: Profit during the year 179.68 147.55
Balance at the end of the year 1358.15 1,178.46
Total 3,744.91 2,147.73
Note 5 : Money received against share warrants (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Money received against share warrants - 429.38
Total - 429.38

Note - 25% application money (subscription price) received in the year 2021-22 for
30,00,000 Convertible Equity Warrants at price of Rs. 57.25 having face value of Rs.
10 each. Balance 75% of the issue price received in the current year 2022-23 and
converted to equity shares.

Note 6 : Other Long Term Liabilities (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Others

-Deposits (Payable) 0.15 0.15
Total 0.15 0.15
Note: 7: Short term Borrowing (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Secured Loans repayable on demand from banks

-Cash Credit facilities - 115.08
Forward Contract Payable 0.33 0.01
Working Capital facilities 154.73 390.99
Unsecured Loans and advances from related parties 238.42 159.13
Total 393.48 665.21

i) Loans repayable on demand from banks:

(a) Cash credit facility is secured against trade receivables of the Company. Further, it has been personally guaranteed by Directors
and Promoter of the company and Third parties. It carries interest @ 9% p.a. as on 26/06/2020, 8.5% p.a. as on 10/07/2020 and
9.85% p.a. as on 28/02/2022.

(b) Working capital facility is primarily secured against inventories, trade (export) receivables and collateral security of plant and
equipments and factory shed of the Company. Further, it has been personally guaranteed by Directors and Promoter of the
company. It is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 9% p.a. as on 26/06/2020, 8.5% p.a. as on 10/07/2020 and 9.85% p.a.
as on 28/02/2022.

ii) Loans and advances from Directors and Related Parties :

Unsecured loans from directors and related parties are taken and maintained during the year pursuant to the stipulation mentioned
by the banks for loans facilities availed from them and are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 9% p.a. (P.Y. 9% p.a.)

Note 8 : Trade Payable (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 403.93 422.18
Due to Other 140.02 339.85
Total 543.95 762.03

8.1 Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 (in'lacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than one year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
MSME 403.93 - - - 403.93
Others 136.07 - - - 136.07
Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues — Others - 3.96 3.96
Sub Total 543.96
MSME — Undue -

Others — Undue -
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Total 543.96

8.2 Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 (in lacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than one year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total

MSME 422.18 - - - 422.18

Others 335.89 - - - 335.89

Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -

Disputed dues — Others 3.96 - - - 3.96

Sub Total 762.03

MSME — Undue

Others — Undue

Total 762.03

Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 6.29 20.58
Income received in advance - 15.87
Other Payables

Creditors for Expenses 92.20 142.44
Other Current Liabilities - 1.61
Other Statutory Liabilities 117.97 6.40
Total 216.46 186.90
Note 10 : Short Term Provisions (in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Provision for Employee Benefits 30.68 31.09
Others

Provision for Tax Earlier Years 0.89 1.19
Total 31.57 32.28
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment (“inlacs)
Name of

Assets Gross Block Depreciation and Amortization Net Block Net Block

As on Additio |Deducti| Ason Ason |forthe As on As on As on
1Apr22 |n on (31 Mar23 | 1Apr22| year |Deduction| 31 Mar 23 31 Mar 23 31 Mar 22

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Factory Land 1.82 1.82 - - - 1.82 1.82
Leasehold

Land - Dahej* | 1,222.39 -| 562.96 659.43 53.56 6.59 34.70 25.45 633.98 1,168.83
Office

Building 34.36 34.36 5.31 7.52 12.83 21.53 29.05
Factory

Building 273.16 273.16| 158.56| 11.27 169.83 103.33 114.60
Plant and

Equipments 1,164.53| 152.57 1,317.10 741.56| 84.78 826.34 490.77 422.97
Pollution

Control Plant 189.57 189.57 109.33| 14.74 124.07 65.50 80.24
Furniture & 70.91 0.09 71.00 23.08| 12.15 35.23 35.78 47.83
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Fixtures
Vehicles** 146.17 0.50 146.67| 120.30 8.84 129.14 17.53 25.88
Office
Equipments 17.98 0.18 18.17 11.91 1.14 13.05 5.12 6.08
Electric
Fittings 43.17 43.17 32.31 4.99 37.30 5.88 10.87
Computers 15.03 1.71 16.74 13.87 0.99 14.87 1.88 1.16
Total 3,179.10| 155.05| 562.96| 2,771.20| 1,269.79| 153.00 34.70| 1,388.09 1,383.11 1,909.31
Previous Year | 2,955.09| 224.12 0.12| 3,179.10| 1,114.79| 155.10 0.09| 1,269.79 1,909.31 1,840.31
**\/ehicles are held in the name of Directors of the company.
(ii) Intangible Assets
Computer
Software 10.32 10.32 1.86 6.29 8.15 2.17 8.46
Waste
Disposal
Rights 113.69 6.00 119.69 57.66 7.85 65.51 54.18 56.03
Total 124.01 6.00 - 130.01 59.52| 14.14 - 73.66 56.35 64.49
Previous Year 103.32| 20.69 - 124.01 52.17 7.34 - 59.52 64.49 51.14
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 11.22 36.01
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 4.97 10.97
(i) Capital Work-in-progress (“inlacs)
31 March
Particulars 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 36.01 100.29
Add: Addition during the year 82.30 113.82
Less: Capitalised during the year 107.09 178.09
Closing Balance 11.22 36.01
Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Scheduled (“inlacs)
Capital Work- 31 March
in-Progress Amount in CWIP for a period of 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2022
Less
Less than| 1-2 2-3 |More than Total |than1|1-2Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
lyear | Years | Years 3 Years Years
year
Projects in
progress - 0.91| 10.31 - 11.22 0.91 11.04 24.07 - 36.01
Projects
temporarily
suspended - - - - - - - - - -
Disclosure for Project Overdue or exceeded its budgeted cost (“in lacs)
Capital Work-
in-Progress To be Completed To be Completed
. Less More .
Project than 1 1-2 2-3Years | than3 Project [Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Status Years Status year Years
year Years
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There is no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

Intangible assets under development (“in lacs)
31 March
Particulars 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 10.97 10.72
Add: Addition during the year 6.00 12.54
Less: Capitalised during the year 12.00 12.29
Closing Balance 4.97 10.97
Intangible assets under development ageing Schedule (“inlacs)
31 March
Intangible Amount in CWIP for a period of 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2022
assets under Less
development Less than| 1-2 2-3 | More than Total |than1|1-2Years | 2-3Years | M°F€ than 3 Total
lyear | Years | Years 3 Years Years
year
Projects in
progress - - 4.97 4.97 6.00 - 4.97 - 10.97
Projects
temporarily
suspended - - - - - - - - -
Disclosure for Project Overdue or exceeded its budgeted cost (“inlacs)
Intangible Tt be Completed as at 31 Marc“l;IZOZ3 To be Completed as at 31 March 2022
assets under | project ess 1-2 ore Project [Less than 1 More than 3
than 1 2-3Y th 1-2Y 2-3Y
development | status a2 Years 3 Years an3 | giatus year ears 3 Years Years
year Years

There is no intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

Note 12 : Non-Current Investments (“inlacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Unquoted Trade Investments in Equity Instruments 4.50 4.50
Unquoted Other Investments in Equity Instruments - 13.38
Total 4.50 17.88
12.1 Details of Investment
(“inlacs)

Name of Entity No of 31 No of 31

Shares March Shares March

2023 2022
Trade Investment
U C Colours and Intermediates Private Limited, Unquoted
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 45,000 4.50 45,000 4.50
Non-Trade Investment
The Kalupur Co. Op. Bank Limited, Unquoted Equity Shares of Rs. 25 each fully - - 53,511 13.38
paid up
Note 13 : Deferred tax assets net (“in lacs)
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Deferred tax asset 7.78 1.19
Total 7.78 1.19
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13.1 Significant Components of Deferred Tax (“inlacs)

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Deferred Tax Asse

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 7.78 1.19

Gross Deferred Tax Asset (A) 7.78 1.19

Deferred Tax Liability

Gross Deferred Tax Liability (B) - -

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 7.78 1.19

13.2 Significant components of Deferred Tax charged during the year (“inlacs)

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets -6.59 -0.97

Total -6.59 -0.97

Note 14 : Long Term Loans and Advances (“inlacs)

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Capital Advances

Others 0.31 193.56

Long Term Loans and Advances to related parties

-Advance to Directors 307.51 -

- Advance to Subsidiary 863.28 536.17

Other Loans and Advances (Unsecured, Considered good)

-Balances with Statutory / Govt. Authorities (long term) 5.00 5.00

-Receivable for Land 919.53 -

-Other Advances - Long Term 1.13 1.63

-Other long Term Loans and Advances - 1.28
Total 2,096.76 737.64

i) Loans and Advances to subsidiary:

Loans and Advances provided to subisidiary U C Colours and Intermediates

Private Limited is given and maintained during the year are repayable on

demand and carries interest @ 9.25% p.a. (P.Y. 7% p.a.)

ii) Loans and Advances to directors:

Loans and Advances provided to directors is given and maintained during the

year are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 9.25% p.a. (P.Y. N.A.)

Note 15 : Other Non-current Assets (“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Security Deposits 173.42 223.89
Total 173.42 223.89

Note 16: Inventories (“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials 292.60 420.76
Finished goods 353.96 375.34
Packing Material 2.72 3.23
Total 649.28 799.34
Note 17: Trade receivables (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Unsecured considered good

904.98

1,056.64
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Total 904.98 1,056.64
Note 17.1: Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 (“in lacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less 6 More
than 6 | months- 1-2 23 than 3 Total
years | years
months | 1year years
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 325.62 69.91 - - - 395.53
Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -
Sub total 395.53
Undue - considered good 509.45
Undue - considered doubtful -
Provision for doubtful debts -
Total 904.98
Note 17.2: Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 (" inlacs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

6 More
Less than 6 |month |1-2 2-3
than 3 | Total
months s-1 years | years
years
year
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 495.94 - - - - 495.94
Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -
Sub total 495.94
Undue - considered good 560.70
Undue - considered doubtful -
Provision for doubtful debts -
Total 1,056.64

Note 18: Cash and cash equivalents

("in lacs)
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Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Cash on hand 5.18 3.02
Balances with banks in current accounts 0.18 3.65
Others

-CC with debit balance 16.83 -
Total 22.19 6.67
Note 19: Short term loans and advances (“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for taxes) 64.12 1.61
Other loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)
-Advance to suppliers 2.11 -
-Balances with Statutory / Govt. Authorities 5.41 67.06
-Forward Contract Receivable 0.90 -
-Loans to Employees 3.49 3.01
-Other Advances 1.59 -
-Other Short Term Loans and Advances 556.86 -
-Prepaid Expenses 11.67 10.50
Total 646.15 82.18
Note 20: Other current assets ("in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due - 7.64
Total - 7.64
Note 21: Revenue from operations (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Sale of products

-Sale of products ( Finshed & Traded, Gross) 4,228.22 4,751.23

-Scrap Sales 2.00 0.10
Other operating revenues

-Consultancy Income 11.05 2.21

-Export incentives 26.56 21.71

Total 4,267.83 4,775.25

Note 22: Other Income (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest Income

- On Bank Deposits 0.07 5.46
- Others 107.33 28.07
Dividend Income 2.01 2.01

Others
-Foreign Exchange Gain (net) 23.60 19.11
-Miscellaneous Income - 0.04
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-Premium on Forward Contract 0.56 2.18
-Profit on sale of Land 251.01 -
-Sundry Balance written off - 0.15

Total 384.58 57.02
Note 23: Cost of Material Consumed (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Raw Material Consumed

Opening stock 420.76 22417
Purchases 2,472.19 2,860.47
Less: Closing stock 292.60 420.76
Total 2,600.36 2,663.87
Total 2,600.36 2,663.87
Note 24: Purchases of stock in trade (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Alpha/Pigment Dyes 44,77 24.68
Direct Dyes 127.13 94.57
Reactive Dyes 4.55 75.82
Total 176.45 195.07
Note 25: Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Opening Inventories

Finished Goods 375.34 363.99
Less: Closing Inventories

Finished Goods 353.96 375.34
Total 21.38 (11.35)
Note 26: Employee benefit expenses (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Salaries and wages

-Directors Remuneration 141.14 134.40
-Salary, Incentives, Hak Raja, Bonus, Contribution to EPF and ESI 205.08 212.33
-Contribution to provident and other funds
-Gratuity Fund Contribution 11.62 1.36
-Staff welfare expenses 0.27 0.28
Total 358.11 348.37
Note 27: Finance costs (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense
-Bank Charges and Commission 0.11 -
-Interest paid to Banks and Financial Institutions 29.89 30.41
-Other Interest Paid 21.57 24.97
Other borrowing costs
-Bank Charges and Commission 5.10 15.54
Total 56.67 70.92

Note:

1. The Company has availed interest subvention of Rs.6,08,174/- during the period (P.Y : Rs. 25,37,216/-) from bank on working

capital facility which has been reduced from interest expenses.
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2. The Company has availed interest subvention of Rs. N.A. during the period (P.Y : Rs. 26,386/-) from SIDBI under capital

expansion scheme which has been reduced from interest expenses.

3. Interest to MSME is not provided as per the explanation provided by the management after confirmation letters from the

parties that the payment made is within due dates.

Note 28: Other expenses (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Auditors' Remuneration 2.70 2.70
Commission 3.62 9.19
Insurance 18.38 20.89
Rent 8.70 8.70
Repairs to buildings 7.39 9.02
Repairs to machinery 53.87 74.69
Rates and taxes 1.53 2.16
Selling & Distribution Expenses
-Other Sales and Distribution Expenses 6.98 9.78
-Sales Promotion and Advertisement 5.74 1.28
Travelling Expenses 12.75 9.18
Miscellaneous expenses
-Interest on TDS 0.01 -
-Others 5.08 4.54
Donation - 0.10
Import Expense 0.11 0.21
Laboratory Expenses 7.08 5.13
Labour and processing charges 58.58 87.89
Legal and Professional Fees 12.70 11.90
Loss on Sale/Disposal of Assets - 0.01
Office Maintenance 7.07 6.05
Packing Material Consumed 8.48 44.80
Pollution Control Expenses 114.33 188.95
Power, Fuel and Water 703.63 627.01
Safety Expenses 0.44 1.24
Security Expense 7.58 9.71
Shipping Expenses 37.64 51.24
Stationary, Printing and Other Office Expenses 8.37 9.99
Telephone and Communication 2.18 1.96
Transportation Charges - 1.31
Vehicle Running and Maintenance 4.25 3.85
Total 1,099.19 1,203.48

Note 29: Earning per share

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (" in lacs) 179.68 147.55
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 82,35,330 73,01,700
Earnings per share basic (Rs) 2.18 2.02
Earnings per share diluted (Rs) 2.18 2.02
Face value per equity share (Rs) 10 10
Note 30: Auditors' Remuneration ("in lacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022
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Payments to auditor as
- Auditor 2.50 2.50
- for other services 0.20 0.20
Total 2.70 2.70
Note 31: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (*in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Corporate Guarantees given for Subsidiary Company Financial Facilities (UC
Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd.) 4,250.00 4,250.00
Total 4,250.00 4,250.00
Note 32: Earnings in Foreign Currencies ("in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Export of Goods calculated on FOB basis 1,129.75 1,389.79
Total 1,129.75 1,389.79
Note 33: Expenditure made in Foreign Currencies ("in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other Matters 0.01 -
Commission 2.20 13.56
Travelling 0.41 -
Total 2.63 13.56
Note 34: Related Party Disclosure
(i) List of Related Parties Relationship Relationship
Key
Managerial
Personnel
Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (KMP)
Key
Managerial
Personnel
Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (KMP)
Key
Managerial
Personnel
CS Anjali Samani Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (KMP)
Key
CS Archita Jitendra Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Managerial
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Personnel
(KMP)

CFO Pradip B Parikh

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key
Managerial
Personnel
(KMP)

Arjun Maunal Gandhi

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key
Managerial
Personnel
(KMP)

Heli Akash Garala

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key
Managerial
Personnel
(KMP)

Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Shantibhai B. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Smt. Mona M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Arjun M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Aadit M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Relative of
Key
Managerial
Personnel

Enterprise in
which Relative

of KMP is
Enterprise in which Relative of KMP is interested as
HUF Industries interested as member member
Subsidiary
UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company Company
(ii) Related Party Transactions (“in lacs)
31 March
Particulars Relationship 31 March 2023 2022
Loan Accepted
Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 493.05 751.75
Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 506.45 621.50
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Key Managerial

- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 45.90 92.00
Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel - 4.00
Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.50 -
Loan Repaid

Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 430.53 735.25

Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 525.57 553.78

Key Managerial
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 32.87 151.15

Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.56 11.20

Relative of Key
- Arjun M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel - 6.59

Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 9.55 44.53

Directors Remuneration

Key Managerial

- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 67.20 69.32
Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 67.20 69.32
Key Managerial
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 6.74 6.74
Salary

Key Managerial
- CS Archita Jitendra Shah Personnel (KMP) - 1.35

Key Managerial
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Personnel (KMP) 8.51 8.24

Key Managerial
- Heli Akash Garala Personnel (KMP) 1.84 1.50

Relative of Key
- Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 13.44 12.00

Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 24.02 24.02

Relative of Key
- Smt. Mona M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 13.44 12.00

Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 7.46 6.74

Key Managerial
- CS Anjali Samani Personnel (KMP) 2.62 -

Other Interest Paid

Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 8.74 4.68
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Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 9.95 5.37

Key Managerial
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 2.38 6.55

Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.01 0.20

Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.31 3.78

Rent Expense

Enterprise in which
Relative of KMP is
- HUF Industries interested as member 8.70 8.70

Loan Given

Key Managerial
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Personnel (KMP) 0.30 1.50

- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 362.94 0.01

Key Managerial
- CS Anjali Samani Personnel (KMP) 0.42 -

Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 150.00 -

Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 150.00 -

Rent Deposit Given

Enterprise in which
Relative of KMP is
- HUF Industries interested as member - 50.00

Consultancy Income

- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 11.05 2.22

Interest income

- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 63.47 19.95

Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 3.76 -

Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 3.76 -

Loan received back

- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 92.95 518.21
Key Managerial
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Personnel (KMP) 0.35 -
Sale of Land
- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 779.26 -

Sale of products ( Finshed & Traded, Gross)

- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 53.66 -
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(iii) Related Party Balances (“in lacs)
31 March
Particulars Relationship 31 March 2023 2022
Unsecured Loans and advances from related parties
Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 132.96 63.11
Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 71.66 82.36
Key Managerial
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 40.10 24.93
Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel - 0.55
Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel - 8.77
Provision for employee benefits
Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 3.07 2.82
Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 3.07 2.82
Key Managerial
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Personnel (KMP) 0.71 0.60
Key Managerial
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 0.46 0.68
Key Managerial
- Heli Akash Garala Personnel (KMP) - 0.30
Relative of Key
- Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.80 0.81
Relative of Key
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 1.93 2.00
Relative of Key
- Smt. Mona M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.80 0.81
Relative of Key
- Aadit M. Gandhi Managerial Personnel 0.46 0.72
Loans to Employees
Key Managerial
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Personnel (KMP) 1.39 1.50
Key Managerial
- CS Anjali Samani Personnel (KMP) 0.38 -
Advance to subsidiary
- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 863.28 536.17
Trade Receivable
- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 26.80 0.74

Unqguoted Trade Investments in Equity Instruments
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- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 4.50 4.50
Rent Deposit receivable
Enterprise in which
Relative of KMP is
- HUF Industries interested as member 50.00 50.00
Receivable for Land
- UC Colours and Intermediates Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary Company 919.53 -
Advance to Director
Key Managerial
- Minku S. Gandhi. Personnel (KMP) 153.76 -
Key Managerial
- Maunal S. Gandhi Personnel (KMP) 153.76 -
Note 35: Loans and Advances given to Related Parties (“inlacs)
Type of Borrower 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount outstanding % of Total o:t:t‘:::itng % of Total
Promoters 307.51 26.27% - 0.00%
Subsidiary 863.28 73.73% 536.17 100.00%
Total 1,170.79 100.00% 536.17 100.00%
Note 36: Security of Current Assets Against Borrowings
barticulars June, 2022 September, 2022 De;;';zber' March, 2023
Inventory as per Quarterly
Return filed with Bank 705.84 568.99 663.96 642.97
Add:
Valuation Difference - - - -
Difference due to Physical
verification - - - -
Purchase Bill accounted later - - - 6.31
others 1 - - - -
others 2 - - - -
Less:
Valuation Difference - 2.26 5.58 -

Difference due to Physical
verification

Sale Bill accounted later
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By mistake WIP added 60.69 - - R

Purchase Bill accounted twice - - 40.12 -

Expense entry booked in
purchase - - 54.85 -

Inventory as per Books of
Account 645.15 566.73 563.41 649.28

The figures
The figures provided in provided in the
the bank were on a bank were on a
provisional basis which - provisional -
were subject to basis which
finalization. were subject to
finalization..

Reason for Material
Dicrepancies

December,

June, 2022 September, 2022 2022

Particulars March, 2023

Trade Receivable as per
Quarterly Return filed with Bank 849.04 848.74 491.24 580.54

Add:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical
verification

Purchase Bill accounted later

others 1 due to post dated chqgs
posting in current month 40.85

others 2 bk paymt advice not
received in time and also some
party deposited cheque directly
to our account. 6.26 19.40

Less:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical
verification

Sale Bill accounted later

others 1 due to bank receipt
entry done later. 3.27

others 2

Trade Receivable as per Books
of Account 845.77 889.59 497.50 599.94

Reason for Material
Dicrepancies - - - -
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December,
particulars June, 2022 September, 2022 2022 March, 2023

Trade Payable as per Quarterly
Return filed with Bank - 196.38 25.29 111.39

Add:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical
verification

Purchase Bill accounted later

others 1 460.39 515.62 488.80 430.46

others 2

Less:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical
verification

Sale Bill accounted later

others 1

others 2

Trade Payable as per Books of
Account 460.39 712.00 514.09 541.85

Reason for Material The Figures were provided for export debtors balances as the bank provided us
Dicrepancies wrong format.

Notes 37: Ratio Analysis

, Numerator/Denomina 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 | Change in %
Particulars tor

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets 1.87 1.19 58.10%
Current Liabilities

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debts 0.08 0.20 -59.03%
Shareholder’s Equity

Earning available for
Debt Service

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio N.A. 9.13 N.A.

Debt Service
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(d) Return on Equity Ratio Profit after Tax 4.45% 4.46% -0.34%
Average Shareholder’s
Equity
(e) Inventory turnover ratio Total Turnnover 5.89 12.85 -54.16%

Average Inventories

. Total Turnover
(f) Trade receivables turnover —

. Average Account 4.35 4.76 -8.66%

ratio .
Receivable
Total Purchases
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Average Account 4.06 5.63 -27.90%
Payable
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Total Turnover 4.12 15.52 -73.49%
Net Working Capital

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit 4.21% 3.11% 35.57%

Total Turnover

Earning before

(j) Return on Capital employed interest and taxes 4.45% 6.81% -34.69%
Capital Employed
Return on Investment 44.59% 11.22% 297.28%

(k) Return on investment
Total Investment

(a) Current Ratio - The ratio is increased due to increase in current assets.

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio - The ratio is decreased due to loan repayment.

(e) Inventory turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in average inventories.

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in average suppliers.

(h) Net capital turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in Net Working Capital.

(i) Net profit ratio - The ratio is increased due to increase in Profit as compare to Turnover.

(j) Return on Capital employed - The ratio is decreased due to increase in capital employed.

(k) Return on investment - The ratio is increased due to sale of investment.

100 Annual Report-2022-23

F-50



o gi' A

Colour Chem Limited

Notes 38: Other Statutory Disclosures as per the Companies Act, 2013

The Company does not have anything to report in respect of the following:

® Benami properties

¢ Trading or investment in crypto or virtual currency

 Giving/receiving of any loan or advance or funds with the understanding that the recipient shall lend, invest, provide
security or guarantee on behalf of the Company/funding party

¢ Transactions not recorded in books that were surrendered or disclosed as income during income-tax assessment

¢ Charges or satisfaction not registered with ROC beyond statutory period

o Title deeds in respect of freehold immovable properties not being held in the name of the Company.

® Transactions with struck-off companies

* Non-compliance with number of layers as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

o Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Notes 39: Regrouping

Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped, re-classified and re-arranged whenever necessary.

Notes 40: Other Notes

The Company has received intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006, and hence, disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the period end as
required under the act has been given. The interest has not been provided as per the explanation provided by the
management after confirmation letters from the parties that the payment is made within due dates.

Disclosure requirement as required by the AS-15 (Revised 2005), Employee Benefits are not given in view of non-
availability of the required information with the company.

For, DJNV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi)  (Arjun Gandhi) (Pradip Parikh) (Anjali Samani)
Partner Joint MD Director CFO (o
Membership No. 175839 00118559 09254434 AIZPP5478) A65647

UDIN: 23175839BGXUUMA4043

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29-05-2023 Date : 29-05-2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED(hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) Inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023;
b) Inthe case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the profit for the year ended on that date.
¢) Inthe case of the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the Consolidated AS Financial Statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated AS Financial Statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated AS Financial
Statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance
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with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure A"; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, we report that:

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report and to our best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

vii. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of the Group.

viii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iX. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies.

1 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2 The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

3 Based on such audit procedures we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

Xi. The company has neither declared nor paid dividend during the year as per Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Xii. As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable for the year under audit.

2.  With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the
“Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the
Auditors’ Report, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO report issued by
us for the Holding Company and based on CARO report issued in respect of an subsidiary company whose financial
information has been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements and to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For, DIJNV & CO.

Chartered Accountants

CA Shruti C Shah

(Partner)

Membership No.175839
UDIN: 23175839BGXUUN9188
Firm Reg. N0.0115145W

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29/05/2023
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED as of 315 March
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

for DINV & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 29/05/2023 CA Shruti C Shah

(Partner)

Membership No. 175839
UDIN: 23175839BGXUUN9188
Firm Reg. No.0115145W
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In Lacs)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
1) Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 3 1,030.17 730.17
b) Reserves and Surplus 4 3,630.91 2,115.28
c) Money received against share warrants 5 - 429.37
1) Minority Interest (0.65) (0.50)
2) Share application money pending allotment - -
3) Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-term Borrowings 6 2,885.76 810.76
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
c) Other Long term Liabilities 7 0.15 0.15
d) Long Term Provisions - -
4) Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 8 1,162.33 842.83
b) Trade Payables 9
Due to MSME 539.41 422.18
Other than MSME 140.03 339.85
c) Other Current Liabilities 10 601.97 316.39
d) Short-term Provisions 11 31.57 32.28
Total 10,021.65 6,038.76
Il. ASSETS
1) Non-current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 12 2176.30 1909.75
(i) Intangible Assets 12 57.20 64.49
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 12 3815.19 1,028.38
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 12 4.97 10.97
b) Non-current Investments 13 0.00 13.38
c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 14 7.41 1.24
d) Long-term Loans and Advances 15 313.96 201.47
e) Other Non-current Assets 16 241.66 262.93
2) Current Assets
a) Current Investments - -
b) Inventories 17 649.28 799.34
c) Trade Receivables 18 1058.17 1055.90
d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 96.77 23.44
e) Short-term Loans and Advances 20 1600.01 556.64
f) Other Current Assets 21 0.73 110.83
Total 10021.65 6038.76
Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For, DINV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi)  (Arjun Gandhi) (Pradip Parikh)  (Anjali Samani)
Partner Joint MD Director CFO (&
Membership No. 112249 00118559 09254434 AlZPP5478) A65647

UDIN: 22112249AKDEMG3412

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29-05-2023 Date: 29-05-2023
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In Lacs)
Note As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 4399.35 4773.04
Other Income 23 321.92 39.73
Total Income 4721.26 4812.76
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 24 2600.36 2663.87
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 25 321.35 195.08
Changes in Inventories 26 21.38 (11.35)
Employees Benefits Expenses 27 362.04 348.37
Finance Cost 28 56.67 79.68
Depreciation and Amortization 167.75 162.92
Other Expenses 29 1099.88 1206.94
Total Expenses 4629.42 4645.50
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 91.84 167.27
Exceptional Items - -
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 91.84 167.27
Extraordinary items - -
Profit before tax 91.84 167.27
Tax Expenses
Current Tax - 52.15
Deferred Tax (6.17) (1.02)
Other Tax Exp / Adj. for Earlier year 0.03 0.74
Profit / (loss) for the Period 97.98 115.39
Less: Share in Profit/(Loss) of Minority Interest (0.15) (1)
Profit / (loss) for the Period for Equity holders 98.13 116.39
Earning Per Equity Share
Basic 30 1.19 1.59
Diluted 30 1.19 1.59
Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For, DINV & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

(CA Shruti C Shah)

Partner

Membership No. 112249
UDIN: 22112249AKDEMG3412
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29-05-2023

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

(Maunal S. Gandhi)
Joint MD
00118559

(Arjun Gandhi)
Director
09254434

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-05-2023

(Pradip Parikh)
CFO
AlZPP5478)

(Anjali Samani)

CS
A65647
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Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow as at 31st March, 2023

(in lacs)
Particulars Note 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax 91.84 167.27
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 167.75 162.92
Provision for tax - -
Effect of Exchange Rate Change (23.60) -
Loss/(Gain) on Sale / Discard of Assets (Net) (251.01) 0.01
Bad debt, provision for doudtfull debts - -
Net Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Investments - -
Other tax adjustment - (0.74)
Dividend Income (2.01) (2.01)
Interest Income (44.74) (33.53)
Finance Costs 56.67 70.93
Operating Profit before working capital changes (5.10) 364.84
Adustment for:
Inventories 150.06 (207.76)
Trade Receivables 21.32 (117.91)
Other Current Assets 110.10 (276.04)
Trade Payables (82.59) 575.78
Other Current Liabilities 285.58 -
Short-term Provisions (0.70) -
Cash generated from Operations 478.68 338.92
Tax paid(Net) 0.03 52.15
Net Cash from Operating Activities 478.65 286.77
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (2,956.83) (1,004.95)
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Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

0.02

Purchase of Investments Property

Sale of Investment Property

Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments

Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale / Redmption of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale/Redemption of Preference Shares

Purchase of Government or trust securities

Proceeds from Sale/Redemption of Government or trust securities

Purchase of debentures or bonds

Proceeds from Sale/Redemption of debentures or bonds

Purchase of Other Investments

Sale / Redemption of Other Investments

Loans and Advances given

(1,155.85)

Proceeds from Loans and Advances

Investment in Term Deposits

21.27

Maturity of Term Deposits

Interest received

44.74

33.53

Dividend received

2.01

2.01

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities

(4,031.28)

(969.39)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital

1,288.13

429.38

Buyback of Shares

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings

2,075.00

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings

(261.70)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings

319.50

588.57

Repayment of Short Term Borrowings

Minority Interest Movement

Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)

Interest Paid

(56.67)

(70.93)
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Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities 3,625.96 685.32
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 73.32 2.69
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 23.44 20.76
Exchange difference of Foreign Currency Cash and Cash equivalents - -
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 96.77 23.44
Note:

3), “Cash Flow Statements”.

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 (AS-

2 Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per the statement of cashflow:

Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Balance with banks

In current Accounts 73.09 5.02
In CC with debit balance 16.83 0.00
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 0.00 15.00
months

Cash on hand 6.85 3.42
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the 96.77 23.44
year

3 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For, DJNV & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

Ushanti Colour Chem Limited

UDIN: 22112249AKDEMG3412
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-05-2023

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-05-2023

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi) (Arjun Gandhi)
Partner Joint MD Director
Membership No. 112249 00118559 09254434

(Pradip Parikh)

CFO
AlZPP5478)

(Anjali Samani)
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Ushanti Colour Chem Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2023

Corporate Information

Ushanti Colour Chem Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of Manufacturing of Dyestuffs, Pigments
and Intermediates. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on National Stock Exchange (BSE). The registered office of the
company is located at 88/6/7/8 Phase | GIDC, Vatva, Ahmedabad-382445. The Company caters to both domestic and
international markets.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on accrual basis in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principle (GAAP), and comply with the Companies Accounting
Standard specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of Ushanti Colour Chem Ltd (“the Company”) and its subsidiary
company U C Colours and Intermediates Private Limited (collectively referred to as “the Group”). The Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis: —

e The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses as per
Accounting Standard 21 — “Consolidated Financial Statements” notified by Companies (Accounting
Standards)Rules, 2006.

e The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply
in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements
have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions which affect the reporting
amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the reporting period. The difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialized.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(e) Measurement

(iv) Land
Land is initially recognized at cost.

(v) Factory Building and other property, plant and equipment
Factory building and all other items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(vi) Components of costs
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognized includes its purchase price and any
cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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(f) Depreciation and Amortization

(iv) Leasehold Land
Premium paid on leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

(v) Other Tangible Assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the written down method to allocate their
depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognized
in profit or loss when the changes arise.

(vi) Intangible Assets

Computer Software is amortized over the period of 5 years as estimated by the Company.
Waste Disposal Rights are amortized over the useful life of 10 years as estimated by the Company.

(g) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognized is added
to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance expenses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when incurred.

(h) Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.4 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFO basis.

25 Revenue Recognition
(iv) Revenue from sales is recognized at the point of dispatch to the customers when risk and reward stand transfer
to the customers. Sales are booked net of sales return and exclusive of sales/VAT tax.
(v) Exportincentives and interest income are accounted for on accrual basis.
(vi) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

2.6 Purchase and Expenses
(iii) Purchases are shown exclusive of taxes /duties wherever input tax credit is taken and net of Trade Discounts
availed from suppliers and purchase return.

(iv) Major items of the expenses are accounted on time / pro-rata basis and necessary provisions for the same are
made.

2.7 Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/year in
which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount as and when it accrues.

Long term employee benefits and post-employment benefits both funded and non-funded are recognized as expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/year in which the related service is rendered based on actuarial
valuation done by LIC.

2.8 Provision for Current and Deferred Tax
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

114 Annual Report-2022-23

F-64



@ | f&% =gy Ty A

Colour Chem Limited

Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the
tax rates and lows that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets is
recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realized in
future.

2.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow
of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Disclosure for Contingent Liabilities
is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, requires an outflow
of resources. No provision is recognized or disclosure for Contingent Liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent
Asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

2.10 Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period/year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount.

211 Foreign Currency Transactions
(v) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

(vi) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the period/year-end are restated at period/year-end
rates.

(vii) Anyincome or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(viii) Premium or discount on forward contracts for hedging foreign currency transactions are amortized and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the contract.

2.12 Investments
Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current
investments. All other investments are classified as long- term investments. Current Investments are carried at lower
of cost and quoted/fair value determined on category/item wise. Long Term Investments are stated at cost. However,
Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary.

2.13 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

214 Government Grants
Grants and subsidy from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense
item, it is netted off from the respective expenses necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs, which
it is intended to compensate. Where the grants or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted in arriving at the
carrying amount of the related asset.

2.15 Leases
The company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for factory. The leasing
arrangements are usually renewable by mutual consent at agreed terms. The aggregate lease rent payable is charged
as rent in Statement of Profit & Los
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Note 3: Share Capital (" inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value, 15000000 (Previous Year -15000000) Equity | 1,500.00 1,500.00
Shares
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital
Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value 10301700 (Previous Year -7301700) Equity
Shares paid up 1,030.17 730.17
Total 1,030.17 730.17
(i) Reconciliation of number of shares
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022

No. of (Cin ..
Equity Shares shares lacs) No. of shares (" in lacs)
Opening Balance 73,01,700(730.17 | 73,01,700 730.17
Issued during the year 30,00,000 |300.00 |- -
Deletion during the year - - - -

1030.1

Closing balance 10301700 7 73,01,700 730.17

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

Equity Shares 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
No. of In % In %
Name of Shareholder shares No. of shares
16.62
Mr. Shantilal B. Gandhi 17,12,247 (% 17,12,247 23.45%
13.33
Mr. Minkubhai S. Gandhi 13,73,427 (% 13,73,427 18.81%
13.29
Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi 13,69,416(% 13,69,416 18.75%
Mrs. Monaben M. Gandhi - 0.00% | 4,83,250 6.62%
Mrs. Shefaliben M. Gandhi - 0.00% | 4,83,250 6.62%
(iv) Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2023
Class of [No. of |% of total % Change
Name of Promoter .
Shares Shares [shares during the year
Equity 13,69,
Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi 416 13.29% 0.00%
. . . Equity 13,73,
Mr. Minkubhai S. Gandhi 427 13.33% 0.00%
Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2022
Name of Promoter Class of [No. of |% of total % Change
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Shares Shares [shares during the year
. Equity 13,69,
Mr. Maunal S. Gandhi 416 18.75% 0.73%
. . . Equity 13,73,
Mr. Minkubhai S. Gandhi 427 18.81% 0.73%
Note 4: Reserves and Surplus (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 1.00 1.00
Closing Balance 1.00 1.00
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 968.27 968.27
Add: Transfer from P&L 1,417.50 -
Closing Balance 2,385.77 968.27
Statement of Profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,146.02 1,029.62
Add: Profit during the year 98.13 116.39
Balance at the end of the year 1,244.14 1,146.02
Total 3,630.91 2,115.28
Note 5: Money received against share warrants (“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Money received against share warrants - 429.37
Total - 429.37

converted to equity shares.

Note - 25% application money (subscription price) received in the year 2021-22 for 30,00,000 Convertible Equity Warrants at
price of Rs. 57.25 having face value of Rs. 10 each. Balance 75% of the issue price received in the current year 2022-23 and

Note 6: Long term borrowings

(“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Secured Term loans from banks 2,383.90 305.62
Unsecured Bonds/debentures

-Debentures 501.86 505.14
Total 2,885.76 810.76

i) For Secured Term Loan from Bank :
The loan is repayable in 96 EMI including 12 EMI moratorium period.

for Building construction.
- The loan is secured against:
1. Hypothication of current assets and movable fixed assets

Ushanti Colour Chem Ltd.
3. Personal guarantee of directors and relatives.
4. Corporate guarantee of Ushanti Colour Chems ltd.

- Loan amounting Rs. 25,00,00,000 is sanctioned for the purpose of purchase of Plant & machineries, Utilities & Equipment and

2. Mortgage charge on factory land and building situated at C-18, GIDC, Saykha, Dist. Bharuch —392140 in the name of
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ii) For Debentures:

595840 Zero coupon Compulsory Convertible Debetures alloted on 02/03/2021 and 863960 alloted on 08/03/2021 @ Rs. 10/-
convertible at the end of 5 months from the date of allotment.

- 0On 15/02/2022 the date of conversion changed with mutual consent of allottees by giving a notice of Conversion to the
Company on or before 01 March, 2031.

- 359160 Unsecured 0% to 12% Variable Coupon bearing Convertible Debentures of Rs.100/- each were alloted which are
convertible with mutual consent of allottees by giving a notice of Conversion to the Company on or before 01 March, 2031.

Note 7: Other Long term liabilities (" inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Others
-Deposits (Payable) 0.15 0.15
Total 0.15 0.15
Note 8: Short term borrowings (" inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Secured Loans repayable on demand from banks
-Cash Credit facilities - 115.08
-Forward Contract Payable 0.34 0.01
-Working Capital facilities 154.73 390.99
Unsecured Loans and advances from related parties 894.24 335.30

Unsecured Other loans and advances

-Other Loans and Advances (Inter Corporate Deposit) 113.02 1.45

Total 1,162.33 842.83

i)Loans and advances from Directors and Related Parties :

- Holding Company - Unsecured loans from directors and related parties are taken and maintained during the year pursuant to
the stipulation mentioned by the banks for loans facilities availed from them and are repayable on demand and carries interest
@ 9% p.a (P.Y.9% p.a.)

- Subsidiary Company - Loan from Directors & other related Parties are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 9.25% p.a.
(P.Y. 7% p.a.).

ii)Loans repayable on demand from banks:

(a) Cash credit facility is secured against trade receivables of the Company. Further, it has been personally guaranteed by
Directors and Promoter of the company and Third parties. It carries interest @ 9% p.a. as on 26/06/2020 and 8.5% as on
10/07/2020.

(b) Working capital facility is primarily secured against inventories, trade (export) receivables and collateral security of plant and
equipments and factory shed of the Company. Further, it has been personally guaranteed by Directors and Promoter of the
company. It is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 9% p.a. as on 26/06/2020 and 8.5% as on 10/07/2020.

iii)For Inter Corporate Deposit:
Loans from inter corporate companies are taken @ 9.25% interest p.a. (P.Y. 7% interest p.a.)

Note 9: Trade payables (“in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 539.41 422.18

Due to others 140.03 339.85

Total 679.44 762.03

Note 9.1: Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 (" inlacs)
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Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars of payment
More
Less th 1-2
ess than 2-3 years than 3 |Total
1year years
years
MSME 539.41 - - - 539.41
Others 136.07 - - - 136.07
Disputed dues- MSME - |- - - -
Disputed dues- Others - 3.96 3.96
Sub total 679.44
MSME - Undue
Others - Undue
Total 679.44
Note 9.2: Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 (“inlacs)
Outstanding for
following periods
from due date of Total
Particulars payment
More
Less than |1-2 2-3 years than 3 |Total
1year years
years
MSME 422.18 |- - - 422.18
Others 335.89 |- - - 335.89
Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues- Others 3.96 - - - 3.96
Sub total 762.03 - - - 762.03
MSME - Undue
Others - Undue
Total 762.03
Note 10: Other current liabilities (*in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 39.09 33.16
Income received in advance - 15.87
Other payables
-Creditors for Expenses 373.51 253.84
-Other Current Liabilities - 1.61
-Other Statutory Liabilities 133.68 11.91
-Retention money 55.69 -
Total 601.97 316.39
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Note 11: Short term provisions (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits 30.68 31.09
Others
-Provision for Tax Earlier Years 0.89 1.19
Total 31.57 32.28
Note: 12 Property, Plant and Equipment (“inlacs)
Gross Block Depreciation and Amortization Net Block Net Block
As on
Name of As on | Additio | Deducti |31 Mar Ason| forthe | Deducti As on As on As on
Assets 1 Apr 22 n on 23 1Apr22| vyear on 31 Mar 23| 31 Mar 23 31 Mar 22
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment
Factory Land 1.82]- - 1.82 - - - 1.82 1.82
Leasehold
Land - Dahej* [1,222.39| 779.26| 562.96| 1,438.69 53.56 6.59 34.70 25.45| 1,413.24 1,168.83
Office Building 34.36 34.36 5.31 7.52 12.83 21.53 29.05
Factory
Building 273.16 273.16| 158.56 11.27 169.83 103.33 114.60
Plant and
Equipments 1,164.53| 161.33 1,325.86| 741.56 85.24 826.80 499.06 422.97
Pollution
Control Plant 189.57 189.57| 109.33 14.74 124.07 65.50 80.24
Furniture &
Fixtures 71.14 5.29 76.43 23.12 12.14 35.26 41.17 48.01
Vehicles** 146.17 0.50 146.67| 120.30 8.84 129.14 17.53 25.88
Office
Equipments 17.98 0.18 18.17 11.91 1.14 13.05 5.12 6.08
Electric
Fittings 43.17 43.17 32.31 4.99 37.30 5.88 10.87
Computers 15.72 1.71 17.44 14.31 0.99 15.30 2.13 1.41
Total 3,180.02| 948.27| 562.96|3,565.33| 1,270.27| 153.46 34.70| 1,389.03| 2,176.30 1,909.75
Previous Year |2,955.09| 224.12 0.12]3,179.10] 1,114.79| 155.10 0.09| 1,269.79| 1,909.31 1,840.31
**Vehicles are held in the name of Directors of the company.
(ii) Intangible Assets
Computer
Software 10.32 10.32 1.86 6.29 8.15 2.17 8.46
Waste
Disposal
Rights 113.69 7.00 120.69 57.66 7.99 65.65 55.04 56.03
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Total 124.01 7.00 - 131.01 59.52 14.29 - 73.80 57.20 64.49
Previous Year 103.32 20.69 -| 124.01 52.17 7.34 - 59.52 64.49 51.14
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 3,815.19 1,028.38
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 4.97 10.97
(i) Capital Work-in-progress (“inlacs)
31 March
Particulars 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 1028.38 269.41
Add: Addition during the year 2893.91 937.92
Less: Capitalised during the year 107.09 178.95
Closing Balance 3,815.19 1,028.38
Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Schedule (“in lacs)
. 31
i(i\az;t:l:l;rk- March 31 March 2022
g Amount in CWIP for a period of 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less More Less
than 1 1-2 2-3 than 3 Total than 1 1-2 2-3 Years More than Total
Years Years Years 3 Years
year Years year
Projects in
progress 2,858.31| 946.57 10.31 -13,815.19| 825.01| 179.31 24.07 - 1,028.38
Projects
temporarily
suspended - - - - - - - - - -
Disclosure for Project Overdue or exceeded its budgeted cost (“inlacs)
To be Completed To be Completed
Capital Work- Less More Less
in-Progress Project than1 1-2 2-3 than 3 Project than1l | 1-2Years | 2-3 Years More than 3
Status Years Years Status Years
year Years year
There is no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
Intangible assets under development (“in lacs)
31 March
Particulars 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 10.97 10.72
Add: Addition during the year 6.00 12.54
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Less: Capitalised during the year 12.00 12.29
Closing Balance 4.97 10.97
Intangible assets under development ageing Schedule (“in lacs)
31

. March 31 March 2022
Intangible Amount in CWIP for a period of 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of
assets under
development Less 1-2 2. More Less 1-2 M h

than 1 3 than 3 Total than1 2-3 Years ore than Total
Years Years Years 3 Years
year Years year

Projects in
progress - 4.97 4.97 6.00 - 4.97 - 10.97
Projects
temporarily
suspended - - - - - - - -
Disclosure for Project Overdue or exceeded its budgeted cost (“in lacs)

. To be Completed as at 31 March 2023 To be Completed as at 31 March 2022
Intangible
assets under . Less More . Less

Project 1-2 2-3 Project More than 3
development | ¢ .o than1 Years Years than3 Status than1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Years
year Years year

plan.

There is no intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original

Note 13: Non current investments

(“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unquoted Other Investments in Equity Instruments - 13.38
Total - 13.38
Note 13.1: Details of Investments (“inlacs)
Name of Entity No of Shares 31 March 2022
Non-Trade Investment
The Kalupur Co. Op. Bank Limited, Unquoted
Equity Shares of Rs. 25 each fully paid up 53,511 13.38
Note 14: Deferred tax assets net (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset 7.41 1.24
Total 7.41 1.24
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Note 14.1: Significant Components of Deferred Tax

(“in lacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Deferred Tax Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 7.41 1.24
Add: Deferred Tax Assets - -
Gross Deferred Tax Asset (A) 7.41 1.24
Deferred Tax Liability

Less: Deferred Tax Liability -
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (B) - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 7.41 1.24
Note 14.2: Significant components of Deferred Tax charged during the year (“in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (6.17) (1.02)
Total (6.17) (1.02)
Note 15: Long term loans and advances (“inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital Advances 0.31 193.56
Loans and advances to related parties
-Advance to Director 307.51 -
Other loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)
-Balances with Statutory / Govt. Authorities (long term) 5.01 5.00
-Other Advances - Long Term 1.13 1.63
-Other long Term Loans and Advances - 1.28
Total 313.96 201.47

i) Loans and Advances to directors:

@ 9.25% p.a (PY. N.A.)

Loans and Advances provided to directors is given and maintained during the year are repayable on demand and carries interest

Note 16: Other non current assets

(“in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Security Deposits 241.66 262.93
Total 241.66 262.93
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Note 17: Inventories (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials 292.60 420.76
Finished goods 353.96 375.34
Total 646.56 796.11
Note 18: Trade receivables (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured considered good 1,058.17 1,055.90
Total 1,058.17 1,055.90
Notel8.1: Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 (“in lacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total
Lessthan 6 | 6 months-1 1-2 More than 3
2-3 years

months year years years
Undisputed Trade receivables- 317.95 230.76 - - 548.72
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - -
considered doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -
considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -
considered doubtful
Sub total 548.72
Undue - considered good - - - - 509.45
Total 1,058.17
Note 18.2: Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 (“inlacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Lessthan 6 | 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 Total

months year years years
Undisputed Trade receivables- 495.19 - - - 495.19
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - -
considered doubtful
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Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered doubtful

Sub total 495.19

Undue - considered good - - - 560.70
Total 1,055.90

Note 19: Cash and cash equivalents (*inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 6.85 3.42
Balances with banks in current accounts 73.09 5.02
Others

-CC with debit balance 16.83 -
Cash and cash equivalents - total 96.77 8.44
Other Bank Balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - 15.00

Total 96.77 23.44

Note 20: Short term loans and advances (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for taxes)

-TCS/TDS 0.13 -

-Others 68.77 161
Other loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)

-Advance to suppliers 2.11 -

-Balances with Statutory / Govt. Authorities 770.16 253.89

-Capital Advances 184.33 287.63

-Forward Contract Receivable 0.90 -

-Loans to Employees 3.49 3.01

-Other Advances 1.59 -

-Other Short Term Loans and Advances 556.86 -

-Prepaid Expenses 11.67 10.50

Total 1,600.01 556.64

Note 21: Other current assets (“inlacs)
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Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due - 7.64
Interest Accrued on Deposits - 0.04
Interest Receivable 0.60 -
Preliminery Expense 0.13 0.12
Pre-operative Expense - 103.03
Total 0.73 110.83
Note 22: Revenue from operations (*inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of products
-Sale of products ( Finshed & Traded, Gross) 4,174.56 4,751.23
-Scrap Sales 2.00 0.10
-Others 196.23 -
Other operating revenues
-Export incentives 26.56 21.71
Total 4,399.35 4,773.04
Note 23: Other Income (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Income
- On Bank Deposits 0.21 8.12
- Others 43.87 8.12
-Others 0.67 -
Dividend Income 2.01 2.01
Others
-Foreign Exchange Gain (net) 23.60 19.11
-Miscellaneous Income - 0.04
-Premium on Forward Contract 0.56 2.18
-Profit on sale of Land 251.00 -
-Sundry Balance written off - 0.15
Total 321.92 39.73
Note 24: Cost of Material Consumed (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022
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Raw Material Consumed

Opening stock 420.76 224.17
Purchases 2,472.19 2,860.47
Less: Closing stock 292.60 420.76
Total 2,600.36 2,663.87
Total 2,600.36 2,663.87
Note 25: Purchases of stock in trade (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Alpha/Pigment Dyes 44.77 24.68
Direct Dyes 127.13 94.57
Reactive Dyes 4.55 75.82
Stock in Trade 144.90 -
Total 321.35 195.07
Note 26: Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods (“in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Inventories
Finished Goods 375.34 363.99
Less: Closing Inventories
Finished Goods 353.96 375.34
Total 21.38 (11.35)
Note 27: Employee benefit expenses (“inlacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages
-Directors Remuneration 141.14 134.40
-Salary, Incentives, Hak Raja, Bonus, Contribution to EPF and ESI 205.08 212.33
-Others 3.93 -
Contribution to provident and other funds
-Gratuity Fund Contribution 11.62 1.36
Staff welfare expenses 0.27 0.28
Total 362.04 348.37
Note 28: Finance costs (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022
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Interest expense

-Bank Charges and Commission 0.11 8.75
-Interest paid to Banks and Financial Institutions 29.89 30.41
-Other Interest Paid 21.57 24.97

Other borrowing costs
-Bank Charges and Commission 5.10 15.55
Total 56.67 79.68

Note:

1. The Company has availed interest subvention of Rs.2537216/- during the period (PY : Rs. 1554048/-) from bank on working
capital facility which has been reduced from interest expenses.
2. The Company has availed interest subvention of Rs.26386/- during the period (PY : Rs. 353519/-) from SIDBI under capital
expansion scheme which has been reduced from interest expenses.

3. Interest to MSME is not provided as per the explanation provided by the management after confirmation letters from the
parties that the payment made is within due dates.

Note 29: Other expenses

(“in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Auditors' Remuneration 2.90 2.85
Commission 3.62 9.19
Insurance 18.38 20.89
Power and fuel 0.08 -
Rent 8.70 8.70
Repairs to buildings 7.39 9.02
Repairs to machinery 53.87 74.69
Rates and taxes 1.52 2.16
Selling & Distribution Expenses

-Other Sales and Distribution Expenses 6.98 9.78

-Sales Promotion and Advertisement 5.74 1.28

-Others 0.27 -
Travelling Expenses 12.75 9.18
Miscellaneous expenses

-Interest on TDS 0.01 -

-Others 5.09 4.54
Donation - 0.10
Import Expense 0.11 0.21
Laboratory Expenses 7.08 5.13
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Labour and processing charges 58.58 87.89
Legal and Professional Fees 12.70 11.90
Legal Expense - 3.32
Loss on Sale/Disposal of Assets - 0.01
Office Maintenance 7.07 6.05
Packing Material Consumed 8.48 44.80
Pollution Control Expenses 114.33 188.95
Power, Fuel and Water 703.63 627.01
Professional Tax Expense 0.03 -
Safety Expenses 0.44 1.24
Security Expense 7.58 9.71
Shipping Expenses 37.64 51.24
Stationary, Printing and Other Office Expenses 8.37 9.99
Telephone and Communication 2.18 1.96
Transportation Charges - 131
Vehicle Running and Maintenance 4.25 3.85
Website Expense 0.11 -

Total 1,099.88 1,206.95

Note 30: Earning per share

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (" in lacs) 98.13 116.39
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 82,35,330 73,01,700
Earnings per share basic (Rs) 1.19 1.59
Earnings per share diluted (Rs) 1.19 1.59
Face value per equity share (Rs) 10 10
Note 31: Auditors' Remuneration (“inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Payments to auditor as

- Auditor 2.70 2.65

- for other services 0.20 0.20

Total 2.90 2.85
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Note 32: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(" inlacs)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Estimated Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Accounts and

not provided for 68.90 4,841.04
Total 68.90 4,841.04
Note 33: Earnings in Foreign Currencies (" inlacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Export of Goods calculated on FOB basis 1,129.75 1,389.79
Total 1,129.75 1,389.79
Note 34: Expenditure made in Foreign Currencies (“in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other Matters 0.01 -
Commission 2.20 13.56
Travelling 0.41 -
Total 2.63 13.56

Note 35: Related Party Disclosure

(i) List of Related Parties

Relationship

Minku S. Gandhi.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Maunal S. Gandhi

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

CS Anjali Samani

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

CS Archita Jitendra Shah

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

CFO Pradip B Parikh

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Arjun Maunal Gandhi

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Heli Akash Garala

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Shantibhai B. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Smt. Mona M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Arjun M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Aadit M. Gandhi

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

HUF Industries

Enterprise in which Relative of KMP is interested as member

Kalpana Champaklal Shah

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Champakbhai A Shah (For 2021-22)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
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Akash Dipakbhai Patel

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Moksha R Shah

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative of KMP are interested

Jay Chloro Chem Pvt Ltd

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative of KMP are interested

Nirbhay Rasayan Pvt Ltd

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative of KMP are interested

Champakbhai A Shah (For 2022-23)

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Dipak Babulal Patel HUF

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative of KMP are interested

Dipak Babulal Patel

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Kalpana Dipakbhai Patel

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Romit Champaklal Shah

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Riya Ronit Shah

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

(ii) Related Party Transactions ("in lacs)
Particulars Relationship 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loan Accepted
- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 493.05 751.75
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 506.45 621.50
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 45.90 92.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel - 4.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel 0.50 -
Loan Repaid
- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 430.53 735.25
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 525.57 553.78
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 32.87 151.15
Relative of Key Managerial
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel 0.56 11.20
Relative of Key Managerial
- Arjun M. Gandhi Personnel - 6.59
Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel 9.55 44.53
- Akash Dipakbhai Patel Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 7.24 40.00
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 2.00
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 1.45 1.61
Relative of Key Managerial
- Champakbhai A Shah (For 2022-23) Personnel 0.47 -
Directors Remuneration
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- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 67.20 69.32
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 67.20 69.32
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 6.74 6.74
Salary
- CS Archita Jitendra Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 1.35
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 8.51 8.24
- Heli Akash Garala Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 1.84 1.50
Relative of Key Managerial
- Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi Personnel 13.44 12.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel 24.02 24.02
Relative of Key Managerial
- Smt. Mona M. Gandhi Personnel 13.44 12.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel 7.46 6.74
- CS Anjali Samani Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 2.62 -
Other Interest Paid
- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 8.74 4.68
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 9.95 5.37
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 2.38 6.55
Relative of Key Managerial
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel 0.01 0.20
Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel 0.31 3.78
Rent Expense
Enterprise in which Relative of KMP
- HUF Industries is interested as member 8.70 8.70
Loan Given
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.30 1.50
- CS Anjali Samani Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.42 -
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 150.00 -
- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 150.00 -
Rent Deposit Given
Enterprise in which Relative of KMP
- HUF Industries is interested as member - 50.00
Loans taken
- Akash Dipakbhai Patel Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 165.42 170.00
- Moksha R Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 286.19 105.00
- Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd Enterprise in which KMP/Realative 19.50 -
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Enterprise in which KMP/Realative

- Jay Chloro Chem Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 90.00 -
Loan received back

- CFO Pradip B Parikh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.35 -
Purchase of Product

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative

- Nirbhay Rasayan Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 136.00 -
Loans repaid

- Moksha R Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.62 -
Interest income

- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 3.76 -

- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 3.76 -

Debenture issued

Enterprise in which KMP/Realative

- Dipak Babulal Patel HUF of KMP are interested - 28.00
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested - 31.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Dipak Babulal Patel Personnel - 55.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Kalpana Dipakbhai Patel Personnel - 37.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Romit Champaklal Shah Personnel - 20.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Riya Ronit Shah Personnel - 3.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Kalpana Champaklal Shah Personnel - 5.00
- Akash Dipakbhai Patel Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 107.16
- Champakbhai A Shah (For 2021-22) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 20.00
- Moksha R Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 53.00
(i) Related Party Balances (“in lacs)

Particulars

Relationship

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Unsecured Loans and advances from
related parties

- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 132.96 63.11

- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 71.66 82.36

- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 40.10 24.93
Relative of Key Managerial

- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel - 0.55
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Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel - 8.77
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Jay Chloro Chem Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 93.51 -
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 19.52 1.45
- Akash Dipakbhai Patel Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 297.59 120.08
- Champakbhai A Shah (For 2021-22) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 0.47
- Moksha R Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 358.24 55.62
Provision for employee benefits
- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 3.07 2.82
- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 3.07 2.82
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.71 0.60
- Arjun Maunal Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.46 0.68
- Heli Akash Garala Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 0.30
Relative of Key Managerial
- Smt. Shefali M. Gandhi Personnel 0.80 0.81
Relative of Key Managerial
- Shantibhai B. Gandhi Personnel 1.93 2.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Smt. Mona M. Gandhi Personnel 0.80 0.81
Relative of Key Managerial
- Aadit M. Gandhi Personnel 0.46 0.72
Loans to Employees
- CFO Pradip B Parikh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 1.39 1.50
- CS Anjali Samani Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0.38 -
Trade Payable due to MSME
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Nirbhay Rasayan Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 135.48 -
Unsecured Debentures
- Moksha R Shah Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 53.00 53.00
- Champakbhai A Shah (For 2021-22) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 20.00 20.00
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Dipak Babulal Patel HUF of KMP are interested 67.16 28.00
Enterprise in which KMP/Realative
- Champak Chemicals Pvt Ltd of KMP are interested 31.00 31.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Dipak Babulal Patel Personnel 55.00 55.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Kalpana Dipakbhai Patel Personnel 105.00 37.00
Relative of Key Managerial
- Romit Champaklal Shah Personnel 20.00 20.00
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Relative of Key Managerial

- Riya Ronit Shah Personnel 3.00 3.00
Relative of Key Managerial

- Kalpana Champaklal Shah Personnel 5.00 5.00

- Akash Dipakbhai Patel Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - 107.16
Rent Deposit receivable

Enterprise in which Relative of KMP

- HUF Industries is interested as member 50.00 50.00
Advance to Director

- Minku S. Gandhi. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 153.76 -

- Maunal S. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 153.76 -
Note 36: Loans and Advances given to Related Parties (“inlacs)

onﬁ:::::itng % of Total onﬁ:::::itng % of Total

Promoters 307.51 100.00% - 0.00%
Total 307.51 100.00% - 0.00%
Note 37: Security of Current Assets Against Borrowings
Particulars June, 2022 | September, 2022 | December, 2022 March, 2023
Inventory as per Quarterly Return filed with Bank 705.84 568.99 663.96 642.97
Add:
Valuation Difference - - - -
Difference due to Physical verification - - - -
Purchase Bill accounted later - - - 6.31
others 1 - - - -
others 2 - - - -
Less:
Valuation Difference - 2.26 5.58 -
Difference due to Physical verification - - - -
Sale Bill accounted later - - - -
By mistake WIP added 60.69 - - -
Purchase Bill accounted twice - - 40.12 -
Expense entry booked in purchase - - 54.85 -
Inventory as per Books of Account 645.15 566.73 563.41 649.28
Reason for Material Dicrepancies The figures - The figures -
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provided in the
bank were on a
provisional basis
which were
subject to
finalisation.

Particulars June, 2022 | September, 2022 | December, 2022 March, 2023
Trade Receivable as per Quarterly Return filed with

Bank 849.04 848.74 491.24 580.54
Add:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical verification

Purchase Bill accounted later

others 1 due to post dated chqgs posting in current

month 40.85

others 2 bk paymt advice not received in time and

also some party deposited cheque directly to our

account. 6.26 19.40
Less:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical verification

Sale Bill accounted later

others 1 due to bank receipt entry done later. 3.27

others 2

Trade Receivable as per Books of Account 845.77 889.59 497.50 599.94
Reason for Material Dicrepancies - - - -
Particulars June, 2022 | September, 2022 | December, 2022 March, 2023
Trade Payable as per Quarterly Return filed with

Bank - 196.38 25.29 111.39
Add:

Valuation Difference

Difference due to Physical verification

Purchase Bill accounted later

others 1 460.39 515.62 488.80 430.46
others 2

Less:

Valuation Difference
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Difference due to Physical verification

Sale Bill accounted later

others 1

others 2

Trade Payable as per Books of Account

460.39

712.00

514.09 541.85

Reason for Material Dicrepancies

provided us wrong format.

The figures provided for export debtors balances as the bank has

Note 38: Ratio Analysis

Particulars Numerator/Denominator 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | Change in %
(a) Current Ratio
Current Assets 1.38 1.30 5.54%
Current Liabilities
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio
Total Debts 0.87 0.50 72.00%
Shareholder’s Equity
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earning available for Debt Service N.A. 8.34 N.A.
Debt Service
(d) Return on Equity Ratio
Profit after Tax 2.47% 3.52% -29.73%
Average Shareholder’s Equity
(e) Inventory turnover ratio
Total Turnnover 6.07 12.85 -52.74%
Average Inventories
(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio
Total Turnover 4.16 a4.77 -12.67%
Average Account Receivable
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio
Total Purchases 3.88 5.63 -31.11%
Average Account Payable
(h) Net capital turnover ratio
Total Turnover 4.73 8.02 -40.97%
Net Working Capital
(i) Net profit ratio
Net Profit 2.23% 2.45% -8.95%
Total Turnover
(j) Return on Capital employed
Earning before interest and taxes 1.71% 5.01% -65.97%
Capital Employed
. 44.59% 11.22% 297.28%
(k) Return on investment
Return on Investmen
Total Investment

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio - The ratio is increased due to disbursement of Term Loan.
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(d) Return on Equity Ratio - The ratio is decreased due to loss incurred during the year.

(e) Inventory turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in average inventories.

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in average suppliers.

(h) Net capital turnover ratio - The ratio is decreased due to increase in Net Working Capital.

(i) Net profit ratio - The ratio is decreased due to loss incurred during the year.

(j) Return on Capital employed - The ratio is decreased due to increase in capital employed.

(k) Return on investment - The ratio is increased due to sale of investment.

Note 39: Other Statutory Disclosures as per the Companies Act, 2013

The Company does not have anything to report in respect of the following:

* Benami properties

e Trading or investment in crypto or virtual currency

¢ Giving/receiving of any loan or advance or funds with the understanding that the recipient shall lend, invest, provide security or
guarantee on behalf of the Company/funding party

* Transactions not recorded in books that were surrendered or disclosed as income during income-tax assessment

e Charges or satisfaction not registered with ROC beyond statutory period

o Title deeds in respect of freehold immovable properties not being held in the name of the Company.

¢ Transactions with struck-off companies

* Non-compliance with number of layers as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Restriction on number
of Layers) Rules, 2017.

o Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Note 40: Regrouping

Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped, re-classified and re-arranged whenever necessary.

Note 41: Other Notes

The Company has received intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, and hence, disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the period end as required under the act has
been given. The interest has not been provided as per the explanation provided by the management after confirmation letters from
the parties that the payment is made within due dates.

Disclosure requirement as required by the AS-15 (Revised 2005), Employee Benefits are not given in view of non-availability of the
required information with the company.

For, DJNV & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants Ushanti Colour Chem Limited
Firm Reg. No. : 115145W

(CA Shruti C Shah) (Maunal S. Gandhi) (Arjun Gandhi) (Pradip Parikh)  (Anjali Samani)
Partner Joint MD Director CFO CS
Membership No. 112249 00118559 09254434 AIZPP5478) A65647

UDIN: 22112249AKDEMG3412

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-05-20223 Date: 29-05-2023
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS

The following tables present certain accounting and other ratios derived from the Audited Financial Statements
for theFinancial Y ears ending March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023 and unaudited Financial Statement for The
Half Year Ended September 30, 2023. For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Financial Statements”

beginning on page 74 of this Letter of Offer.
(On the basis of consolidated financials)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(< in Lacs, unless otherwise specified)

For The Half For TheFinancial Year Ended
: Year Ended
PETELEre September 30, |March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
2023
Net profit / (loss) after tax, attributable to equity
<hareholders 85.39 179.70 147.55
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
outstanding 1,03,01,700 82,35,330 73,01,700
Basic EPSin 0.83 2.18 2.02
Diluted EPSin % 0.83 2.18 2.02
Facevaueing 10.00 10.00 10.00
NET ASSET VALUE PER EQUITY SHARE
(R in Lacs, unless otherwise specified)
For The Half For The Financial Year Ended
: Year Ended
FETIETErE September 30, |March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
2023

Net worth (A) 4860.47 4660.43 3274.32
Number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) 1,03,01,700 1,03,01,700 73,01,700
NAV (A/B) 47.18 45.24 44.84
Facevaueing 10.00 10.00 10.00
RETURN ON NET WORTH

For The Half For The Financial Year Ended
Particulars VE2)r 2005

September 30, | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
2023

Net worth (A) 4860.47 4660.43 3274.32
Net Profit/(Loss) for the period from
ContinuingOperations and Discontinuing 85.39 179.70 147.55
Operations Attributable to Equity Holders(B)
RONW (B/A*100) 1.76 3.86 451
EBITDA

For The Half For The Financial Year Ended
Particulars Year Ended

September 30, March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

2023

Profit/(Loss) after tax (A) 85.39 179.70 147.55
Tax expenses/ (Credit) (B) 15.61 (6.59) 51.92
Exceptional Item (C) - - -
Finance costs (D) 24.35 56.67 70.92
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For The Half For TheFinancial Year Ended
Particulars Year Ended
September 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
2023
Depreciation & amortization expense (E) 76.82 167.14 162.44
EBIDTA (A+B+C+D+E) 202.17 396.92 432.83

Basic earnings per share

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable
to Equity Shareholders before and after exceptional item, as applicable
divided by Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding at
the end of the financial year

Diluted earnings per share

Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
attributable to Equity Shareholders before or after exceptional item, as
applicable/ Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding at the
end of thefinancial year

Return on net worth (in %)

Profit/ (Loss) for the Period/Year as per Statement of Profit and Loss
attributable to Equity Shareholders of the company divided by Net
worth as attributable to equity shareholders of the company at the end of
the financialyear

Net asset value per Equity Share

Net Worth on basis divided by the number of Equity Shares outstanding
for the period/year

EBITDA

Profit for the year before finance costs, tax, depreciation, amortisation
and items as presented in the statement of profit and loss in the
Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTSOF
OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our
audited financial statements as of and for the Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 and our unaudited financial results
for half year ended September 30, 2023 included in this Draft Letter of Offer. Our audited financial statements
for Fiscal 2023 & Fiscal 2022 and unaudited financial results for half year ended September 30, 2023, are
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this
chapter is derived from the Audited Financial Satements and Unaudited Financial Results of our Company.

Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular fiscal year are to the twelve-
month period ended March 31 of that year.

In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers Ushanti
Colour Chem Private Limited, our Company. Unless otherwise indicated, financial information included herein
are based on our “Financial Statements” for the period ended on September 30, 2023 and Financial Years
2023 and 2022 included in this Draft letter of offer beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Note: Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing our objectives, outlook,
estimates, expectations or prediction may be “Forward Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make a difference to our operations include, among others, economic conditions
affecting demand/supply and price conditions in domestic and overseas market in which we operate, changesin
Government Regulations, Tax Laws and other Statutes and incidental factors.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Ushanti Colour Chem Private Limited’ under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 at Gujarat vide Certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat on
May 12, 1993. Consequently, it was converted into a public limited company pursuant to shareholders
resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on February 19, 2018 and the name
of our Company was changed to ‘Ushanti Colour Chem Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent upon Conversion of Private Company to Public Limited dated March 07, 2018 was issued by
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Ahmedabad. The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is
U24231GJ1993PL C019444.

Our Company is in the business of manufacturing and trading of various colours of dyestuffs since 1993 till
2013. After getting permission for manufacturing of CPC Blue Crude dyestuff and witnessing the growing
demand of our CPC Blue product our Company decided to focus into business of manufacturing on one specific
product type and specialise in it. Our Company manufactures reactive and direct dyestuffs also known as
Synthetic Organic Dyes with an integrated production process. The Company aso manufactures Copper
Phthal ocyanine, Blue Cued which are one of the major raw materials used for manufacturing of Dyestuffs. The
pigment and dyestuffs manufactured by us caters to the raw material requirement of textile, garment, cotton,
leather, nylon, paper, wool, ink, wood, plastic and paint industries. We concentrate in manufacturing “Turquoise
Blue” Dyestuffs and Pigments. The Company has 3 manufacturing facilities situated together at Vatva GIDC in
Gujarat. The facilities are spread over 2,739 sg. meters in total area. Our company aso has its own Ice
generation machinery, further it recovers Ammonium Carbonate from its effluent stream which are reused in the
plant as well as sold to the Soda Ash Industry reducing wastage giving us incrementa revenue. The Company
currently has a production capacity of approx. 2,520 tons per annum. The manufacturing facilities are equipped
with requisite machineries to keep a constant check on quality. The company is an 1SO 9001:2015 certified
company certifying the quality of the product our company manufactures.

Our Company manufactures dyes of various concentrations which influences the pricing of the product. We
procure quality raw materials from Chemical industries present in Domestic markets who manufactures
intermediates of dyestuffs. Our focus on “Turquoise Blue” Dyestuffs has assisted us to be become a niche player
in the segment. Our company generates most of its revenue from export operations and has received from
Certificate of Recognition as Export House, products of the company are exported to countries like, Turkey,
Egypt, Bangladesh, Malaysia, Indonesia, China etc. We have a dedicated Research & Development and Quality
Control Team, which looks after the quality of the product we manufacture. Our customers are mostly traders
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who sell directly to textile manufacturers as well as other industries. Our relationship with our traders and
esteemed customer base is key factors of our successin the industry.

For further details, please refer to the section titled “Our Business” beginning on page 61 beginning of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financia performance of our Company for half year ended on September 30, 2023 and as on March 31,
2023 isasfollows:

(Rin Lacs)

Particulars For the half year ended on | Year Ended
September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations 2076.02 4267.83
EBITDA 202.17 391.74
Profit/ (loss) after tax from continuing operation 85.39 179.70
Profit/ (loss) after tax from discontinuing operation - -
Profit/ (loss) from continuing and discontinuing operation 85.39 179.70

FACTORSAFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our business is subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk
Factors” on page 20 beginning of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company’s future results of operations could be affected potentially by the following factors:

1. Wespecidizeinonly 1 product type, i.e., Blue Colour Dyes.

2. Our products use raw materials, prices of which have been very volatilein past.

3. Presently our major focus of revenue is on the sale of Blue Dyestuffs and any decrease in the demand for

them will adversely affect our business.

Intense competition from Chinamay affect our business adversely.

We are subject to various laws and regulations relating to the handling and disposal of hazardous materials

and wastes. If we fail to comply with such laws and regulations, we can be subjected to prosecution,

including imprisonment and fines or incur costs that could have a material adverse effect on the success of

our business.

6. Our future growth is majorly dependent on the new manufacturing facility which we are setting up. Any
delay in commissioning the new facility may hamper the business operations of our company.

7. We have not placed orders for 100% of the Plant & Machineries which will be required to be installed in
the new manufacturing facility.

8. Wearein businessrelated to chemicals which faces excessive government regulations.

9. Our Company generates major portion of its revenue from export operations. Any problems in such
geographies may affect our business adversely.

10. Our Company intends to utilize part of the proceeds of this Issues towards repayment of secured
borrowings.

11. Our export operations are largely dependent on various treaties and government agreements between India
and foreign nations.

12. Our manufacturing unit and proposed manufacturing facility is situated on plots that are taken on long-term
lease from G.I.D.C., and we will have to comply with the terms and conditions/covenants laid down in lease
agreements with G.1.D.C., noncompliance of the same may affect our business operations.

oA~

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except as mentioned in section titled “Financial Satements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer,
there has been no change in accounting policies during the Fiscal years 2023, 2022 and for half year ended
September 30, 2023, September 30, 2022.

CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Except as mentioned in section titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft Letter of Offer,
there has been no change in accounting policies during the Fiscal years 2023, 2022 and for half year ended
September 30, 2023, September 30, 2022.

COMPONENTS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Total Revenue

Our total revenue is divided into revenue from operations and other income. Revenue from operations consists
revenue from sale of goods.

Total Expenses
Our total expenses comprise of Cost of material consumed, purchase of stock in trade, Changes in inventories of
finished goods, work -in progress and stock-in-trade, Employee benefit expenses, Finance cost, Depreciation,

Other expenses.

Cost of material consumed

Our Cost of material consumed comprise of purchases of raw materials.

Purchases of stock in trade

Our purchase of stock in trade comprise of purchases of raw materials.

Changein Inventories

Our change in inventories comprise of change in opening and closing of raw materials.

Employee benefit expenses

Employee benefit expenses comprises of Directors Remuneration, Salary, Incentives, Hak Raa, Bonus,
Contribution to EPF and ESI, Staff welfare expenses, Contribution to provident and other funds, -Gratuity Fund
Contribution.

Finance cost

Finance cost comprises of Bank Charges and Commission, Interest paid to Banks and Financia Institutions,
Other borrowing costs.

Other Expenses

Other expenses majorly comprise of Repairs to machinery, Labour and processing charges, Pollution Control
Expenses, Power-Fuel and Water.

Taxation

The current taxation is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulation. Deferred tax is recognized on
timing differences between the accounting and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates
and laws enacted or subsequently enacted as on balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized and
carried forward to the extent that there is a virtual certainly that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized in future.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion on results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Audited Financia
Statements of our Company for the period ended September 30, 2023 and for the period ended September
30,2022 and financia years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:

(Zin Lacs)

For the period ended on September 30, For the year ended on March 31, ‘
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. % of % of % of % of
Particulars 2023 Total** 2022 Total** 2023 Total** 2022 Total**
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 2076.02 94.76% 257318 97.75% 4967.83 91.73% 477595 98.82%
Other Income 114.90 5.24% 50,12 2.25% 38458 8.27% 57.02 1.18%
Total Revenue (A) 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
2,190.92 % 2,632.30 % 4,652.41 % 4,832.27 %
EXPENDITURE
Cost of material consumed 118249 53.97% 1560.09 59.27% 2600.36 55.89% 2 663.87 55.13%
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 109.88 5.02% 96.05 3.65% 176.45 3.79% 195.07 4.04%
Changes in inventories of finished
-1 - - 0, 0, 0, - 0,
?ﬁ?rda?j (;NOI’k in progress and stock (4.59) 0.21% 2960 1.88% 2138 0.46% (11.35) 0.23%
Employee benefits expense 172.62 7.88% 175.87 6.68% 358.11 7.70% 348.36 7.21%
Finance costs 2435 1.11% 32.60 1.24% 56.67 1.22% 70.92 1.47%
Depreciation and amorti zation o o o "
expense 7682 | 351% gagl | 3220 |  e71a| 3990 gepaq | 336%
Other expenses 528.35 24.12% 609.18 23.14% 1.099.19 23.63% 1203.48 24.91%
0, 0, 0, 0,
Total Expenses (B) 2,089.92 95.39% 2,608.20 99.08% 4,479.30 96.28% 4.632.79 95.87%
Profit/(L oss) before Tax 101.00 4.61% 24.10 0.92% 17311 3.72% 199.48 4.13%
Tax Expense/ (benefit)
urrent Tax Expense .715% .00% .00% .08%
@cC Tax Ex 16,52 0.75% 0.00% 0.00% 5215 1.08%
(b) Deferred Tax (0.91) -0.04% (4.62) -0.18% (6.59) -0.14% (0.97) -0.02%
(c) Other Tax Exp / Adj. for Earlier ) ) ) ) ) ) )
year 0.74
Net tax expense/ (benefit) 15.61 0.71% 462 -0.18% 6.59 -0.14% 51.90 1.07%
Profit/(L oss) for the year 85.39 3.90% 28.72 1.09% 179.70 3.86% 14756 3.05%

SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS PERIOD
ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 2022

Total Revenue

Our total revenue for the Six Months Period ended September 30, 2023 was %2,190.92 Lacs as compared to
2,632.30 Lacs for the Six Months Period ended September 30, 2022, representing a decrease of 16.77%.

Revenue from Operations

The revenue income from operations for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 2,076.02
Lacs as compared to X 2,573.18 Lacs for the six months period ended on September 30, 2022, representing a
decrease of 19.32%.

Other Income

The other income for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was T 114.90 Lacs as compared to
¥ 59.12 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing an increase of 94.35%.
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Total Expenses

Our total expenses for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 2,089.92 Lacs as compared
to ¥ 2,608.20 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing a decrease of
19.87%.

Cost of material consumed

The Cost of material consumed for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 1,182.49 Lacs
as compared to % 1,560.09 for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing a decrease
of 24.20%.

Purchase of Sock in trade

The Purchase of Stock in trade for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 109.88 Lacs as
compared to T 96.05 for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing an increase of
14.40%.

Changesin Inventories

The Changes in Inventories for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X (4.59) Lacs as
compared to X 49.60 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing an decrease
of 109.25 %.

Employee Benefit Expenses

The Employee Benefit Expenses for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 172.62 Lacs
as compared to ¥ 175.87 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing a
decrease of 1.85 %.

Finance Cost

The finance cost for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 24.35 Lacs as compared to
32.60 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing a decrease of 25.31%.

Depreciation

The Depreciation for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 76.82 Lacs as compared to X
84.81 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022.

Other Expenses

Other Expenses for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was % 528.35 Lacs as compared to 2
609.18 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing decrease of 13.27%.

Profit before Tax

Profit before tax for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was ¥101.00 Lacs as compared to X
24.10 Lakhsfor the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing an increase of 319.09 %.

Tax Expenses

Current Tax Expense for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was % 16.52 Lacs and Deferred
Tax was (0.91).

Current Tax Expense for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022 was nil and Deferred Tax was
(4.62)

Profit after Tax
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Profit after tax for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2023 was X 85.39 Lacs as compared to X
28.72 Lacs for the six months period on ended on September 30, 2022, representing an increase of 197.32 %.
COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2023 TO FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2022

Our total revenue decreased by 3.72% to 34,652.41 Lacs for the FY 2023 from X 4,832.27 Lacs for the FY 2022
due to the factors described below:

Revenue from Operations

Our revenue from operations was decreased by 10.63% to 34,267.83 Lacs for the FY 2023 from %4,775.25 Lacs
for the FY 2022.

Other Income
Other income increased by 574.47% to X 384.58 Lacs for the FY 2023 from X 57.02 Lacsin FY 2022.
Total Expenses:

Our total expenses decreased by 3.31% to % 4,479.30 Lacs for the FY 2023 from % 4632.79 Lacs for the FY
2022 due to the factors described below:

Purchase of Sock in trade

The Purchase of Stock in trade decreased by 9.55 % to X 176.45 Lacs in FY 2023 from X 195.07 Lacs in FY
2022.

Changesin Inventories

The Changesin Inventories increased by 88.37% to ¥ 21.38 Lacsin FY 2023 from - 11.35 Lacsin FY 2022.

Employee Benefit Expenses

The Employee Benefit Expenses increased by 2.80% to ¥ 358.11 Lacs in FY 2023 from % 348.36 Lacsin FY
2022.

Finance Cost
The Finance cost decreased by 20.09% % 56.67 Lacs in FY 2022 from % 70.92 Lacsin FY 2021.

Depreciation

The Depreciation expenses was 167.14 Lacsin FY 2023 and % 162.44 Lacsin FY 2022.

Other Expenses

The Other expenses decreased by 8.67% to X 1099.19 Lacsin FY 2023 from X 1203.48 Lacsin FY 2022.
Profit before Tax

Our profit before tax decreased by 13.22% to X 173.11 Lacs for the FY 2023 from X 199.48 Lacs for the FY
2022.

Tax Expenses
Our current tax expense in FY 2023 was nil and Deferred Tax was X (6.59) Lacs

Our current tax expense in FY 2022 was X 52.15 Lacs and Deferred Tax was % (0.97) Lacs and Other Tax Exp /
Adj. for Earlier year was< 0.74 Lacs.
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Profit after Tax

After accounting for taxes at applicable rates, our Profit after Tax increased by 21.78 % to X 179.70 Lacsin FY
2023 from X 147.56 Lacsin FY 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions with certain of our promoters, directors and their entities and relatives primarily relate
to remuneration, salary, commission and Issue of Equity Shares. For further details of related parties kindly refer

chapter titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 75 of this Draft |etter of offer.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER MARCH 31, 2022 THAT MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Other than as disclosed in this Draft Letter of Offer, there have been no significant developments after March

31, 2022, the date of the latest balance sheet included in this Draft Letter of Offer that may affect our future
results of operations.
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SECTION VI: LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND DEFAULTS

There are no:(i) criminal proceedings; (ii) actions by statutory or regulatory authorities; (iii) claims relating to
direct and indirect taxes; or (iv) Materia Litigation (as defined below); involving our Company, Directors,

Promoters or Group Companies.

Further our Company, Directors, Promoters and Group Companies are not wilful defaulters or fraudulent
borrowers and there have been no violations of securities laws in the past or pending against them.

LITIGATION RELATING TO OUR COMPANY

A. CASESFILED AGAINST OUR COMPANY

1. Litigation involving Civil Laws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Criminal Laws

Nil

3. Litigation involving Securities and Economic L aws
Nil

4, Litigation involving Taxation

Below are the details of pending tax cases involving our Promoter, specifying the number of cases pending

and the total amount involved:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars | Number of cases | Amount involved*
Indirect Tax
Sales Tax/VAT NIL NIL
Central Excise NIL NIL
Customs NIL NIL
Service Tax NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL
Direct Tax

Income Tax 01 0.94
Total 01 0.94

5. Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Nil

B. CASESFILED BY OUR COMPANY
1. Litigation involving Civil Laws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Company Laws
Nil

3. Litigation involving Securities and Economic L aws
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Nil

4. Litigation involving Taxation

Nil

5. Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
Nil

C. NOTICESFROM STATUTORY AUTHORITIES

Nil

LITIGATION RELATING TO THE DIRECTORS OTHER THAN PROMOTERS OF THE
COMPANY

A. CASESFILED AGAINST THE DIRECTORS
1. Litigation involving Civil/Statutory Laws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Criminal Laws

Nil

3. Litigation involving Economic Offenses

Nil

4. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

Nil

5. Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
Nil

B. NOTICESFROM STATUTORY AUTHORITIES
Nil

C. CASESFILED BY THE DIRECTORS

1. Litigation involving Civil/Statutory L aws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Criminal Laws

Nil

3. Litigation involving Economic Offenses

Nil

4. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

Nil
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LITIGATION RELATING TO OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP ENTITIES
A. CASESFILED AGAINST THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP ENTITIES
1. Litigation involving Civil/Statutory Laws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Criminal Laws

Nil

3. Litigation involving Economic Offenses

Nil

4, Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

Nil

5. Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Nil

B. CASESFILED BY THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP ENTITIES
1. Litigation involving Civil Laws

Nil

2. Litigation involving Criminal Laws

Nil

3. Litigation involving Securities and Economic L aws

Nil

4, Litigation involving Labour Laws

Nil

5. Litigation involving Taxation

Nil

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULTERS OR FRAUDULENT BORROWER

Neither our Company, nor our Promoters, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters
or fraudulent borrower by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There are no violations of securities laws
committed by them in the past or are currently pending against any of them.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS OCCURING SINCE MARCH 31, 2023

There have not arisen, since the date of the last financial statements disclosed in this Draft Letter of Offer, any
circumstances which materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect our profitability taken as a whole or
the value of our consolidated assets or our ability to pay our liabilities within the next 12 months.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

Our Company is required to comply with the provisions of various laws and regulations and obtain approvals,
registrations, permits and licenses under them for conducting our operations. The requirement for approvals may
vary based on factors such as the activity being carried out and the legal requirements in the jurisdiction in
which we are operating. Further, our obligation to obtain and renew such approvals arises periodically and
applications for such approvals are made at the appropriate stage. Our Company has obtained all material
consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental and regulatory authorities that are required for
carrying on our present business activities. In the event, some of the approvals and licenses that are required for
our business operations expire in the ordinary course of business, we will apply for their renewal, from time to
time. Ason the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no pending material approvals required for our Company or
any of our Subsidiaries, to conduct our existing business and operations.

Material pending government and regulatory approvals pertaining to the Objects of the I ssue

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no material pending government and regulatory approvals
pertaining to the Objects of the Issue.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

AUTHORITY FOR THE I SSUE

The Issue has been authorized by a resolution of the Board passed at its meeting held on December 22, 2023
pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on [e], determined the Issue Price as X [e] per Rights Equity
Share (including a premium of % [e] per Rights Equity Share) in consultation with the Legal Advisor to the
Issue, and the Rights Entitlement as [e] Rights Equity Shares for every [e] Equity Shares held on the Record
Date.

This Draft Letter of Offer has been approved by our Board pursuant to their resolutions dated [e].

Our Company has received in-principle approval from NSE pursuant to Regulation 28 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, vide its letter dated [®] for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to the Issue.
Our Company will also make an application to NSE to obtain trading approval for the Rights Entitlements as
required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

Our Company has been allotted the ISIN [e] for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat
accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. Our Company has been allotted the ISIN [@] both from
NSDL and CDSL for the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue. For details, see section titled “Terms
of the Issue” beginning on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

PROHIBITION BY SEBI AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES

Our Company, our Promoters, our Promoter Group or our Directors, the persons in control of our Company
have not been debarred and are not prohibited from accessing or operating in the capital market or restrained
from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI. or any securities
market regulator in any jurisdiction or any authority/court as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The companies with which the Promoters or the Directors are associated as promoters or directors have not been
debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory
or governmental authority.

Neither our Promoters nor any of our Directors have been declared a fugitive economic offender under section
12 of the Fugitive Economic OffendersAct, 2018.

DIRECTORSASSOCIATED WITH THE SECURITIESMARKET
None of our Directors are, in any manner, associated with the securities market.
PROHIBITION BY RBI

Neither our Company nor any of our Promoters or our Directors have been or are identified as Wilful Defaulters
or Fraudulent Borrowers.

CONFIRMATION UNDER THE COMPANIES (SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP) RULES,
2018

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company, our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group
are in compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, as amended (“SBO
Rules”), to the extent applicable.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE

Our Company is alisted company and has been incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Equity Shares

are presently listed on Emerge platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Our Company is eligible
to offer Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue in terms of Chapter |11 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and
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other applicable provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Further, our Company is undertaking this Issue in
compliance with Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION 61 AND 62 OF THE SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS

The present Issue being of less than 5,000 Lakhs, our Company is in compliance with first proviso to
Regulation 3 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and our Company shall file the copy of the Letter of Offer
prepared in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations with SEBI for information and dissemination on the
website of SEBI.

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Our Company has made application to the Stock Exchange and has
received their in-principal approval for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue.
BSE isthe Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of the I ssue.

COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE (1) OF PART B OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE SEBI (ICDR)
REGULATIONS

Our Company isin compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations as explained below:

1. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the Draft
Letter of Offer with NSE;

2. Thereports, statements and information referred to abovein clause (1) are available on the website of NSE;

3. Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board of directors as
regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of
investor grievances.

As our Company sdtisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, disclosures in this Draft Letter of Offer have been made in terms of Clause (4) of Part B of
Schedule VI of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

ITISTOBEDISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THE LETTER OF OFFER
TO SEBI SHOULD NOT, IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS
BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY
EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH
THE ISSUE 1S PROPOSED TO BE MADE, OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS
MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THISLETTER OF OFFER.

IT SHOULD ALSO BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD THAT WHILE THE ISSUER IS PRIMARILY
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTNESS, ADEQUACY AND DISCLOSURE OF ALL RELEVANT
INFORMATION IN THE LETTER OF OFFER.

DISCLAIMER FROM OUR COMPANY, OUR DIRECTOR(S)

Our Company accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in any
advertisement or other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance of our Company
and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at their own risk.

Investors who invest in the Issue will be deemed to have represented to our Company and its officers, agents,
affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and
approvals to acquire Equity Shares, and are relying on independent advice/evaluation as to their ability and
guantum of investment in the I ssue.

90



CAUTION

Our Company shal make al the relevant information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in
accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and no selective or additional information would be available for
a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever, including at presentations, in research
or salesreports, etc., after filing this Draft Letter of Offer.

No dedler, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not
contained in this Draft Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations.
This Draft Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and the Rights Entitlement, but only
under circumstances and in the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in
this Draft Letter of Offer is current only as at the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

DISCLAIMER WITH RESPECT TO JURISDICTION

This Draft Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian laws and the applicable rules and
regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate
court(s) in Ahmedabad, Indiaonly.

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of this Issue will be National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF NSE

As required, a copy of this Draft Letter of Offer shall be submitted to the NSE. The Disclaimer Clause as
intimated by the NSE to us, post scrutiny of this Draft Letter of Offer, shall be included in the Letter of Offer
prior to the filing with SEBI and NSE.

FILING

The Draft Letter of Offer shall not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Draft Letter
of Offer asthe size of issue is less than X 50 Crore (Fifty Crores). The Letter of Offer has been filed with NSE

for obtaining in-principle approval. However, a copy of the Letter of Offer shall be filed with the SEBI for the
purpose of their information and dissemination on its website to the e-mail address: cfddil @sebi.gov.in.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Rights Entitlement
Letter, Application Form (collectively “Issue Materials) and the issue of Rights Equity Shares, to persons in
certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons
into whose possession the Issue Materials may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such
restrictions.

We are making this Issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send/
dispatch the Issue Materials only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address and
who are located in jurisdictions where the issue and sale of the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares
are permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public
offering in such jurisdictions. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail
address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the | ssue Materials will be dispatched, on areasonable
effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. Those overseas shareholders who do not update our
records with their Indian address or the address of their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date
on which we propose to dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be sent any 1ssue Materials.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided to those who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company

and who makes a request in this regard. Investors can also access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of
Offer and the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, The Stock Exchange.
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Our Company shall also endeavor to dispatch physical copies of the Issue Materials to Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Our Company and the Registrar will not be
liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue Materials.

No action has been or will be taken to permit this Issue in any jurisdiction or the possession, circulation, or
distribution of this Issue Materials or any other material relating to our Company, the Rights Equity Shares or
Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights
Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Issue Materials
may not be distributed in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such
jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Materials will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be
illegal to make such an offer and, under those circumstances, the Issue Materials must be treated as sent for
information only and should not be copied, redistributed or acted upon for subscription to Rights Equity Shares
or the purchase of Rights Entitlements. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue Materials should not,
in connection with the issue of the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares, distribute or send such
document in, into the United States or any other jurisdiction where to do so would, or might contravene local
securities laws or regulations or would subject the Company or their respective affiliates to any filing or
registration requirement (other than in India). If the Issue Materials is received by any person in any such
jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Entitlement or Rights
Equity Shares referred to in the Issue Materials. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be
dispatched from any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the
Rights Equity Sharesin this|ssue must provide an Indian address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares offered in this
Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorized to
acquire the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction, without requirement for our Company or their respective affiliates to
make any filing or registration (other than in India).

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form
nor any sale or offer hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no
change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as at
any time subsequent to the date of this Draft L etter of Offer or date of such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER, THE LETTER OF OFFER AND
ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR
INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN,
STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCESAS A RESULT OF BUYING OR SELLING
OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. AS A RESULT, EACH INVESTOR
SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR, AND TAX ADVISOR ASTO THE
LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX, AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE OFFER OF RIGHTS
EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTSENTITLEMENTS. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR
ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES ARE MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY
OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES OR THE RIGHTSENTITLEMENTS BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY
APPLICABLE LAWSOR REGULATIONS.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCESAND REDRESSAL SYSTEM

Our Company has made adeguate arrangements for redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the
corporate governance requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations as well as a well-arranged
correspondence system developed for letters of routine nature. We have been registered with the SEBI
Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular bearing reference number
CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011. Consequently, investor grievances are also tracked online by our
Company through the SCORES mechanism.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of shareholders in relation to
transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. All investor grievances received by us have been
handled by the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.
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The Investor complaints received by our Company are generally disposed of within 15 (Fifteen) days from the
date of receipt of the complaint.

Any investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by the Registrar to the Issue i.e., Bigshare
Services Private Limited. The agreement between the Company and the Registrar provides for a period for
which records shall be retained by the Registrar in order to enable the Registrar to redress grievances of
Investors.

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Compliance Officer for any pre-lssue/post-lssue related
matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process),
giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number (s), e-mail 1D of the sole/ first
holder, folio number or demat account number, serial number of the Application Form, number of Rights
Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the
Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form, or the plain paper application, as the case
may be, was submitted by the ASBA Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement dlip (in
case of ASBA process),. For details on the ASBA process, please see “Terms of the I ssue” on page 94 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Investor Grievancesarising out of this|ssue

The contact details of the Registrar to the Issue and the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our
Company are as follows:

Company Secr etary and Compliance Registrar to the I ssue

Officer
Ms. Vishakha Tanwar Bigshare Services Private Limited
88/8 GIDC, Phase |, Vatva, Address. Office No. S6-2, VI Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Ahmedabad- 382445, Gujarat, India Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093
Tel: 079-25833315 Telephone: +91-022-62638200
Email: csucl @ushanti.com Fax: +91-022-62638299
Website: www.ushanti.com Email: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com

Investor Grievance : investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

Contact person: Mr. Surg] Gupta

SEBI Registration No: INR000001385

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated
investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors
will be available on the website of the Registrar at www.bigshareonline.com. Further, helpline numbers
provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties are
(rightsi ssue@bigshareonline.com / +91-022-62638200).
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SECTION VII: OFFERING INFORMATION
TERMSOF THE ISSUE

This Section applies to all Investors. ASBA Investors should note that the ASBA process involves procedures
that may be different from that applicable to other Investors and should carefully read the provisions applicable
to such Applications, in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, before submitting an Application Form. Our Company is
not liable for any amendments, modifications or changes in applicable law which may occur after the date of
this Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA process, as the case may be, are advised
to make their independent investigations and to ensure that the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement
Letter iscorrectly filled up.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13
dated January 22, 2020 (“SEBI — Rights Issue Circular”), all investors (including renouncee) shall make an
application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility. However, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
lockdown measures undertaken by Central and State Governments, relaxation from the strict enforcement of the
SEBI — Rights Issue Circular has been provided by SEBI, vide its Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78
dated May 06, 2020 and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020. As per the said
circular, in case the physical shareholders who have not been able to open a demat account or are unable to
communicate their demat details, in terms of clause 1.3.4 of the SEBI — Rights Issue Circular, to the Company
or Registrar to the Issue, for credit of REs within specified time, such physical shareholders may be allowed to
submit their application subject to the conditions prescribed in the SEBI Circulars dated May 06, 2020 and July
24, 2020.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Sharesin physical form
was available only for a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
i.e., until May 10, 2019.

Since Allotment in this Issue will occur subsequent to May 10, 2019, the entitlement of Rights Equity Shares
to be Allotted to the Applicants who have applied for Allotment of the Rights Equity Sharesin physical form
will be kept in abeyance in electronic mode by our Company until the Applicants provide details of their
demat account particularsto the Registrar.

Further, In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold
Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity
Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the
Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to
Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this I ssue during the I ssue Period.

The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions
contained in this Letter of Offer, The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, including the Application
Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, the MOA and AOA of our Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, the terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the FEMA, applicable guidelines and regulations
issued by SEBI or other statutory authorities and bodies from time to time, the SEBI Listing Regulations, terms
and conditions as stipulated in the allotment advice or security certificate and rules as may be applicable and
introduced fromtime to time.

OVERVIEW

This Issue and the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and
conditions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association
of our Company, the provisons of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, FEMA Rules, the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI,
the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from
the RBI or other regulatory authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with
the BSE and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice.

IMPORTANT
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1. Dispatch and availability of Issue materials

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, our Company will send/dispatch
at least three days before the Issue Opening Date, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Entitlement Letter,
Application Form and other issue material (“lssue Materials’) only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who
have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of
the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and does not result
in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders
have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e mail addressand in
case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be
dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/dispatched, by the Registrar to the Issue on behalf of our Company to
the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses and have made a request in this
regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer
will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided
their e-mail address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian
addresses provided by them or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity
Sharesis permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make arequest in this regard.

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, and the Application Form (provided that
the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities
laws) on the websites of :

a) Our Company’s website at www.ushanti.com;

b) Registrar to the Issue’s website at www.bigshareonline.com;

¢) NSE website at www.nseindia.com;

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of
the Registrar to the Issue’s website at www.bigshareonline.com by entering their DP-ID and Client-ID and
PAN. Thelink for the same shall aso be available on the website of our Company at www.ushanti.com.

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian address through other means, as may be feasible. In light of the current COVID-19
situation and pursuant to the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, our Company and the Registrar to the Issue will not
be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form attributable to the non-availability of the
e-mail addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the
Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in transit.

2. Facilitiesfor Application in thislssue

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, SEBI - Rights Issue Circulars and
ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to
use either the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such
Applications before making their Application through ASBA. For details, refer “Procedure for
Application through the ASBA Process” on page 110.

ASBA facility
Investors can submit either the Application Form in physical mode to the Designated Branches of the SCSBs or
online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) authorizing

the SCSB to block the Application Money in an ASBA Account maintained with the SCSB. Application
through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility.
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Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI circular bearing reference number
CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated therein, Applications may be
submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs.

Further, in terms of the SEBI circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 02, 2013,
it is clarified that for making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such
SCSB should have a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account
shall be used solely for the purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be
available in such account for such an Application.

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN in the
Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application through the website
of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that incorrect depository account details or PAN
or Application Forms without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be rejected.
For details refer “Grounds for Technical Rejection” on page 117. Our Company, the Registrar and the
SCSBs shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the
offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity
Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to
renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA
process” on page 112 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

3. Credit of Rights Entitlementsin demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI - Rights Issue Circular,
the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in demateriaized form
only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to: (a) The demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (b) A demat
suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise
Rights Entitlements relating to: (i) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations; or (ii) Equity Shares held in the account of |EPF authority; or (iii) The demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our
Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (iv) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Sharesin physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by
Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (v) Credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/
reversed/ faled; or (vi) The ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court
proceedings, as applicable.

Eligible Equity Shareholders, whose Rights Entitlements are credited in demat suspense escrow account opened
by our Company, are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master
sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective
Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar to the Issue not later than 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the
Issue Closing Date, i.c., by [®] to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the
demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least 1 (One) day before the Issue Closing Date, to
enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall
serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholdersin this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are
also requested to ensure that their demat account is active, details of which have been provided to the Company
or the Registrar to the Issue, to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding
Equity Shares in physical form can update the details of their demat accounts on the website of the Registrar
(i.e., www.bigshareonline.com). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an application only after the
Rights Entitlementsis credited to their respective demat accounts.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar
(i.e., www.bigshareonline.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible
Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form) and PAN.

4. Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form
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Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights
Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form as
on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of
their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date,
to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the
Issue Closing Date.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (8) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity
Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Sharesin
physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to our Company
or Registrar at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Shares
may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period. Application by such Eligible Equity Shareholdersis subject
to following conditions:

a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are residents;

b) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are not making payment from non-resident account;

¢) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements; and

d) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall receive Rights Shares, in respect of their Application, only
in

demat mode.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among
others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our
Company or Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

Accordingly, such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to send a communication to our Company
containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details of their demat account
along with copy of self- attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by post,
speed post, courier, electronic mail, or hand delivery, to enable process of credit of Rights Shares in such demat
account.

5. Application for Additional Equity Shares

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, provided
that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for all the Equity
Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in part. Where the
number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the Allotment
would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of Allotment” beginning on page 121.

OTHER IMPORTANT LINKSAND HELPLINE
The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application
process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: www.bigshareonline.com;

Updating of Indian address/ e-mail address’ mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar to the
Issue or our Company: csucl @ushanti.com;

Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders. www.bigshareonline.com;

Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders: www.bigshareonline.com.

RENOUNCEES
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All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds pertaining
to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

AUTHORITY FOR THE I SSUE

This Issue has been authorized by a resolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on December 22, 2023
pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of
Directors of our Company in its meeting held on [e] has resolved to issue Rights Equity Shares to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders, at X [®] /- per Rights Equity Share, in theratio of [e]:[e] i.e, [e] ([e]) Rights Equity Share
for every [o] ([e]) Equity Shares, as held on the Record Date.

Our Company has received in-principle approval from NSE in accordance with Regulation 28 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue pursuant to its letter dated

[e].
BASISFOR THISISSUE

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose
names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our Equity
Shares held in dematerialised form and on the register of members at the close of business hours on the Record
Date, decided in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, but excludes persons not eligible under the
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

RIGHTSENTITLEMENTS

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares held in
dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible Equity Shareholder in
respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date, you may be entitled to subscribe to
the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Rights Entitlement L etter.

The Registrar will send/dispatch a Rights Entitlement Letter along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the
Application Form to all Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company and
who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Sharesis
permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in
such jurisdictions, which will contain details of their Rights Entitlements based on their shareholding as on the
Record Date.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website
of the Registrar (i.e., www.bigshareonline.com) by entering their DPID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case
of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form) and PAN.

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before the
Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. If Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form as on Record Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the
Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than
two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of
transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the
Issue Closing Date. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details of
their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e., www.bigshareonline.com). Such Eligible
Equity Shareholders can make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective
demat accounts.

Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other applicable | ssue
materials (“Issue Materials”) will be sent/ dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided Indian address and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights
Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in
and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholder s have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid
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email address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by
them. For further details, see “Notice to Investors” and “Restrictions on foreign ownership of Indian
securities” on page 11 and 128 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

PRINCIPAL TERMSOF THIS|SSUE

Face Value

Each Rights Equity Shares will be having face value of ¥10.00 (Rupees Ten Only).
Issue Price

Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of X [e] /- (Rupees [e] only) per Rights Equity Share
(including a premium of X [e] /- (Rupees [e] only) per Rights Equity Share) in this Issue.

The Issue Price for Rights Equity Shares has been arrived at by our Company in consultation with the Advisor
to the I'ssue and has been decided prior to the determination of the Record Date.

Rights Entitlements Ratio

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on arights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of
[e] Rights Equity Share(s) for every [e] fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders
as on the Record Date.

Rights of instrument holder

Each Rights Equity Share shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.
Termsof Payment

The entire amount of the Issue Price of X [@]/-(including premium of X[e]per Rights Equity Share) per Rights
Equity Share shall be payable at the time of Application.

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Rights Equity Shares and is allotted a lesser number of Rights
Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked. The
unblocking of ASBA funds/ refund of monies shall be completed be within such period as prescribed under the
SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed
under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable
law.

Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights Entitlements
credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall be
subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry
of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour
of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA
Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelinesissued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of such
Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange or through an off-market
transfer. For details, see “Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements” on page 111 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in
physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar
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or our Company at least 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, will not be able to renounce
their Rights Entitlements.

Process of Credit of Rights Entitlementsin dematerialized account

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars,
the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form
only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to: (a) The demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialized form; and (b) A demat
suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise
Rights Entitlements relating to: (i) Equity Shares held in ademat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations; or (ii) Equity Shares held in the account of |EPF authority; or (iii) The demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our
Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (iv) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Sharesin physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by
Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (v) Credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/
reversed/ failed; or (vi) The ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court
proceedings, as applicable.

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for the crediting of the
Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized form. A
separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is [e]. The said ISIN shall remain
frozen (for debit) till the Issue Opening Date and shall become active on the Issue Opening Date and remain
active for renunciation or transfer during the Renunciation Period. It is clarified that the Rights Entitlements
shall not be available for transfer or trading post the Renunciation Period. The said ISIN shall be suspended for
transfer by the Depositories post the Issue Closing Date.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and
client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their
respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the
Issue Closing Date, i.c., by [®] to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the
demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least 1 (One) day before the Issue Closing Date, to
enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall
serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholdersin this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are
also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the Company or the
Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock Exchange
after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity
Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar
after keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat.

PLEASE NOTE THAT CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN THE DEMAT ACCOUNT
DOES NOT, PER SE, ENTITLE THE INVESTORS TO THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AND THE
INVESTORS HAVE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ON OR
BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE AND MAKE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICATION MONEY.
FOR DETAILS, SEE “PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION” ON PAGE 124.

Fractional Entitlements

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on arights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholdersin the ratio
of [e] Rights Equity Shares for every [e] Equity Shares held as on the Record Date. As per SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, the fractional entitlements are to be ignored. Accordingly, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible
Equity Shareholders is less than [e] Equity Shares or is not in the multiple of [e] Equity Shares, the fractiona
entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored by rounding down of their Rights
Entitlements. However, the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored, will
be given preferentia consideration for the Allotment of one additional Rights Security if they apply for
additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, if any, subject to availability of Rights
Equity Sharesin this |ssue post allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for.
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For example, if an Eligible Equity Shareholder hold [e] Equity Shares, such Equity Shareholder will be entitled
to [e] Rights Equity Share(s) and will also be given a preferential consideration for the Allotment of one
additional Rights Equity Share if such Eligible Equity Shareholder has applied for additional Rights Equity
Shares, over and above hig/ her Rights Entitlements, subject to availability of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue
post allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for.

Further, the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding less than [e] Equity Shares shall have ‘zero’ entitlement for
the Rights Equity Shares. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are entitled to apply for additional Rights Equity
Shares and will be given preference in the Allotment of one Rights Equity Shares, if such Eligible Equity
Shareholders apply for additional Rights Equity Shares, subject to availability of Rights Equity Shares in this
Issue post alocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for. However, they cannot renounce the same in
favour of third parties.

Ranking of Equity Shares

The Rights Equity Sharesto be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
FEMA, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and
regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to
time, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchange and the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice.

The Rights Equity Shares being issued and allotted shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association. The Rights Equity Shares shall rank pari-passu, in all respectsincluding
dividend, with our existing Equity Shares.

Trading of the Rights Entitlements

In accordance with the ASBA Circulars and SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Rights Entitlements credited shall
be admitted for trading on the NSE under ISIN [e]. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain
the approval from the NSE for trading of Rights Entitlements. Investors shall be able to trade their Rights
Entitlements either through On Market Renunciation or through Off Market Renunciation. The trades through
On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements
through the depository mechanism.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronicaly on the secondary market platform of the Stock
Exchange on T+2 rolling settlement basis, where T refers to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled
on trade-for-trade basis. The Rights Entitlements shall be tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot
for trading of Rights Entitlementsis one Rights Entitlement.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation,
i.e.,, from [®] to [®] (both days inclusive). No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained On
Market Renunciation or the price at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. Eligible Equity Shareholders are
requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. For
details, see “Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements — On Market Renunciation” and “Procedure for
Renunciation of Rights Entitlements — Off Market Renunciation” on page 111 and 112 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTSENTITLEMENTSWHICH ARE NEITHER RENOUNCED NOR
SUBSCRIBED BY THE INVESTORS ON OR BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE SHALL LAPSE
AND SHALL BE EXTINGUISHED AFTER THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE.

Credit Rating

AsthisIssue isarightsissue of Rights Equity Shares, there is no requirement of credit rating for this Issue.

Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Sharesto beissued pursuant to thislssue
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As per the SEBI — Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN would be credited to the
demat account of the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders before the issue opening date. On the Issue
Closing date the depositories will suspend the ISIN of REs for transfer and once the allotment is done post the
basis of alotment approved by the designated stock exchange, the separate ISIN: [e] for REs so obtained will be
permanently deactivated from the depository system.

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on arights
basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange. Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations, the Rights Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable
and al steps for completion of necessary procedures for listing and commencement of trading in the Rights
Equity Shares will be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Our Company
has received in-principle approval from the NSE through letter bearing reference number [@] dated [e]. Our
Company will apply to the NSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares
subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights
Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under this Issue will trade after the listing
thereof.

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on Emerge platform of NSE bearing Scrip Symbol ‘UCL’ under
ISIN ‘INEOONI01015’. The Rights Equity shall be credited to temporary ISINs which will be frozen until the
receipt of the final listing/ trading approva from the Stock Exchange. Upon receipt of such listing and trading
approvals, the Rights Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISINs and credited to the existing
ISIN as fully paid-up Equity share of our company.

The listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the current
regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect the listing
and trading schedule.

Upon receipt of such listing and trading approval, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to
the I'ssue shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN and thereafter be available
for trading under the existing ISIN as fully paid-up Equity Shares of our Company. The temporary ISIN shall be
kept blocked till the receipt of final listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchange.

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the NSE SME, we shall refund through
verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire monies received/blocked within four days of
receipt of intimation from the NSE, rejecting the application for listing of the Rights Equity Shares, and if any
such money is not refunded/ unblocked within 4 (Four) days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, our
Company and every director of our Company who is an officer-in-default shall, on and from the expiry of the
fourth day, be jointly and severaly liable to repay that money with interest at rates prescribed under applicable
law.

Subscription to thisIssue by our Promoter and our Promoter Group

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and the Promoter Group, see the paragraph
titted “Intention and participation by the promoter and promoter group” under the chapter titled “Capital
Structure” on page 40 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Rights of holders of Rights Equity Shares of our Company

Subject to applicable laws, holders of the Rights Equity Shares shall have the following rights:

Theright to receive dividend, if declared;

The right to vote in person, or by proxy, except in case of Rights Equity Shares credited to the demat suspense
account for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders;

The right to receive surplus on liquidation;

Theright to free transferability of Rights Equity Shares;
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Theright to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in accordance with law; and

Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public Company under the Companies Act,
2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.

Subject to applicable law and Articles of Association, holders of Rights Equity Shares shall be entitled to
the aboverightsin proportion to amount paid-up on such Rights Equity Sharesin thisIssue.

GENERAL TERMSOF THE |SSUE
Market Lot

The Equity Shares of our Company are tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for trading of
Rights Entitlements is [e] Shares and in multiples of [e] Shares. To clarify further, fractional entitlements are
not eligible for trading.

Minimum Subscription

In accordance with Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum
subscription of at least 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate
basis, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue
Closing Date. If there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our
Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.

Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold the
same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in our Articles of
Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in physical mode to the
Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the same order as
appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for alotment of Rights Equity Shares
offered in this Issue.

Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Rights Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014. Since the Allotment isin dematerialized form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for
the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective Depository
Participants of the Investors would prevail. Any Investor holding Equity Shares in dematerialized form and
desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository Participant.

Arrangementsfor Disposal of Odd Lots

The Rights Equity Shares are traded in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights
Entitlementsis[e] Shares and in multiples of [e] Shares and therefore the marketable lot is [®] Equity Shares.

Restrictions on transfer and transmission of sharesand on their consolidation/splitting

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares issued
pursuant to this Issue. However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, the
request for transfer of securities shall not be affected unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form
with a depository.

Notices

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, our Company will send the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material only to the
Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in
jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws
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of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In
case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent
only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail
address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses
provided by them.

The Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar to the Issue on behalf of our Company to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company and who make a request in this
regard. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will
be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their
email address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses
provided by them.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one
English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi language national daily newspaper
with wide circulation and one Gujarati language daily newspaper with wide circulation (Gujarati being the
regiona language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is situated). The Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with the Stock Exchange for making the same
available on their website.

Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholder s/l nvestors

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, the RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Rights
Equity Shares to non-resident shareholders including additional Rights Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master
Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by the RBI, non-residents may, amongst
other things:

Subscribe for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements;

Renounce the Equity Shares offered to them either in full or in part thereof in favour of a person named by
them; or

Apply for the Equity Shares renounced in their favour.

Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for alotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be, amongst
other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under FEMA in the matter of
Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Rights Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlements
Letterd letters of Allotment/Allotment advice.

Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for alotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be, amongst
other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under FEMA in the matter of
Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Rights Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlements
Letterd letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If anon-resident or NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI,
in connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval with
the Application details and send it to the Registrar at rightsissue@bigshareonline.com. It will be the sole
responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental authority
is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue and our Company will not be responsible for any such
allotments made by relying on such approvals.

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form shall be sent to the e-mail
address of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company or
who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of
such jurisdictions. Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application
Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under
applicable securities laws) from the websites of the Registrar, our Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
of Directors may at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by the RBI
while approving the Allotment. The Rights Equity Shares purchased by non-residents shall be subject to the
same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the original Equity Shares
against which Rights Equity Shares are issued on rights basis.
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In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be opened.
Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant is liable to be
rejected at the sole discretion of our Company.

Any non-resident shareholder who has applied in the Issue without submitting RBI approval and/or without
providing Indian address, his’her application will be liable for rejection.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION
How to Apply

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA
Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the
ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making
their Application through ASBA.

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers and
the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions €tc. in
relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not
uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

Application Form

The Application Form for the Rights Equity Shares offered as part of this Issue would be sent to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders only to

E-mail addresses of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their e-mail addresses;

Indian addresses of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, whose e-mail
addresses are not available with our Company or the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided the valid
email address to our Company;

Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have
provided an Indian address to our Company;

In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of
Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through e-mail address if they have provided an Indian
address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares
is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions.

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for delay in the receipt of the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form
attributable to non- availability of the e-mail addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic
transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed
or misplaced in thetransit or thereisadelay in physical delivery (where applicable).

To update the respective e-mail addresses/ mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or our
Company, Eligible Equity Shareholders should visit www.bigshareonline.com. Investors can access the L etter of
Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is
eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites of:

Our Company at www.ushanti.com;

The Registrar at www.bigshareonline.com;

The Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com;

The Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website
of the Registrar at www.ushanti.com by entering their DP-ID and Client-ID and PAN.
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The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to make
Applications in this Issue on the basis of the Rights Entitlements credited in their respective demat accounts or
demat suspense escrow account, as applicable. Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by the
Investors to make Applications for al Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire
respective portion of the Rights Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible
Equity Shareholders applying in this Issue, as applicable.

In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in
which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are
required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account.

Investors may accept this I ssue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares by:

Submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block
Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, or Investors are also advised
to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein:

The ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to the
amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB; or

Please note that Applications without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall
bereected.

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN
number in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Incorrect depository account details
or PAN number could lead to reection of the Application. For details see “Grounds for Technical
Rejection” on page 117 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our Company, the Registrar and the SCSB shall
not beliable for any incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the
offer to participate in this Issue by making an application that is available on the website of the Registrar and
Stock Exchange or on a plain paper with the same details as per the Application Form available online. Please
note that Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications
shall not be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Application on
Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 112 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Optionsavailable to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity
Shareholder is entitled to.

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder appliesin thisIssue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder can:
Apply for its Rights Equity Sharesto the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or

Apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the other
part); or

Apply for Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other part of its
Rights Entitlements; or

Apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional Rights
Equity Shares; or

Renounce its Rights Entitlementsin full.
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PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS

Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application
Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs
(if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the
Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form, or have otherwise provided an
authorization to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to the
Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time of submission of the
Application.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks
For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer to

https://www.sebi .gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=34. For details on
Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Form, please refer the above-mentioned link.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular bearing reference number
‘CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012° dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications
may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made through ASBA
facility.

ACCEPTANCE OF THISISSUE
Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares:

Submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block
Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, or

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date:

Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended
time as permitted by the BSE, and

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB

Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary details as
mentioned under the section “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 112 of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTSEQUITY SHARES

Investors are digible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements,
provided that they are eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for
al the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in
part. The Rights Entitlements comprise of 1 Rights Equity. Where the number of additional Rights Equity
Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of
Allotment finalized in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Rights
Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section “Basis of Allotment” on page 121 of this Draft L etter
of Offer.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Rights
Equity Shares.

Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional Rights
Equity Shares.
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Pursuant to the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares
in physical form ason the Record Date cannot renounce until the details of their demat account are provided
to our Company or the Registrar and the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from suspense
escrow demat account to the respective demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders within
prescribed timelines. However, such Eligible Equity Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights
Entitlements are transferred from the suspense escrow demat account to the respective demat accounts within
prescribed timelines, can apply for additional Rights Equity Shares while submitting the Application through
ASBA process.

PROCEDURE FOR RENUNCIATION OF RIGHTSENTITLEMENTS

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or
in part (8) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange; or (b) through an off -market transfer,
during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Rights Equity Shares. The
Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his’her own demat account prior to the
renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by
transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism.

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading in the
Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their tax advisor or
stock broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be
levied for trading in Rights Entitlements.

OUR COMPANY ACCEPT NO RESPONSIBILITY TO BEAR OR PAY ANY COST, APPLICABLE
TAXES, CHARGES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING BROKERAGE), AND SUCH COSTS WILL BE
INCURRED SOLELY BY THE INVESTORS.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTSENTITLEMENTSWHICH ARE NEITHER RENOUNCED NOR
SUBSCRIBED BY THE INVESTORS ON OR BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE SHALL LAPSE
AND SHALL BE EXTINGUISHED AFTER THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE.

On Market Renunciation

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by
trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock broker
in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the
Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be
admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange under the ISIN that shall be alotted for the Rights Entitlement
subject to requisite approvals. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock
Exchange from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights
Entitlementsis[e] Shares. To clarify further, fractional entitlements are not eligible for trading.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation,
i.e., from [®] to [e] (both days inclusive).

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to do so
through their registered stock brokers by quoting the ISIN [e] (for Rights Entitlement) that shall be allotted for
the Rights Entitlement and indicating the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can
place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat
account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE under
automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+2 rolling settlement bases, where ‘T’ refers to the date of
trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the stock broker
will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange and the SEBI.
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Off Market Renunciation

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by way of an
off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in
dematerialized form only.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed
in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to
the Issue Closing Date.

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have to do so
through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction dlip quoting the ISIN (for Rights
Entitlement) that shall be allotted for the Rights Entitlement, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights
Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless aready having given a
standing receipt instruction) has to issue a receipt instruction dlip to their depository participant. The Investors
can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository
participants. The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as
specified by the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

APPLICATION ON PLAIN PAPER UNDER ASBA PROCESS

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who is €eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an application to
subscribe to this Issue on plain paper. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to

the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank
account maintained with the same SCSB.

Applicationson plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be
entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose
including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.

The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in the

same order and as per specimen recorded with his bank, must reach the office of the Designated Branch of the
SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

Name of our Company, being ‘USHANTI COLOUR CHEM LIMITED".

Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as per
specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

Registered Folio No./DP and Client ID No;

Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

Allotment option — only dematerialized form;

Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;

Total amount paid at the rate of X [e]/- for Rights Equity Sharesissued in one Rights Entitlement;

Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant SCSB;
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In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address, details of the
NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address, branch of the SCSB with which the
account is maintained and a copy of the RBI approval obtained pursuant to Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules.

Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials
appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in
case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to this Issue;

Authorization to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application Money
inthe ASBA Account;

Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence and order
as they appear in the records of the SCSB); and

In addition, all such Eligible Equity Shareholders are deemed to have accepted the following:

“I/ We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered
under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “US Securities Act”) or any United States state
securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to the
territories or possessions thereof (the “United States™) except in a transaction exempt from, or not subject to, the
registration reguirements of the US Securities Act. 1/ we understand the offering to which this application relates
is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement
for salein the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the said Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlement in the United States. Accordingly, I/ we understand that this application should not be forwarded to
or transmitted in or to the United States at any time. 1/ we understand that none of the Company, the Registrar or
any other person acting on behalf of the Company will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any
person, who appears to be, or who we, the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of the Company has
reason to believe isin the United States, or if such person is outside India and the United States, such person is
not a corporate shareholder, or is ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of their
jurisdiction. I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Equity Shares which may be acquired by
us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person
to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except under circumstances that will result in
compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting
satisfies, al suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the
jurisdiction of our residence.

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, pledged
or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S under the US
Securities Act (hereinafter referred to as ‘Regulation S’), or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act. I/We (i) am/are, and the
person, if any, for whose account |/'we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement, and/or the Equity Shares,
is/are outside the United States, and (ii) is/are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/or the Equity Shares in an
offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S.

I/ We acknowledge that the Company, their affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the
foregoing representations and agreements.” In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted for
Applications pertaining to Rights Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow
account, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application,
such Applications shall be liable to be rejected. Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions.
Failure to do so could result in an application being rejected, with our Company and the Registrar not having
any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application format will be available on the website of the Registrar
at www.kfintech.com.

Our Company and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds
are not blocked in the Investors’ ASBA Accounts on or before the Issue Closing Date.

APPLICATION BY ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN
PHYSICAL FORM
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Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights
Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as
on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the
details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day
before the Issue Closing Date.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among
others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our
Company or the Registrar, shal be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

To update respective email addresses mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or us
Company, Eligible Equity Shareholders should visit www.bigshareonline.com.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION BY ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY
SHARESIN PHYSICAL FORM

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have opened
their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in this Issue:

The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address, email
address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-
attested client master sheet of their demat account either by email, post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery so
asto reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date;

The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements of such
Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at |east one day before the Issue Closing Date;

The Eligible Equity Shareholders can access the Application Form from:

The website of the Registrar at www.bigshareonline.com;

Our Company at www.ushanti.com and

The Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of
the Registrar (i.e., www.bigshareonline.com) by entering their DPID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of
Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form) and PAN.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall, on or before the Issue Closing Date, (i) submit the Application Form to
the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made
available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in
their respective ASBA Accounts.

PLEASE NOTE THAT NON-RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD
EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON RECORD DATE AND WHO HAVE NOT
FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT ACCOUNTS TO THE REGISTRAR
OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE,
SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES
AGAINST THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUITY SHARES HELD
INPHYSICAL FORM.

ALLOTMENT OF THE RIGHTSEQUITY SHARESIN DEMATERIALIZED FORM
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE

ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT
IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE.
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FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS”
ON PAGE 122 OF THISDRAFT LETTER OF OFFER.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONSFOR INVESTORS

Please read this Draft Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable settlement
process;

Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you;
The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees;
Application should be made only through the ASBA facility;

Application should be complete in al respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of
the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable
to be regjected. The Application Form must be filled in English;

In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning al necessary
details as mentioned under the section “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 112 of this
Draft Letter of Offer;

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA
Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the
ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making
their Application through ASBA;

An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA
enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application.

Applications should be (i) submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic through
the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application
Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, (i) Applications through ASBA process
will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock
Exchange, and

Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such
Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar;

In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, including
details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money in
the ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form;

All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention their
PAN dllotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for Applications
on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the
courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect
from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall be
“suspended for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made
into the accounts of such Investors;

In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the amount in the
ASBA Account. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay order or NEFT or RTGS or
through any other mode is not acceptable for application through ASBA process. In case payment is made in
contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid and the Application Money will be refunded and
no interest will be paid thereon;

For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either in
English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India.
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Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a Special
Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per the specimen
signature recorded with the SCSB;

In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the
relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with the
SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant’s name and all
communication will be addressed to the first Applicant;

All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in
address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment in
this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, folio numbers/DP ID and Client ID and Application
Form number, as applicable; In case of any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible
Equity Shareholders should also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or
to our Company or the Registrar;

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular bearing reference number
‘CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012° within the periods stipulated therein, Applications made
through ASBA facility may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Application through ASBA
facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility;

In terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 02, 2013, it is clarified that for making
applications by banks on their own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in own
name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making
application in public/ rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA
applications;

Investors are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed the
prescribed limits under the applicable law;

An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of the RBI and must submit approval
from RBI for applying in this Issue;

Do’s:

Ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application humber, Investors
can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing about their Rights
Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal reference
number in place of application number;

Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act;

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and
occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects;

Investors should provide correct DP-ID and client-1D/ folio number while submitting the Application. Such DP-
ID and Client-1D/ folio number should match the demat account details in the records available with Company
and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Investor will be solely responsible for
any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be
liable for any such rejections.

Don’ts:

Do not apply if you are indligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your
jurisdiction;

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground;

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical Application;
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Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order;
Do not submit multiple Applications.
Do’s for I nvestors applying through ASBA:

Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the beneficiary
account is activated as the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form only;

Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct
bank account have been provided in the Application;

Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares (including additiona Rights
Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Rights Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account
mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective Designated Branch of the
SCSB;

Ensure that you have authorized the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on
application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the
Application and have signed the same;

Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the
Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location;

Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission of
the Application Form on aplain paper Application;

Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the
beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application Form is submitted in joint
names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names are in the same
seguence in which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement L etter;

Don’ts for Investors applying through ASBA:

Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your
jurisdiction;

Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a Designated Branch
of the SCSB or vice versa;

Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, the Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such Escrow
Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our
Company; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only;

Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process;

GROUNDS FOR TECHNICAL REJECTION

Applications made in this I ssue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

DP-ID and Client-1ID mentioned in Application not matching with the DP-ID and Client ID records available
with the Registrar;

Sending an Application to the Registrar, Escrow Collection Banks (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank
isnot a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company;

Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application Money;
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Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been frozen pursuant
to regulatory orders;

Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein;
Submission of more than one Application Forms for Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account;

Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain
paper Application;

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State
Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts);

Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except Applications by
minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depositories;

Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any other
SCSB;

Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed in the
Application Form and this Draft Letter of Offer;

Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors;

Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, and money order,
postal order or outstation demand drafts;

If an Investor is (@) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief
then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements;

Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically
transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons in the United States who are
U.S. QIBs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is not permitted under
laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form,
including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) outside India
and the United States and is a foreign corporate or institutional shareholder eligible to subscribe for the Rights
Equity Share under the applicable securities laws or (b) a U.S. QIB in the United States, and in each case such
person is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with this Issue; or (iii)
where either a registered Indian address is not provided or where our Company believes acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be
bound to issue or alot any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form;

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities laws;
Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available with the Registrar;
Applications by anon-resident without the approval from RBI with respect to Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules;

DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT AND BANK DETAILS FOR INVESTORSHOLDING SHARESIN DEMAT
ACCOUNTSAND APPLYING IN THISISSUE.

IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY
THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES
DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING
PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD
DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP-ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER/ FOLIO
NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN
IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE
DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN
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JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT ISALSO HELD
INTHE SAME JOINT NAMESAND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN
THE APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, ASTHE CASE MAY BE.

Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, Depository
Participant’s name and identification number and beneficiary account number provided by them in the
Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain
Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors applying under this I ssue should carefully fill
in their Depository Account detailsin the Application.

These Demographic Details would be used for al correspondence with such Investors including mailing of the
letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic Details
given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar.
Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository Participants.

By signing the Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to have authorized the Depositories to
provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

The Allotment advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be
emailed to the address of the Investor as per the email address provided to our Company or the Registrar
or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs
for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not allotted to such
Investor. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our
Company, the SCSBs, and Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due
to any such delay or beliableto pay any interest for such delay.

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the
Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DPID, and (c) the beneficiary account number,
then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.

MODES OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility or internet banking. The
Registrar will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through
ASBA facility or internet banking.

Mode of payment for Resident I nvestors

All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility or internet banking or
Applicants are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions.

Mode of payment for non-resident Investors
Asregards the Application by non-resident Investors, the following conditions shall apply:

Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by applicable
local securities laws can obtain Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar, our Company;

Note:

In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter and the Application Form shall be sent to (i) the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company; and (ii)
the e-mail addresses of the foreign corporate or ingtitutional shareholders.

The Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders at (i) the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable
effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company; and (ii) the e-mail addresses of the
foreign corporate or ingtitutional shareholders, in each case who make a request in thisregard.
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Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of
the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities laws;

Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts in
accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and reguirements prescribed by the RBI;

Notes

In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the investment in
Rights Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the Income-tax
Act;

In case Rights Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale proceeds of the
Rights Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India;

In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other distribution, if any,
will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by the RBI as applicable at the time of
making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals,

Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing abroad for Allotment
of Rights Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as may be imposed from time to
time by RBI under FEMA,, in respect of mattersincluding Refund of Application Money and Allotment;

In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE Accounts, refunds and
other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account;

Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for
applying for additional Rights Equity Shares;

MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS

In case where multiple Applications are made in respect the Rights Entitlements using same demat account, such
Applications shall be liable to be rejected. However supplementary applications in relation to further Rights
Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as multiple application. A
separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a mutua fund registered with SEBI and such
Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. For details, see “Procedure for Applications by Mutual
Funds” below. Cases where Investor submits Application Forms along with plain paper or multiple plain paper
Applications for same Rights Entitlements shall be treated as multiple applications.

In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted, such Applications shall be treated as multiple
applications and are liable to be rejected.

LAST DATE FOR APPLICATION

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is [e] i.e.,
Issue Closing Date. The Board of Directors may extend the said date for such period as it may determine from
time to time, subject to the I ssue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of
the Issue Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchange and the Application
Money is not blocked with the SCSB on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be extended by
the Board of Directors, the invitation to offer contained in this Draft Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have
been declined and the Board of Directors shall be at liberty to dispose of the Rights Equity Shares hereby
offered, as provided under the section, “Basis of Allotment” on page 121 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00
p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the BSE,

Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application number,
Investors can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing about their Rights
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Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal reference
number in place of application number.

WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION
An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their application at any time during Issue Period by

approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor, whether applying through ASBA
facility may withdraw their application post the Issue Closing Date.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

Last datefor Credit of Rights Entitlements [e]
I ssue Opening Date [e]
Last Datefor On Market Renunciation* [e]
Issue Closing Date [e]
Finalisation of Basis of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of Credit (on or about) [e]
Date of Listing (on or about) [e]

* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on
or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Our Board of Directors may however decide to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time
but not exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

Our Board of Directors may however decide to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time
but not exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form as on Record Date, have
not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide
their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., [e] to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat
suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

BASISOF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged L etter of Offer,
the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approva of the
Designated Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to alot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of
priority:

Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlements of Rights
Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or have applied for Rights Equity
Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Equity Shareholders
with zero entitlement, would be given preference in allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share each if they
apply for additional Rights Equity Shares. Allotment under this head shall be considered if there are any
unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after allotment under (a) above. If number of Rights Equity Shares required
for Allotment under this head are more than the number of Rights Equity Shares available after Allotment under
(a) above, the Allotment would be made on afair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange and will not be a preferential alotment.

Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares offered to
them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Rights Equity Shares. The Allotment of such
additional Rights Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the
number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity
Shares after making full Allotment in (1) and (2) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be at
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the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and
will not be apreferential allotment.

Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, have
applied for additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment under
(1), (2) and (3) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be made on a proportionate basis in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

Allotment to any other person, that our Board may deem fit, provided there is surplus available after making
Allotment under (1), (2), (3) and (4) above, and the decision of our Board in this regard shall be fina and
binding. After taking into account Allotment to be made under (1) to (4) above, if there is any unsubscribed
portion, the same shall be deemed to be “‘unsubscribed’.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the
Controlling Branches, a list of the Investors who have been alocated Rights Equity Shares in this Issue, along
with:

The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for
this Issue, for each successful Application;

The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and

The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA
Accounts.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS

Our Company will e-mail Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of Rights Equity Shares and/or
letters of regret, along with crediting the Allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts
(only in dematerialized mode) or in a demat suspense account or issue instructions for unblocking the fundsin
the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days from the Issue Closing Date. In case
of failure to do so, our Company and the Directors who are “officers in default” shall pay interest at 15%
(Fifteen Percent) p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 (Fifteen)
days’ period.

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the depository
system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through email, to the email address provided to our Company or
at the address recorded with the Depository.

In the case of non-resident Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE or the
FCNR Accounts, refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, shall be
credited to such accounts.

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is Allotted a lesser number of
Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked. The
unblocking of ASBA funds/ refund of monies shall be completed be within such period as prescribed under the
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed
under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable
law.

PAYMENT OF REFUND

Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would be
done through any of the following modes.

Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.

National Automated Clearing House (hereinafter referred to as ‘NACH’) — National Automated Clearing House
is a consolidated system of electronic clearing service. Payment of refund would be done through NACH for
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Applicants having an account at one of the centers specified by the RBI, where such facility has been made
available. Thiswould be subject to availability of complete bank account detailsincluding MICR code wherever
applicable from the depository. The payment of refund through NACH is mandatory for Applicants having a
bank account at any of the centers where NACH facility has been made available by the RBI (subject to
availability of al information for crediting the refund through NACH including the MICR code as appearing on
a cheque leaf, from the depositories), except where Applicant is otherwise disclosed as €eligible to get refunds
through NEFT or Direct Credit or RTGS.

National Electronic Fund Transfer (hereinafter referred to as ‘NEFT”) — Payment of refund shall be undertaken
through NEFT wherever the Investors’ bank has been assigned the Indian Financial System Code (hereinafter
referred to as ‘IFSC Code’), which can be linked to a MICR, allotted to that particular bank branch. IFSC Code
will be obtained from the website of RBI as on a date immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly
mapped with MICR numbers. Wherever the Investors have registered their nine-digit MICR number and their
bank account number with the Registrar to our Company or with the Depository Participant while opening and
operating the demat account, the same will be duly mapped with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch
and the payment of refund will be made to the Investors through this method.

Direct Credit — Investors having bank accounts with the Bankers to the Issue shall be igible to receive refunds
through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the relevant bank(s) for the same would be borne by our
Company.

RTGS — If the refund amount exceeds 32,00,000, the Investors have the option to receive refund through RTGS.
Such eligible Investors who indicate their preference to receive refund through RTGS are required to provide
the IFSC Code in the Application Form. In the event the same is not provided, refund shall be made through
NACH or any other eligible mode. Charges, if any, levied by the refund bank(s) for the same would be borne by
our Company. Charges, if any, levied by the Investor’s bank receiving the credit would be borne by the Investor.

For al other Investors, the refund orders will be dispatched through speed post or registered post subject to
applicable laws. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay orders or demand drafts drawn in favor of the
sole/first Investor and payable at par.

Credit of refundsto Investorsin any other electronic manner, permissible by SEBI from time to time.
Refund payment to non-residents

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of which
were provided in the Application Form.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT OF SHARES

The demat credit of Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account (pending
receipt of demat account details for Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with
|EPF authority/ in suspense, etc.) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date or such other
timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

RECEIPT OF THE RIGHTSEQUITY SHARESIN DEMATERIALIZED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO

THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE
HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR

THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANYOR
THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAY S PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE
ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON THE
RECORD DATE, OR
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DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT PENDING RECEIPT OF DEMAT ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR RESIDENT
ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS/ WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS
RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED.

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form.

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED ON
THE BSE ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized
form is as under:

Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary account
should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our Company. In the
case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same
order as registered in the records of our Company). In case of Investors having various folios in our Company
with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those Investors
who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are in the same
order asin the records of our Company or the Depositories.

The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a-vis such information with
the Investor’s depository participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors should ensure that the names of the
Investors and the order in which they appear in Application Form should be the same as registered with the
Investor’s depository participant.

If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the Investor will not get
any Rights Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.

The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly
credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat suspense account
(pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders with IEPF authority/ in
suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by email and, if
the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant’s depository participant
will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the Applicant’s depository
account.

Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Investors by the Registrar, by
email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch.

Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of
Rights Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable to
be rejected.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION BY CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF INVESTORS
Procedurefor Applicationsby FPIs

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity Sharesis
subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its investor group (which means
multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and directly and indirectly having common ownership
of more than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post -Offer Equity Share capital. In case the
total holding of an FPI or investor group increases beyond 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our
Company, on afully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference
shares or share warrants that may be issued by our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or investor
group will be re-classified as FDI subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and the RBI in this regard and
our Company and the investor will also be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements. Further,
the aggregate limit of all FPIs investments, with effect from April 1, 2020, is up to the sectoral cap applicable to
the sector in which our Company operates.
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FPls are permitted to participate in this |ssue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may
be specified by the Government from time to time. The FPIs who wish to participate in the Offer are advised to
use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with al applicable Indian laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI may issue,
subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations as
any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against Shares held by it that are
listed or proposed to be listed on any recognized stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or
indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons registered as
Category | FPI under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to
persons who are eligible for registration as Category | FPIs (where an entity has an investment manager who is
from the Financial Action Task Force member country, the investment manager shall not be required to be
registered as a Category I FPI); (iii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know
your client’ norms; and (iv) compliance with other conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI.

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore derivative
instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following conditions: (a) such
offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI FPI Regulations;
and (b) prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the offshore
derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre — approved by the FPI.

Procedurefor Applicationsby AlFs, FVClsand VCFs

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the investment
restrictions on VCFs and FVClIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations prescribe, among
other things, the investment restrictions on AlFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCls are not permitted to invest in
listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCls will not be accepted in
this Issue. Venture capital funds registered as Category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AlIF Regulations, are not
permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital
funds registered as category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AlIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue.
Other categories of AlFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AlF
Regulations. Such AlFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where
such AlFs are located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of
such AlFs are liable for rejection.

Procedurefor Applicationsby NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs that are
ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws.

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”’) may purchase or sell capital instruments
of a listed Indian Company on repatriation basis, on a recognized stock exchange in India, subject to the
conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the total paid -
up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of
debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian Company and the total holdings of all
NRIs and OCls put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or
shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants.
The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general
body of the Indian company.

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state that all
investments by entities incorporated in a country which shares land border with India or where the beneficial
owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted Investors”), will
require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the press note whether or not an issuance
of the Rights Equity Shares to Restricted Investors will also require a prior approval of the Government of India
and each Investor should seek independent legal advice about its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event
such prior approval of the Government of Indiais required and such approval has been obtained, the Investor
shall intimate our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the | ssue Period.
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Procedurefor Applications by Mutual Funds

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with SEBI
and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made by asset management
companies or custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
the application is being made.

Procedurefor Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC-SI”)

In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with the RBI, (8) the certificate of registration issued by
the RBI under Section 45IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net-worth certificate from its statutory auditors or any
independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statementsis required to be attached to the
application.

IMPERSONATION

As amatter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of Section 38
of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a Company for acquiring,
or subscribing for, its Shares; or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a Company in different
names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its Shares; or
otherwise induces directly or indirectly a Company to allot, or register any transfer of, Shares to him, or to
any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act for fraud involving an amount of at least X 10
lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term of not less
than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall
not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up
to three times of such amount.

In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is less than %10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the company,
whichever islower; and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an imprisonment
for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to ¥50 lakhs or with both.

PAYMENT BY STOCKINVEST

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock invest
scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Rights I ssue.

DISPOSAL OF APPLICATION AND APPLICATION MONEY

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the
Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by stamping and
returning the acknowledgment dlip at the bottom of each Application Form to the Eligible Equity Shareholders
upon submission of the Application.

Our Board of Directors of the Company reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any
Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In cases where refunds are applicable, such refunds shall be made within a period of 15 days. In case of failure
to do so, our Company and the Directors who are “officers in default” shall pay interest at the prescribed rate. In
case an application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the respective
ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an application is rejected in part, the balance
of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be refunded /
unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money was received / ASBA Accounts of the
Investor within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall
pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.
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UNDERTAKINGSBY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

The complaints received in respect of the issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and
satisfactorily;

All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at NSE, where the
Rights Equity Shares are to be listed are taken within the time limit specified by the SEBI;

The funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made
available to the Registrar by our Company;

Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to the
applicant within 15 (Fifteen) days of closure of the issue giving details of the bank where refunds shall be
credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund;

Where release of block on the application amount for unsuccessful bidders or part of the application amount in
case of proportionate allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the applicants;

Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA applications;

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to time.
UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

Our Board declares that:

All monies received out of issue of this Rights Equity Issue to the public shall be transferred to a separate bank
account.

Details of al monies utilized out of this Right Issue referred to in clause (A) above shall be disclosed under an
appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies
had been utilized; and

Details of all unutilized monies out of this Right Issue referred to in clause (A) above, if any, shall be disclosed
under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such
unutilized monies have been invested.

IMPORTANT

Please read this Draft Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the
Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the
conditions of this Draft Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise, the Application isliable to be
rejected.

All enquiries in connection with this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter or Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number or the DP ID and Client ID
number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as mentioned on
the Application Form and superscribed ‘[e]- RIGHT I SSUE’ on the envelope and postmarked in Indiaor in the
email) to the Registrar at the following address:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

Address: Office No. S6-2, VI Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093
Telephone: +91-022-62638200

Fax: +91-022-62638299

Email: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com;

Investor Grievance : investor@bigshareonline.com;
Website: www.bigshareonline.com;

Contact person: Mr. Surgj Gupta
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SEBI Registration No: INRO00001385

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated
investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors
will be available on the website of the Registrar (www.bigshareonline.com). Further, helpline numbers provided by
the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties are +91-022-62638200.

This Issue will remain open for a minimum 15 (Fifteen) days. However, the Board of Directors will have the
right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from
the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).

RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of
India and FEMA. While the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India, prescribes the limits and the
conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA
regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made. The Union Cabinet, as provided in the
Cabinet Press Release dated May 24, 2017, has given its approval for phasing out the FIPB. Under the Industrial
Policy, 1991, unless specificaly restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in al sectors of the Indian
economy up to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to follow certain
prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct investment
(“FDI”) and approval from the Government of India will now be handled by the concerned ministries or
departments, in consultation with the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of
Commerce and Industry, Government of India (formerly known as the Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion) (“DPIHT”), Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs, FIPB section, through a
memorandum dated June 5, 2017, has notified the specific ministries handling relevant sectors.

The Government has, from time to time, made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press
releases. The DPIIT issued the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 (“FDI Policy”) by way of circular
bearing number DPIIT file number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020, which with effect from
Octaober 15, 2020, consolidates and supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI
issued by the DPIIT that were in force and effect as on October 15, 2020. The Government of India has from
time to time made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases which are notified by
RBI as amendments to FEMA. In case of any conflict between FEMA and such policy pronouncements, FEMA
prevails.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of the
RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company fall under the automatic route as provided in the
FDI Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the
non-resident shareholding iswithin the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing isin accordance
with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

As per the existing policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue.
The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any
amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of

this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the
number of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.
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SECTION VIII —STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Please note that the Rights Equity Shares applied for under this Issue can be alotted only in dematerialized form
and to (a) the same depository account/ corresponding pan in which the Equity Shares are held by such Investor
on the Record Date, or (b) the depository account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the
Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date by the Eligible Equity Shareholder holding
Equity Sharesin physical form as on the Record Date.

MATERIAL CONTRACTSAND DOCUMENTSFOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not
being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered
into more than two years before the date of this Draft Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material
have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to
hereunder, would be available on the website of the Company at www.ushanti.com from the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

Material Contractsfor the lssue

(i) Registrar Agreement dated January 31, 2024, entered into amongst our Company and the Registrar to the
Issue.

(ii) Escrow Agreement dated [e] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue.
Material Documents

(i) Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company as
amended from time to time.

(i) Resolution of the Board of Directors dated December 22, 2023 in relation to the Issue.

(iii) Resolution of the meeting of Board of Directors dated [e] finalizing the terms of the Issue.

(iv) Resolution of the meeting of the Board of Directors dated [e] for fixing the Record Date.

(v) Consent of our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financia Officer, Statutory
Audit_or, the Registrar to the Issue for inclusion of their names in the Draft Letter of Offer in their respective
capacities.

(vi) Statement of Tax Benefits dated 25" January, 2024 from the Statutory Auditor included in this Draft Letter
of Offer.

(vii) Tripartite Agreement dated May 30, 2018 between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the Issue.
(viii) Tripartite Agreement dated May 22, 2018 between our Company, CSDL and the Registrar to the Issue.

(ix) In principle listing approval dated [e] issued by NSE.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any

time if so, required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the
sharehol ders subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 and the rules, regulations and
guidelines issued by the Government of India, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued by the SEBI,
established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have
been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies
Act 2013, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, each as amended, or the rules, regulations or guidelines
issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all the statements and disclosures made in this

Draft Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/-

Mr. Maunal Shantilal Gandhi
Joint Managing Director

Sd/-

Mr. Minku Shantilal Gandhi
Joint Managing Director

Sd/-

Mr. Shantilal Bhailalbhai Gandhi
Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Sd/-

Mrs. Hanisha Jinish Patel
Independent Director

Sd/-

Mrs. Purvi Tapan Trivedi
Independent Director

Sd/-

Mr. Tejas Pravinkumar Shah
Independent Director

SIGNED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY

COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF OUR COMPANY

AND

Sd/-

Mr. Pradip Bhadriklal Gandhi
Chief Financia Officer

Sd/-

Ms. Vishakha Tanwar
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: February 01, 2024
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